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MINT]TES OF THE TWO IITINDREI) ANI) THIRTY EI(;H-I'H (2.18III) SITTINC OF
THE ptrBLtc ACCoITNIS coMMITTE,E HELD oN MoNDAy,5"'ocr()BER,20ls

PRESEN'I'
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

APOLOCIES

Jackson K. Rop. MP
Joseph Manje. MP
.loel Onyancha. MP
Kanini Kega , MP
Andrew Mwadime. MP
Abdikadir Aden. MP
John Mbadi. MP
Manson Nyamweya. MP
Timothy Bosire. MP
Alice Nyanchoka Chae, MP

- Vice Chairperson

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

11. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

I 5. Hon.

Eng. Nicolas Gumbo, MP - Chrirperson
Jude Njomo, MP
Kareke Mbiuki. MP
Gonzi Rai. MP
Julius Melly, MP
Kangogo Bowen. MP
Fathia Mahbub. MP
Mathias Robi. MP
Sakwa Bunyasi. MP
A(hur Odera. MP
David Eseli. MP
Junet Sheikh Nuh, MP
Kyengo Katatha Maweu. MP
Silvance Onyango Osele. MP
Charles M. Geni. MP

IN-ATTEN I)AN(]I]:
NATIONAL ASST]MBLY SE('RETARIAT
l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Philip Lekarkar
3. Ms. Winnie Kulei

- Principal Clerk Assistant Il
- Clerk Assistant I

- Research Otficer III

AT 2.OO P.M. IN CONIMITTEE ROOM 9. NTAIN PARLIAMENT BI.IILDIN(;.



OFFICE ()F AI.IDITOR (;T]\ERAL
Mr. Sammy Kimunguyi
Mr. Raphael lkame

Ms. Belinda Kiilu

I

2

3

THE NATIONAL TREASI.'RY
I . Ms. Jane Njogu
2. Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari
3. Ms. Emma Mburu

MIN. No.tttl{/2015: PRI,]_t\il\.\RtEs
The Chair called the meeting lo order at filleen minutes past two O'clock. Prayer was said. Sell'-

introduction ofthose present was done.

MlN.NO. lttl5/201 5: CONFI RMATI ON OF MINI.]TES
Confirmation of minutes of the previous sitting was deferred to the next meeting

MIN No. {tti6/ 2015: EVII)UN('E: NATIONAI.'IREASIIRY
Dr. Kamau Thuge. EBS. PrincipalSecretary from The National Treasury accompanied by

Messrs.:-

(i) S.K. Kirogu
(i i) Kennedy Khera
(iii)Felister Kivisi

Financial Statement for Vote 107

Paragraph 7.3, Unsupported Expenditure
On the issues conceming this paragraph. lhe Auditor General inlbrmed the Comrnittce thal they

received somo procuremenl documents on lhe very day and needcd linre to go through them.

Paragraphs 8.9.10 were resolved

Paragraph I I : Omitted Balances Carried Forward
The Auditor General informed the Commitlce that the matlers have not been rcsolved hence

remains outstanding. There was an agreemcnt bctween the Olflce olthe Auditor (ieneral and the

National 1'reasury to meet and resolve the oulstanding issues.

Appeared bclirrc the comnrittee and gave evidcncc on:-



Paragraph l2: Arrears of Revenue

The financial statements ref'lect arrears of revenue due and uncollected as at 30 June 2014 of
Kshs.164.712,793,632.92 compared to Kshs.135,141.678.594.76 reported as at 30 June 2013.

The amount of Kshs.164.712.793,632.92 is made up of arrears for PAYE and Other Income Tax

of Kshs. I I 5.595.709,259.00, arrears lor VAT and Excise Taxes of Kshs. 12,826,655.982.00,

arrears for loan redemptions of Kshs.l2" 136.521.472.63 and arrears for loan interests of
Kshs.24.153.906.919.29 respectively. Besides failure to collect the arrears, the balances have not

been analyzed or supported with the relevant documents and as a result, their validity.
completeness and accuracy could not be ascertained.

The Auditor General emphasized that their concern was the failure by the National Treasury to

collect the arrears ofrevenue and delay in submission ofdocuments.

Response

While responding. the Principal Secretary informed the Committee that it was true that the

financial statements reflecl arrears ol revenue due and uncollected as at 30rh June. 2014 of
Kshs.164,712,693,632.92 compared to Kshs.l35.l4l ,678.594.76 reporred as ar 30th June,2013.
The amount of Kshs.164.712,793.632.92 is made up ol arrears lor PAYE and other Income Tax
of Kshs.l 1 5.595,709,259.00 arrears for VAT and Excise Taxes of Kshs. 12.826,655,982.00.

arrears lbr loan redemptions of Kshs.12,136.521.472h3 and arrears lor loan interests of
Kshs.24,153.909.919.29 respectively.

At the time of audit. the balances of arrears had not been analyzed. The balances were later
analyzed and submitted lor audit review.

Paragraph 13 was resolved and the Office of the Auditor General was satisfied with the

explanations given by the National Treasury.

Paragraph l4: Failure to redeem stocks
The appendix indicated in the evidence by the National Treasury was missingfrom the evidence
file. The National Treasury was asked to provide the missing documenrs.

Paragraph l5: Winding up of the Fund
On this paragraph. the Auditor General was concemed lhat the process has taken long even

though the National Treasury provided interim report showing the process.

Paragraph l6: Non-Submission of Financial Statements
The Auditor General inlormed the Committee that the oflice has received the Financial
Statemenl from the National 'Ireasury and will carry out the audit on201312014 and 201412015.

Further. the Auditor General added that the fbllowing paragraphs were resolved:

(i) Paragraph l7: Presentation and Disclosures



(ii) Paragraph l9: Dividend lncome not paid into the Fund Account
(iii)Paragraph 25: Presentation and Disclosure
(iv)Paragraph 27: Presentation of Financial Statements

(v) Paragraph 32: Presentation and Disclosure
(vi)Paragraph 34: Other Suspense

(vii) Paragraph 35: Paymaster General Account
(viii) Paragraph 36: Bank Reconciliation Statement

(ix)Paragraph 37: Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Statements

Paragraphs 18.20.21,22,23,24.28.29.30,1 I,33,38.39.40 have not been resolved and the National
Treasury was directed to meet with the Office ol the Auditor General to resolve the outstanding

issues.

MIN No.887/2015:- AI).]oI.IRNMENT
There being no other business to transacl. the sitting ended at twenty seven minutes past five in
the afternoon.

SIGNEI)... DATE...... o12.et{
Chairperson



MtNtTTHS Ot THE T\\'O HtNI)RUl) A\t) T'iltRT\'\tNETH (2-19rrr) SITTI:i(; OF

THE puBLtc ACCoUNTS coMMtrrEE HELD oN TUESDAy.6"'ocroBER.20l5
AT IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE Roo]II 9, ]VIAIN PARLIAMENT BTIILDIN(;.

PRl]SIiNT'
l. Hon.

2. t{on.

3. [{on.
4. Ilon.
5. Uon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

12. Hon.

I 3. Hon.

14. [{on.

15. Ilon.

Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

David Eseli. M.P.

.lohn Mbadi. M.P.
T irnothy Bosire, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

Kl engo Katatha Maueu. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M-P.

Kanini Kega. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P

Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Vice- (lhairman

('ha irman

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant III

APOI.(X;ntS
l. ['lon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. I lon.
7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

12. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.

Joel Onyancha. M.P.

Jude Njomo. M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.
Mathias Robi. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

.lunet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

Charles Mong'are Ceni. M.P.

Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

IN AT'I'I]NDANCE:
NA'TI()NAI- ASSI'MBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Fredrick Otieno



NA'TIONAL 'I'REAST]RY

Mr. Geof frev Mwitari ('hiel Accountant

\I I \. \o.lltlll/20 I 5: I'llELI\l I\,\l{l l..S

The Chair called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past ten O'clock. Prayer was said and

sell-introduction of those present done.

M I N.N(). tttl9/201 5: CONFIRMATION ()t- M I N t ['lis
Conllrmation trl'minutes olthe previous sitting was dclerred to the nexl nleeting

MIN No. tl90/2015: EVIDENCE,: THE, NA'I'IONAL TREASURY
Dr. Kamau Thugge, Principal Secretary National Treasury appeared before
accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Benard Ndung'u
(ii) Mr. James Aloyo
(iii) Ms. Anne Mugo
(iv) Ms. Beatrice Gathirwa
(v) Mr. Tom Khakame
(vi) Mr. Naboth Nyaberi
(vii) Ms. Doris Ithima
(viii) Mr. Arthur Nduati
(ix) Mr. Simon Mwangi
(x) Mr. Joseph Simba
(xi) Mr. Livingston Bunbe
(xii) Mr. G.K Gichuru

Appeared belbre the committee and gave cvidence on:-

thc committce

(i)
( ii)
(iii)
(iv)

Paragraph 42 on Non-Repayment of Loans

Paragraph 43 on Outstanding Loan Balances

Paragraph 44 on Presentation of Financial Statements

Paragraph 45 on Long Outstanding Balances

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
l. Mr. William O Agunda

2. Mr. Diiniel Ndung'u

3. Mr. Raphael Ikame

4. Chiules Kinuthia

Financial Statcment for Vote 107



(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)
(xiv)
(xv)
(xvi)
(xvii)
(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)
(xxi)
(xxii)
(xxiii)
(xxiv)
(xxv)
(xxvi)
(xxvii)

Paragraph 46 on Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Statements

Paragraph 47 on Statement ofSubscriptions - Vote R.53

Paragraph 48 on Bank Reconciliation

Paragraph 49 on Understatement of Pension Payments

Paragraph 50 on Investments

Paragraph 5l on Members Contribution
Paragraph 52 on Capital Accounl

Paragraph 53 on Presentation ofthe Financial Statement

Paragraph 54 on Comparative Balances

Paragraph 55 on Paymaster General Account

Paragraph 56 on Long Outstanding Balances

Paragraph 57 on Presentation ofthe Financial Stalement

Paragraph 58 on Payment under Loan Guarantee Act

Paragraph 59 on Unexplained Funding - Exchequer Issues

Paragraph 60 on Investment held in Insolvent Cereals and Sugar Finance

Corporation
Paragraph 6l on Un-invested Proceeds from Redeemed Stocks

Paragraph 62 on Presentation of the Financial Statement

Paragraph 63 on Extemal Debt lnterest

Paragraph 64 on Ken-Ren Chemical and Fertilizer Company - Loan Repayment

Paragraph 65 on Unsustainable Growth in Public Debt

Paragraph 66 on Re-Credited Cheques

Paragraph 67 on Stale Cheques

Paragraph 68 on Excess Expenditure

l'cnding lssues:

Paragraph 42: Non-Repayment of Loans
According to the Auditor General, the loans have not been paid and no efforts have been made

by the institutions to repay the loans.

Members were however concemed on how the govemment gave money to private institulions

while some ofthese institutions were never active.

The Committee informed the Principal Secretary that it was imponant to summarize general

reasons why the loans have not been repaid and report to the Commitlee on the way forward,

either to write off the loans or to loan out the companies when the exchequer releases for the

Committee to make a decision on the malter.



Paragraph 43: Outstanding Loan Balances
The Consolidated Statement of Outstanding Loans as at 30 June 2014 reflects total loans issued

of Kshs. 192.082 .652.272.94, out ol which an amount of Kshs.l 0.795,3 33.453.06 has been

repaid. leaving a balance ol Kshs.181.287.318.819.88 ourstanding as ar rhat date. The total
outstanding loans balance of Kshs.181.287.318.819.88 as at 30 June 2014 represents an increase
of Kshs. I 4,347 .703.077 .45 or approximately 8.6% ol total outstanding balance of
Kshs.166.939,61 5.7 42.43 reported as at 30 June 2013.

'fhe Principal Secretary was asked to provide documenls with detailed inlbrmation on this matter

Paragraph 50: lnvestments
The statement of flnancial assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2014 reflects investments' balance
of Kshs.32,256.73 7.00. 'fhis balance rcpresents shares held in Kenya Power and Lighting
Company Limited valued at Kshs.34.238.980.00 net ol a provision of Kshs. I .982.243.00.
However, the reason for the provision. or what it represents. has not been explained and therefore
the fair value ofthe investments could not be established.

The Principal Secretary informed the Committee that thcy had shared the justifications on the
provisions with the Olllce of the Auditor General.

'fhe Committee was however concemed whether the fund was lor pension during colonial period
or not.

The National 1-reasury was directed Io provide the schedule ofthe benellciaries with their details
and the how much money is paid to each beneliciary.

Paragraph 54: Comparative Balances
'fhe National 1-reasury infbrmed the Committee that they submitted the revised copy ol the

statement to the OlTice of the Auditor Cieneral.

The National 'l'reasury and the Of'fice of the Auditor Cencral to sit and rcsolve the outstanding
tssucs

Paragraph 55: Paymaster General
The issue was still outstanding and the Nalional Treasury informed the Committee that there is

tasklbrce formcd to uork on the issue.

The National I'reasury and the Office of the Auditor General were asked to sit and clear the

unresolved issues.



a

Paragraph 56: Long Outstanding Balances

The Statement reflects ltems Awaiting Clearance and Sinking Fund balances of
Kshs.4,798,266.57'1 .05 and Kshs.2.093.43 7.50. respectively which have been brought forward

over the years. No satisfactory explanation has been provided for non-clearance of these long

outstanding balances. In addition, the balances have not been supported with verifiable

documents. The completeness and accuracy ol these balances could not, therefore, be

ascertained.

The tasklorce will deal with the issue

Paragraph 60: Investment Held in lnsolvent Cereals and Sugar Finance Corporation
The statement of assets and liabilities reflects a receivables balance of Kshs.16.900.000.00

relating to a cash investment held in lhe Cereals and Sugar Finance Corporation. The

Corporation is technically insolvent and according to available information the Government has

approved its winding up. with a further requirement that the National Treasury takes over its
assets and liabilities. 'fhe recoverability of the amount of Kshs.16.900,000.00 is therefore

doubtful.

The National Treasury and the Office of the Auditor General were directed to meet and resolve

the outstanding issues.

Further the National Treasury was directed to move with speed to ensure the winding up is
completed.

Paragraph 62: Un-invested Proceeds from Redeemed Stocks

As highlighted in the report lbr 201212013 and as indicated in Note 8.5 to the financial

statements. the Ministry holds in its Deposit Account No. 4-867- 102-0021 cash proceeds from
the redemption of ll% Kenya Stock 2000 totaling Kshs.9.000.000.00. The Stocks were

redeemed in July 2001 and the proceeds were expected to be re-invested immediately but are still
being held in the Deposit account to date. Failure to re-invest the funds fbr the last l3 years has

denied the Fund income that would t'inance the payment olpensions due to its beneficiaries.

Members were concemed on whether this money is there and how much interest it generates

The Principal Secretary assured Members that the money is there and they are acting on it so that

it can be invested.

Paragraph 64: Ken-Ren Chemical and Fertilizer Company- Loan Repayment

On this issue. the Committee informed the Principal Secretary that it was imporlant that the

individuals concemed be brought to books and the money recovered.



Paragraph 65:
The Committee noted with concem that it was important to inform the public on the status of the
economy just like the Auditor General did.

Paragraphs 66 on Re-Credited Cheques.6T on Stale Cheques and 68 on Excess Expenditure. the
National Treasury and the Oftjce of the Auditor General were asked to meet and resolve the
pending issues.

MIN No. 891/201 5:- ADJOURNMENT
There being no other business to transact. the meeting ended at twenty live minutes past one in
the afternoon.

SI(;NED.. l)ATf,.... htI
Chairpcrso



PRESEN-t
l. Hon.
2. Hon.
3. Hon.
4. Hon.
5. Hon.
6. Hon.
7. Hon.
8. Hon.
9. Hon.
10. Hon.
I l. Hon.
12. Hon.
13. Hon.
14. Hon.
I 5. Hon.
16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.
Jackson K. Rop. M.P.
Joseph Manje, M.P.
David Eseli. M.P.
John Mbadi. M.P.
Timothy Bosire, M.P.
Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
Abdikadir Aden- M.P.
Kangogo Bowen, M.P.
Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.
Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.
Stephen Manoti, M.P.
Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.
Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.
Gonzi Rai. M.P.
Kanini Kega, M.P.

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

Principal Clerk Assistant
Clerk Assistanl lll

OFFICE 0F I'II[, AIIDI'I'()R (]ENT:RAI,
l. Mr. William O Angundo
2. Mr. Daniel Ndung'u
3. Mr. Lamech Achika
4. Mr. Charles Kinuthia

MINT]TES OF THl] TWO HTINDREI) AND FOI-IRTIETH (2.IOII') SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON THT]RSDAY. SIII OCTOBER.20I5 AT
I I.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BT]ILDING.

ABSENT WITH APOLOGY
l. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.
2. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.
3. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.
4. Hon. Manson Nyamweya, M.P.
5. Hon. Jude N.iomo. M.P.
6. Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.P
7. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P
8. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P
9. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.
10. Hon. Charles Mong'are Geni. M.P.
I l. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. [rredrick Otieno



NATIONAL I'REASTIRY
Mr. Geolfiey Mu'itari Chief Accountant

MIN. No.892/2 0l5: PREl.llll\ARItls
The Chair called the meeting to order at fifleen minutes past elevcn O'clock. Prayer was said and
self-introduction ol those present done.

ItI\.NO. tt93/2015: ( ON1-lRIIATI ON ()F }IINTi'TES

Dr. Kamau Thugge. Principal Secretary National Treasury appeared before the committee
accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Luke Kirwa
(ii) Mr. James Aloyo

l iii) Ms. Beatrice Gathirwa
(iv) Mr. Tom Khakame
(v) Mr. Naboth Nyaberi
(vi) Ms. Doris Ithima
(vii,1 Mr. Arthur Nduati
(viii) Mr. Simon Mwangi
(ix) Mr. Livingston Bunke
(x) Mr. G.K Cichuru

Financial Statement for Vote 107
He gave evidence on:-

(i) Paragraph 69 on Service Gratuity Kshs.l 70.990.760.00
(ii) Paragraph 70 on Bank Reconciliation Slatement tbr the CFC Cashbook, Act. 0l-

0R-01 0R05 I

(iii) Paragraph 7l on Receipts in Cashbook not in Bank Slatement
(iv) Paragraph 72 on Presentalion and Disclosure ofFinancial Statements
(v) Paragraph 73 on Comparative Balances tbr 2012/20'13
(vi) Paragraph 74 on Paymaster General (PMG) and Cashbook Balances
(vii) Paragraph 75 on Prior Year Unresolved Audit Issues
(viii) Paragraph 76 on Inadequate Disclosure

l'endin lssues:
Paragraph 70 (b): Payment in Bank Statement no in Cashbook
-fhe 

Commiltee directed the National 'lreasury to provide tlrc Court ruling on the issue and werc
turther concemed to know wh] the Attomcy Gcneral did not appeal on the case."[he comntitte,.'
was concerned by thc trend on which the Government through the Altomey General lose cases
hence the public lunds being lost.

Conllrmation of minutes of the previous sitting was dcf-erred to the next meeting.

M IN No. tt9{/20 I 5: llVI I)tiN('U: NA'l'lONAl.'IRIiASt r RY



Paragraph 74: Paymaster General (PMG) and Cashbook Balances
The tasktbrce was directed to handle the matter and clear the books and the matter be resolved
before the end olthe current llnancial vear.

Paragraph 75 (i ii)
The statement of assets and liabilities for deposits 07 as at 30 June 2013 reflected a balance of
Kshs.3,170.073.064.63 againsl the Fund compared to the paymaster general (PMG) balance of
Kshs.2,695.783.471 .40 shown in the Fund's balance sheet, again resulting in an unexplained or
un-reconciled difference of Kshs.474,289.593.23.

The National Treasury and the Office of the Auditor Ceneral were directed to sit and resolve the
outstanding issues on this paragraph.

MIN No. tl95/2015:- ADJOITRNMENT
There being no other business to transact. the meeting ended at twenty minutes past one in the
aftemoon.

st(;NEI).. .. DATE....{4*rhairpe lt



ABSE,NT
'1. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

2. Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.

3. Hon. John Mbadi, M.P.

4. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

5. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

6. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P.

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

Clerk Assistanl II
Research OfIcer

MINT.ITES OF THE TWO HT]NI)REI) ANI) FOT]RTY FIRST (24IS') SITTINC OF THE
PUBLIC] ACCOTINTS (]OMMITTET] }IELI) oN THTIITSDAY. I5III OCTOBER.20I5 AT
IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

PRESENT
I . Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.
2. Hon. Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

3. Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.P.

4. Hon. Julius Melly, M.P.

5. Hon. Joseph Manje. M.P.

6. Hon. Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
7. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

8. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

9. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

10. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

I l. Hon. David Eseli. M.P.

12. Hon. Abdikadir Aden. M.P.
13. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

14. Hon. Kanini Kega. M.P.

15. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

16. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

I 7. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

18. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

19. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

20. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

21. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

I . Victor Weke

2. Winnie Kulei



NATIONAL TREASI.IRY
1. Mr. Elijah Kabiru
2. Mr. Geotlrey Mwitari

OFFICE OF THE ATIDITOR (;F:,NEIIAL

l. Mr. John M. Karingithi
2. Mr. Raphael lkame -

-Senior Assistant Accounlant General

-Chief Accountant

Assistant Manager Audit
Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

MIN No. 896/201 5: PRtII.IMINARI ES

MIN No.897/2015: (IONFIRMATI()N OF MI\trTES
The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. l'here were thus no matters arising

MIN No. tl98/2015: EVll)lilN('E: MINIs-l'R\' OF INI)tTSTRIALIZATION AND

The Apnropriation Accounts. Othcr l'uhlic Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the
2013l20ll Financial Year

Dr. Wilfred Songa, Principal Secretary of Ministry of lndustrialization And Enterprise

Development accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Julius Mokogi - MD, Kenya Industrial Estates

(ii) Mr. Philip Gichuki - Deputy Commissioner Cooperatives Development

(iii) Mr. Samson Olala - Senior Chief Finance Officer
(iv) Mr. Thomas Njogu- PA to the Permanent Secretary

(v) Mr. Andrew Mbwi - Deputy Chief Accountant
(vi) Mr. Julius Korir - Industrialization Secretary

(vii) Mr. Geof'frey Chege- Senior Accountant

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:-

(i) Paragraph 468 on l-oan to Micro-llnance institutions
(ii) Paragraph 469 on Grants to collaborating lnstitutions
(iii) Paragraph 470 on Loss ol'cash
(iv) Paragraph 471 on Bank Reconciliation
(v) Paragraph 472 on Late Submission offund account

PE:.-l)lN(; lSSL l..S

(i) Parauraoh 468 on Loan to Micro-ti nance rnstltutlons

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at ten minutes past tcn in the morning and prayed.

Introductions by all present lbllou'ed.

ENTERPRISE DEVEI-oPM EN'I'



T'he Committee directed the Accounling Officer and Managing Director, Kenya

Industrial Estates to avail its credit policy.

MIN No. 899/2015:- AD.IOtTRNMENT
no other business to transact. the sitting ended at twenty minutes past eleven in theThere be

morning.

sl(;\ut) DATE..91,{*,-<-
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MINI"ITES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND FOURTY SECOND (2{2\D) SITTIN(; OF
.I'HE PUBLIC ACCoT]NTS COMMI'I"I-ET], HELD ON 'I'HTIRSDAY, I5T'I OCTOI]IJ,R,

PRESENT
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

I 7. Hon.

18. Hon.

19. Hon.

20. Hon.

21. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.

Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.
Julius Melly, M.P.

Joseph Manje. M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.

David Eseli. M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P

Kanini Kega, M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

Chairman
Vice- ('hairman

.\I}SENT WITH APOt-(X;\'

IN ATTENDAN('E
NATIONAL ASSEMI}I-Y

l. Mr. Victor Wcke

2. Ms. Winnie Kulei
Clerk Assistant II

Rescarch Officer

20I5 AT TI..JO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

l. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. M.P.
2. Hon. Jude Njomo. M.P.

3. Hon. John Mbadi. M.P.

4. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.
5. Hon. Mathias Robi- M.P.

6. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.



NATIONAL TREASI,]RY
1. Mr. Elijah Kabiru
2. Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari -

OFFICE OF TllE At l)l't()R (;ENERAL
1. Mr. Richard Nyagwachi-
2. Mr. Rowland Kinyeki -
3. Mr. Stephen laiku
4. Mr. Raphael lkanc

Senior Assistant Accountant Ceneral

Chief Accountant

Senior Manager Audit
Manager Audit
Assislant Manager Audit
Parliamentary Liaison Olfi cer

IllN No. 900/201 5: Pl{IILI}tlNARtES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at lbrty minutes past eleven in the moming and

prayed. Introductions by all present followed.

MIN No. 901/2015: C()NFl RMATION (X- MINI.]TES
The agenda item was del-erred to the next meeting. There were thus no matlers arising.

-fhc Annronriation Accounts. Other Puhlic Accounts and thc Accounts of the Funds for thc
2lll 3 /201 4 Financial Ycar

Mrs Mariamu El Mawy. Principal Secretary of Ministry ol Lands and Housing and Urban
Development accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Patrick Bucha - SH

(ii) Samson Ongalo - Head Accounting
(iii) Ann B. Nyikuli - DA
(iv) Esther N. Ogega - DLAS
(v) Mabeya Mogaka - Ag. DA
(vi) Juliana Mutua - Ag. Deputy Director
(vii) Stephen Waruinge - CA SFT
(viii) Eng. John Maina - SMD
(ix) Charles Wafula Sikuku - Ag. Director
(x) Joseph Zachary Abuta - Finance expert
(xi) Arch. S.K. Muli - Ag. CA
(xii) Eng. E.N. Waithaka - Ag. ELE

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 305 on Unsupported receipts

(ii) Paragraph 306 on Understatement of receipts

MIN No. 902/2015: llVll)!.NCE: ]tlNIsTR\' ()F LANDS



(iii)
(iv)
(v)

Paragraph 307 on Other revenue

Paragraph 308 on Use oldeposit money to pay recurrent expenditure

Paragraph 309 on Misallocation ofexpenditure

I)ATI,] 2".iS-
Ohairpe

MIN No. 90-l/201 5:- Al),lotiRNMENT
There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at twenty minutes past one in the

afiemoon-

SI(;NED..



lll\t r't.ts ol''l'Hu't \\o ltt NDRED AND FOI.IRTY THIRD (2{.1RD) SITTING OF THE
PI.IBLIC ACCoTINTS COMMITTE,E HELD ON THI]RSDAY.22\I) OCTOBI.]R.20I5 AT

PRESENT
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. llon.
7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

I 3. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

AI}SENT WITH APOLOGY

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

Joel Onyancha. M.P.

Conzi Rai. M.P.

Kanini Kega. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.
David Eseli. M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.
Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

Julius Melly. M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.
Kycngo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.

Mathias Robi. M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P,

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

Clerk Assistant ll
Clerk Assistant Il
Fiscal Analyst, Parliamentary Budget Oflice

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

IN ATTENDANCE
NAI'IONAL ASSEMI}LY

I . Mr. Victor We ke

2. Ms. Chelagat l'ungo

3. Mr. Benjamin Ngimor

IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTIIE ROoM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BTIILDING.



4. Winnie Kulei

NA'I'IoNAt, I'RllAStiR\'
Mr. Ceoffrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant

ot-t'lCE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
1. Mr. William Agunda -

2. Mr. Daniel Ndungu

3. Mr. Charles Kinuthia -

4. Mr. Raphael lkame

Manager Audit
Manager Audit
Manager Audit
Parliamentary l-iaison Offi cer

lN No. 904/201 5: PRELIMINA
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at thirty minutes past ten in the moming and prayed.

Introductions by all present followed.

MIN No.905 015: CONFIRMATI()N OF MtNtrtEs
The agenda item was def'erred to the next meeting. There wcre thus no matters arising

MIN No. 906/2015: PRESEN'I.{TION l}\' THE PARLIAMIINTARY BITDGETOF lt( t.
ON THE 20I1 SOVEREIGN B N

Mr. Benjamin Ngimor of the Parliamentary Budget Olfice made an analytical presentation to lhe
Commiltee on the Sovereign Bond issued by the Govemment of Kenya in 2014. Thc analysis is

attached to these minutes-

MIN No. 907/2015: Il,VIl)E,NCll: CON'IR()l-LER oF IIUD(;ET oN TIIE 20I.I
SOVEREI(;N B()ND
Ms. Agnes Odhiambo. Controller of []udget (COU) accompanied by' Mcssrs.:-

I

ii
iii
:.,

vi

Mr. Patrick Kamors

Mr. Joseph Marigi
Mr. Waweru Tuti
Ms. Mary Owii
Mr. Mark Kipkoech
Mr. Joseph f ulula

CFA (NG)

Managcr

Managcr

Managcr

Managcr

Manager

Appeared betbre the committee and gave evidence on the USD 2 Billion 2014 Sovereign Bond.
She stated as follows:

l. That the COB approves all lunds fiom the Consolidated lund as per from Article 206(4)
of the Constitution. Her office is independent and derives its mandate f'rom Articles 228

and 249 of the Constitution.

Research Olllce r



2. As is the practise, her approval is two-fbld. There is the pre-approval phase where she

scrutinizes relevant documentation regarding a particular expenditure and she approves

based on the correctness of these documents. She then awaits availability of lunds and

approves release of funds towards expenditure.

3. On the first expenditure of the Sovereign Bond of Kes. 53.2 Billion that went towards

retirement of the Syndicate loan, she examined all the documentation including payment

documents. loan agreements. repayment period, interest rates etc. Treasury al'ailed all

these and she approved. Treasury however did not seek second approval of actual

payment once funds were available since payment was done from a special offshore

account that she was not a signatory oi
4. It is these special accounts that she has no control over and sought Parliament to legislate

on how the office of the COB oversight them.

5. Treasury was l'ully aware ol Article 206 as demonstrated in their intemal memo dated

27'h June. 2015. (She tabled the memo). They however went ahead to pay without her

input. and only forwarded a joumal voucher tbr entry in the COB's books. vide a letter

dated 27th August.2015. ln her l" quarter report of the llnancial year 2014/15, she

highlighted the issue and asked fbr verification of amounts and asked for audit and

reconciliations.
6. She approved the use of the balance ofthe Sovereign Bond lunds that were transfened to

the Consolidated fund. Funds were released for each ministry. department or govemmenl

agency as their general voles and she could thus not identity specific projects solely

funded by the Sovereign Bond finances.

7. Her office releases quarterly reports and submits 349 copies to Parliament for all

Members.

8. The Controller of Budget and her Directors are the signatories authorizing withdrawal of
funds from the Consolidated fund account held at CBK.

MIN No.908/2015:- ANY OTIlllR II[TSINESS
1. The Committee look exception with the Cabinet Secretary fbr Treasury's failure to

attend the impo(ant meeting without prompt prior communication. The Committee

decided to reschedule his appearance ro Monday, 2nd November. 2015 at 2.30 pm.

2. -fhe Committee resolved to sit on Monday aftemoons and Friday mornings, on top ol'

the usual sitting days so as to dispense with the massive workload before it.

3. On the upcoming trip to Khartoum on the 9th F.AAPAC Conference. the Committee

noted the inability of Hon. Gonzi Rai. llon. Timothy Bosire and Hon. Kangogo

Bowen to travel and accepted their withdrawal from the delegation. The Committee

duly replaced them with Hon. Junet Mohamed, tlon. Abdikadir Aden and Hon.

Charles Geni.



4. The Chairman informed Members that he would lead a delegalion to Hon. John
Mbadi's home in Pipeline Estate ofTThika Road to condole with him. Members were
encouraged to attend and send their contributions through thc secretariat.

MIN No. 909/2015:- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business. the sitting adjoumed at twenty minutes pasl one in the afiemoon.
l)ate ol'next eeting was set as I'uesday 27th October.2015 at 10.00 am.

SIGNED...
Chairperson

81,4*,sDATE....



MINT]TES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND FOI.]RTY FOURTH (2{{III) SITTING OF
THE PTIBLIC A(](]()TINI'S COMMITTEE HELI) ON MONI)AY, 26'h OCTOItI,R, 2OI5

.\'t 2..r0 I,.\t. t\ ( o\t\il't'il..E ltoo\l 9 MAIN PARLIAMT]NT BI.iILDINC;

PRESENI'
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. llon.
4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. llon.
8. Ilon.
9. Hon.

Jackson K. Rop. MP - Vice Chairperson
Joseph Manje, MP

Joel Onyancha. M.G.H MP
Sakwa Bunyasi, MP
Arthur Odera. MP
David Eseli. MP

Manson Nyamweya, MP

Kareke Mbiuki. MP
Mwadime Andrew. MP

APOLOCIES
l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. MP - Chairperson
2. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, MP
3. Hon. Kanini Kega. MP
4. Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP
5. Hon. Mathias Robi. MP
6. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. MP
7. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, MP
8. Hon. Julius Melly. MP
9. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. MP

10. Hon. Abdikadir Omar Aden. MP
I I . Hon. Charles Mong'are Geni, MP
12. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.G.H.. MP
13. Hon. John Mbadi. MP
14. Hon. Timothy Bosire. MP
15. Hon. Jude Njomo, MP
16. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. MP
'17. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. MP

18. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, MP

IN ATTtiNDAN('E:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mulunga
2. Mr. Douglas Katho

3. Ms. Winnie Kulei

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant III
Research C)lficer



4. Mr. Collins Mahamba Audio Olllccr

Parl iamenlarv [-iaison Offi cer

'tRE,\st RY
Geofliey Mwitari

MIN No.9l0/2015: PR [_Lt\t t\.\t l..s

The sitting's proceedings commenced with a word olpraycr and thereafter introductions

MIN No. 9l l/2015: CONI'IRMATI()N OF MlNt TEs
1'he agenda item was deferred 10 the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 91212015: EVIDUN('E: llllNlSTRY OF lN'l'ERIOR AND COOIiDINA'I'lON OF

'Ihe Aorrronriation Accounts. Othcr Public Accounls and the Accounts of the Funds for thr
20l3l20ll Financial Year

Amb. Monica Juma. Principal

Mukobe, Principal Secretary. S

accompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Maj. Gen. Kihalangwa
(ii) Mr. Kimeu Maingi
(iii)Mr. John Munywoki
(iv)Ms. Judy Mwihali.i
(v) Mr. Josphat K- Huka
(vi) Mr. JM Wambugu
(vii) Ms. M. W. Muthoni
(viii) Ms. Doris Kenyanya
(ix)Mr. William Mbaka
(x) Mr. Alexander Chege

(xi)Mr. Chades Liyayi

Secrelary. State departnrent of Interior and Ms. Josepta

tate Department of Coordination of National (iovernment

Director. Immigration
MOICNG
Interior

lnterior
Kenya Prisons Service

National Police Service

National Police Service

MI&C]NG
Coordination
Kenya Police Service

Coordination

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR CENERAL
l. Joseph M. Karanja - Manager. Audit
2. Raphael lkame - Parliamentary Liaison Otficer
3. Simon Chibole - Manager. Audit
4. Joseph K. Irungu - Manager. Audit
5. Bonlace Ong'wen - Manager, Audit
6. Catherin M. Mburu - Manager. Audit
7. Japheth Mangoka - Manager. Audit

NATIONAL GOVt.],RNMENT



Intcrior
Interior

Attomev General's Office

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 77 on Purchase of Land and Houses for general Service Unit paid

through legal dues, arbitration and compensation.
(ii) Paragraph 78 on Examination of contractor Supply and delivery of Entry and Exit

stamps.

(iii) Paragraph 79 on Examination of Contract Number APHQS/32/201 I l/2012 for the

procurement of additional Security Items

(iv) Paragraph 80 on Procurement and loss of Certificates at the department of
Immigration

(v) Paragraph 8l on Mismanagemenl ofcash bails at Kenya Police Service Stations in

Nairobi.
(vi) Paragraph 82 on Loss ol Revenue for Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund at various

districts.
(vii) Paragraph 83 on Proposed Construction of a Warehouse at Administration Police

Training College- Embakasi

(viii) Paragraph 84 on Accuracy of the Financial Statements

(ix) Paragraph 85 on Irregular Purchase of Residential Houses and Commercial Units
(x) Paragraph 86 on Construction of Lokitaung-Kachoda-Kibish road at Turkana

North District
(xi) Paragraph 87 on Rehabilitation of Kishaunet Airstrip at West Pokot Districl
(xii) Paragraph 88 on Stalled Project at Laisamis Police Station
(xiii) Paragraph 89 on Construction of Administration Block at Sigomere Police Station,

Siaya County
(xiv) Paragraph 90 on lrregular Payments by County Police Commander. Marsabit

(xv) Paragraph 9l on Over Expenditure on 'Iravel and Accommodation by District
Criminal Investigation Oflicer. (DCIO). Nyakach District

(xvi) Paragraph 92 on Unaccounted Fuel

(xvii) Paragraph 93 on Unexplained Obsolete Inventory al Govemment Press

(xviii) Paragraph 94 on lrregular Purchases through Cash

(xix) Paragraph 95 on Biogas Project at Kenya Prisons Service

(xii) Mr. Phillip M. Gathuya
(xiii) Mr. Phyllis A. Ouko

(xiv) Mr. Waigi Kamau



MtN. NO.9l3/2015 AI).IOTlRNMEN'T
The Vice-Chairperson adjoumed the meeting at half past flve o' clock in the evening. The next

meeting was scheduled to take place on 27'h October. 2015 at l0am.

st(;Nl]).. ,zQ>.nt{DATE....
(lhai



APOLOGIES
l. Hon. Eng. Nicolas Gumbo. MP - Chairperson
2. Hon. Jude Njomo. MP
3. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, MP
4. Hon. Gonzi Rai. MP
5. Hon. Julius Melly, MP
6. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. MP
7. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. MP
8. Hon. Mathias Robi. MP
9. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP
'10. Hon. A(hur Odera, MP
I l. Hon. David Eseli. MP
12. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. MP
13. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, MP
14. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, MP
15. Hon. Charles M. Geni, MP
16. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. MP
17. Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP

l.Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2.Mr. Philip Lekarkar
3.Ms. Winnie Kulei

- Principal Clerk Assistant II
- Clerk Assistant III
- Research Officer III

MINUTES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND FOURTY FIFTH (245III) SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS .O
IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDINGS AT l0:00 AM.

PRESENT
I . Hon. Jackson K. Rop. MP - Vice Chairperson
2. Hon. Joseph Manje, MP
3. Hon. Joel Onyancha, MP
4. Hon. Kanini Kega , MP
5. Hon. Andrew Mwadime. MP
6. Hon. Abdikadir Aden, MP
7. Hon. John Mbadi. MP
8. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. MP
9. Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP
10. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, MP

IN-ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY SECRETARIAT



OFT'I('E ()F ATlI)I'TOR (;ENERAL
l. Raphael Ikame

2. Simon Chibole

3. Joseph Irungu

4. Boniface Ongwen

5. Catherine Mburu

Nil N.NO.9l {/2015: PRELIMINARIES
The Chair called the meeting to order at tlvc minutes past ten O'clock. Prayer was said by llon.
Eng. Nicolas Gumbo. MP. Self--inlroduction olthose presenl was done.

\tl\.\O.915/2015: ( O\t'll{}1.\TlO\ ()}'\ll\t 'l lls
Conflrmation ofnrinutes ofthc previous sitling was deferred to tlre ncxt meeling

PRIN('IPAL ST]CRETARY OF THT] NATIONAL TREASI.]RI' ON T'INANC'IAL

Mr. Rotich briefed the Committee on the budgetary performance for the financial year
201312014 and inlbrmed further the Committee that:-

1'hat disbursing money to the various ministries. state entities, county governments.

Parliamenl and the Judiciary had been a challenge in the flrst quarter of the current

tinancial year. The delays are as a result ol high fbreign exchange rate's. challenges the

THE NATIONAL TREASURY
I . Geofrey Mwitari
2. Mr. Luke Kirwa
3. Mr. James Aloyo
4. Ms. Beatrice Gathirwa
5. Mr. Tom Khakame
6. Mr. Naboth Nyaberi

7. Ms. Doris lthima
8. Mr. Arthur Nduati

9. Mr. Simon Mwangi
I 0. Mr. Livingston Bunke

I l. Mr. G.K Cichuru

NllN. NO./916/2015:E!'IDEN('E ll\' 'IHE ('AlllNE-I' Sll('RETARY AND THE

STATEMENTS FoR THE NATIONAL TREAST]RY

The Cabinet Secretary, National Treasury Mr. Henry Rotich accompanied bv the Principal
Secretary; Dr. Kamau Thugge, appearcd before the Committee to adduce evidence on the
Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the National Treasury for the
fi nancial y ear 20131201 4.



govemment is facing in raising revenue locally and as well as because of late requisition

of lunds.

2. On the Auditor- General's report that a total Kshs. 66 billion had been unaccounted for

by various state agenciesl the CS informed the Committee that various govemment

accounting officers had not provided supporting documents in time. The Treasury has

since engaged them to provide the same and where money is lbund to have been lost, the

accounting officers will be held accountable. Further the govemment is establishing and

revamping intemal audit units in all entities.

3. During the 201412015 financial year the Covernment raised USD 2 billion (Kshs 174

billion) from sovereign and Eurobond. money that was deposited into the Consolidated

Fund at the Cenlral Bank from offshore accounts. The proceeds from the bond was used

to pay offa syndicate loan.

4. He acted within the law when he instructed the Central Bank of Kenya to pay 53.2 billion
shillings to settle the syndicate loan proceeds lrom the Eurobond through an offshore

account.

The Committee observed that govemment has dollar accounts at CBK and it is unclear why the
Treasury chooses to deposit the money abroad.

PARA(;RAPH I F}' 20I.3/2OI{ - TINDER-EXPENDITTIRE

The Committee heard that the National Treasury Vote 107 summary statements of recunent and
development approprialion accounts reflects a total expenditure oi Kshs. 31.983. 056.143
incurred during the year against the net estimated expenditure of Kshs. 37, 504.330.886 resulting
in gross under expenditure of Kshs. 5.521,274.743. The reasons provided for the under-
expenditure include delay in submission of expenditure retums by the project coordinators,
lengthy procurement procedures. delay in recruitment of key stalf, delay in delivery of goods by
suppliers and lack of exchequer funding. The accuracy and compleleness ofthe total expenditure
and gross under-expendilure could not be ascertained due to apparent delay in receipt of
expenditure retums from the field and capture of the expenditure in the books olaccounts.

Response
The Principal Secretary informed the Committee that the reasons Ibr the under-expenditure, as

explained in the footnotes to the accounts include, delay by the development partners in
approving project activities, releasing project funds and availing expenditure retums for capture
in the accounts, delay in the project planning and procurement hence delays in the submission of
demand notes for payment, delays in recruitment of key staff for some activities, late
delivery/performance of goods and services merchants leading to submission of invoices towards
the end ofthe financial yeal and and lack olexchequer funding. among others.
ln addressing thes challenges the National Treasury is implementing the following interventions
among others:

(i) Established a Ministerial Budget lmplementation Committee to ensure timely and proper

utilization of budgeted lunds.



(ii) Ensuring project budgct and expenditure data are captured I electronic project

Monitoring Information System (eProMIS) for elficient reporling and control.
( iii)operationalizing the newly developed Extemal Policy Resources Policy document as well

as operationalizing the Joint Aid Effectiveness Group (AEG) resolution to harmonise
development partners' disbursement protocols with Govemment budgeting procedures so
as to improve absorption of donor funding.

(iv) Establishing multi-disciplinary Project Monitoring Unit comprising of technical project
managers. accountants. economists. ICT and supply chain management officers for
greater accountability and transparency in budget absorption, control, monitoring &
evaluation and reporting olproject expenditure;

(v) Authority to Incur Expenditure (AIE) to ljeld olficers are given early enough to give
enough time to enable them implement/programs projects. pay lor the same and produce
repo( in time.

PARAGRAPH 2 FY 2OI3I2III{ - OUTSTANI)IN(; IMPREST

l'he Committee heard that the National Treasury vote- 107 statemcnt of tlnancial assets as at 3Orh

June 2014 reflect an outstanding intprest balancc of Kshs. 2.123.643.80 which ought to have
been recot'ered ol accounted lbr on or belbre30lh June. 2014. No reasons have. however been
provided fbr lailure to surrender or account lbr thc imprests as ol'30th June. 2014. lrurther the
IFMIS report supporting the outslanding imprests balance was nol provided for audit review. In
the circumstances the accuracy and the completeness of'the outslanding, imprest balance of Kshs.
2.123,643.80 could not be conflrmed.

Response
The outstanding and an accounted lbr imprests as ar 30rh June 2014 of Kshs. 2.123.643.80
represents impresls issued toward the end ofthe linancial year and the activities being performed
were spilling over to 201412015 financial year.
Of the total, Kshs. 458.23.80 have already been accounted for and the outstanding balance is
being recovered fiom the delaulters salaries on monthly basis. For officers who have left the
Ministry, letters have been written to their respective ministries to assist in recovery process.
Treasury approval has been sought to write off imprests held by deceased olficres where chances
olrecovery from their estates are remote.
As a way imprest management, the National Treasury is implementing the following strategies:

(i) An imprest management system has been developed and installed. which is being
integrated with IFMIS to harmonize impresl management and facilitate deduction of
AITEATS:

(ii) Operationalization of the PFM Act which allows charging of any imprest held beyond the
stipulated time and implement the DPM circular that require oflicers going on transfer to
be lully cleared by the imprest section befbre they proceed on transfer.

(iii) Implementing a policy of effecting lull recovery of imprest liom the salaries ol the
detaulting officers and in addition barring del'aulting ollicers liom taking other impress
in future.



a

MIN. NO. 91712015: ADJOURNMENT
There being no other business. the meeting was adjoume'd at l2:50 pm.

Signcd Date. I
(l

I

q



MINT]TES OF-I'}IE TWO HLINDRED AND FOTiRTY SIXTH (2{6I'I } SITTING OF THE
PTIBLIC AC('OTINTS (]OMMITTEE HELD IN THE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT

t.
2.

J.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

t0

BUILDINGS ON TTiESDA Y 27.I'r 0CTOBER.2ol5 AT lo.ooAM

PIU..St..\'t'
Hon. Jackson K. Rop, MP - Vice Chairperson
Hon. Joseph Manje, MP
Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.G.H MP
Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi. MP
Hon. Arthur Odera. MP
Hon. Manson Nyamweya, MP
Hon. Mwadime Andrew. MP
Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu. MP
Hon. Timothy Bosire. MP
flon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae. MP

AP()LO(;tES
I . Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. MP - Chairperson
2. Hon. David Eseli. MP
3. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. MP
4. Hon. Kanini Kega, MP
5. Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP
6. Hon. Mathias Robi, MP
7. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, MP
8. Ilon. Kareke Mbiuki. MP
9. Ilon. Julius Melly. MP
10. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. MP
I l. Hon. Abdikadir Omar Aden. MP
12. Hon. Charles Mong'are Geni. MP
13. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.G.H.. MP
14. Hon. John Mbadi. MP
15. tlon. Jude Njomo, MP
I 6. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. MP
I 7. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. MP

IN ATTENI)AN('E:
NATIONAT- ASSEMI}I,Y
l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Mr. Douglas Katho

3. Ms. Winnie Kulei

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant l
Research Olficer

t



4. Mr. Collins Mahamba - Audio Officer

I'RN,ASI]RY
( ico I'liey Mwitari Parliamentary Liaison Olfi cer

0FFICE OT'THE ATII)I]'OR (;ENERAL
I . Joseph M. Karania

2. Raphael lkame

3. Simon Chibole
4. Joseph K. Irungu

5. Bonface Ong'wen
6. Calherin M. Mburu
7. Japheth Mangoka

Manager. Audit
Parl iamentary l.iaison Of'llcer
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit

MIN No. 9lE/2015: PRELIMINARIES
The sitting's proceedings commenced with a word ofprayer and thereafler introductions.

MIN No.9l9/2015: C()NFIRMATION OF MINtTTES
The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting.'l'here were lhus no matters arising

MIN No. 920/2015: EVlI)IINCE: MINISTRY Ot-INTERI()R AND ('()ORDINATION OF
NATIONAL GOVERNME,NT

-l hc Approrrriation Accounts, Othe r I'ublic Accounts and lhc Accounts of the I'unds firr thc
201.1/201-l Financial Year

Amb. Monica Juma, Principal Secretary. State department of Interior and Ms. Josepta

Mukobe, Principal Secretary. State Department of Coordination of Nalional Govemment

accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Maj Cen. Kihalangwa
( ii) Mr. Kimeu Maingi
(iii)Mr. John Munywoki
(iv)Ms. Judy Mwihaki
(v) Mr. Josphat K. Huka
(vi)Mr. JM Wambugu
(vii) Ms. M. W. Muthoni
(viii) Ms. Doris Kenyanl'a
(ix)Mr. William Mbaka
(x) Mr. Alexander Chege

Director. Immigration
Interior

lnterior
Interior
Kenya Prisons Service

National Police Service

National Police Service

MI&CNG
Coordination

Kenya Police Service



Coordination
Interior
Interior

Attomey General's Office

Appeared belore the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 82 on Loss of Revenue for Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund at various

Districts
(ii) Paragraph 83 on Proposed Construction of a Warehouse at Administration Police

training College - Embakasi (Tender No. NBI-DO I /04/20ll-2012)
(iii) Paragraph 84 on Accuracy of Financial Statements

(iv) Paragraph 85 on Irregular Purchases olResidential Houses and Commercial Units
(v) Paragraph 86 on Construction of Lokituang-Kachoda-Kibish Road at Turkana

North.
(vi) Paragraph 89 on Construction ol Administration Block at Sigomere Police Station,

Siaya County.
(vii) Paragraph 90 on lrregular payments by County Police Commander, Marsabit.
(viii) Paragraph 9l on Over Expenditure on Travel and Accomodation by District

Criminal Investigation Officer (DCIO), Nyakach District
(ix) Paragraph 92 on Unaccounted Fuel

(x) Paragraph 93 on Unexplained Obsolete Inventory at Govemment Press

(xi) Paragraph 94 on lnegular Purchases through cash
(xii) Paragraph 95 on Biogas Project at Kenya Prisons Service

MIN. NO.92 l/201 5Al).tOtrRNM ENT
The Vice-Chairperson adjourned the meeting at hall past one o' clock in the aftemoon. The next
meeting was scheduled to take place on 29th October. 2015 at l0am.

SI(;NED. I)ATE.,,.
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(xi)Mr. Charles Liyayi
(xii) Mr. Phillip M. Gathuya
(xiiit Mr. Phyllis A. Ouko
(xiv ) Mr. Waigi Kamau
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l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. I-lon.

7. I{on.

8. [-lon.

9. Hon.

10. llon.
ll. Hon.

I 2. Hon.

I 3. Hon.

14. Hon.

I 5. Hon.

16. Hon.

Jackson K. Rop, MP - Vice Chairperson
Joseph Manje. MP

Joel Onyancha, M.G.H MP

Conzi Rai, M.G.H., MP

Mwadime Andrew, MP

Sakwa Bunyasi, MP
David Eseli. MP

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, MP
Manson Nyamweya, MP
Timothy Bosire. MP

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. MP

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, MP - Chairperson
Kangogo Bowen. MP
Kanini Kega, MP

Stephen Manoti. MP
Mathias Robi. MP
Silvance Onyango Osele, MP

Kareke Mbiuki. MP

Julius Melly. MP

Jessica Mbalu. MP
Abdikadir Omar Aden. MP
Charles Mong'are Geni, MP

John Mbadi. MP

Jude Njomo. MP
Fathia Mahbub. MP
Arthur Odera. MP
Junet Sheikh Nuh. MP

IN ATTT]NI)ANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY
L Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Mr. Douglas Katho

3. Ms. Winnie Kulei

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant III
Research Officer

MINTITES OF THE TWO HI.]NDRED AND F()TIRTY SEVENTH (2{7III) SITTING OF

T}IE, PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HEl,D ON TI.]ESDAY.29I'I OCTOBER.20I5



4. Mr. Collins Mahamba - Audio Offlcer

OFFICIi OF THT] AUDITOR GENT]RAL
l. Mr. Raphael Ikame

2. Mr. Geofrey Wandabwa

3. Mr. Justin M. Rucha

4. Mr. Richard Otwori
5. Mr. Samuel Obonyo

Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit
Manager. Audit

TREASTIRY
1. Mr. Kabiru G.E.

2. Mr. Geof licy Mwilari
- The National 'freasurv

- The National Treasury

MIN No. 92ll20l5:. PIiELIMI NARIES
'I'he sitting's proceedings commenced wilh a word of'prayer and therealler introduclions.

MIN No.922/2015: ('ONFIRNIATION oF MINT:TES
lhc agentla itotr was tlclcrred (o tllc ne\t nrccting. l hcrc 'uvcrc thus no ntattcrs arisirrg.

lN No. 923/2015: I,.\'lDE\( t.: MINISTRY Ot- l.ABOlrR. SO(l IAL SECI]RITY ANI)\r
SERVICES

I'hc Annron riation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and thc Accounts of the l-unds for the
) 0l,l Financial Year

(i) Mr. Julius Mwangi
( ii) Mr. George N.ioroge

Senior Chief Finance Olficer. MoLSS.
P.A to PS. MoLSS

Mr. Ali Ismail. Principal Secretary. Ministry of Labour, Social and Security Services (MOLSS)
accompanied by Messrs.:-

Appeared belbre the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 374 on Under-collection olrevenue
(ii) Paragraph 375 on Unsupported Granls "l'ransfers lbr National Council fbr Children

Services (NCCS).

(iii) Paragraph 376 on In-accurate Opening Balances
(iv) Paragraph 377 on Failure to comply wilh Intemational Public Sector Accounting

Standards (IPSAS) on preparation of Statement olAssers.



(v) Paragraphs 378,379.380. 381, 382 on Inconect Opening Balances, Omission of
Advances in the Opening Balances, Fund Balance Brought Forward, Accounts

Payables. Outstanding lmprests.

(vi) Paragraph 383 - 395 on Donor Funded Projects.

'l'he .{nprorlriation Accounts, Other Puhlic Accounts and thc Accounts of the Funds for the

2013 l2llll 4 Financial Ycar

Dr. Eng. Karanja Kibicho. Principal Secretary, Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Intemational

Trade (MFA&IT ) accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Amb. D. Mutemin
( ii) Amb. E. Barine
(iii)Dr. Margaret Gachuru
(iv)Alice W. Cichu
(v) Lucy Mugwe
(vi)Njambi Kinyua
(vii) Robinson Otundi
(viii) Anthony Marinde
(ix)Lawrence Waweru

(x) Edith Nkatha

MtrA&l f
MTTA&I'I'

MITA&I'I'
Mt.'A&t't'
MFA&I'f
Mt.'A&t't'
MFA&I'f
MF'A&I'f
MFA&I'I'
MI]A&I'I'

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on

(iii)
( iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

Paragraph 153 on Unsupported Expenditure

Paragraph 154 on Unauthorized expenditure Paragraph 376 on In-accurate

Opening Balances

Paragraph 155 on Property Plant and Equipment

Paragraphs 156 on Irregular Procurement of Air Charter Transport Services

Paragraph 157 on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Paragraph I 58 on Amount withdrawn and not claimed.

Paragraph I 58 on Amount withdrawn and not claimed.

(i)
( ii)

MIN No. 92412015: EVIDENCE: MINISTRY OF FOREICN AFFAIRS AND
INTERNATIONAL TRADE



MIN. NO. 925/2015: ADJOURNMENT
The Vice-Chairperson adjoumed the meeting at half past two o' clock in the aftemoon. 'Ihe next
meeting was scheduled to take place on 2nd November. 201 5 at I Oam.

st(;N1I). .. DATE... { is.
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Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

A(hur Odera. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire, M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Joel Onyancha. M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Mathias Robi. M.P.

Chairman

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant II
Audio Recorder

,rP()t_(x;t Its
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.
9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

IN ATTI,]NI)ANCE
NA'I-IONAL ASSEMBI,Y

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Mr. Victor Weke

3. Mr. Collins Mahamba

MINUTES OF THE TWO HTINDRED AND FOT]RTY EI(;HTH (248I'I) SITTING OF
THE PTIBLIC ACCOI.INTS COMMITTEE, HELD ON MONDAY.2\D NOVEMBER.20I5
AT 3.OO P.M. IN COMMITTEE RoOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BI.lILDIN(;.

Vice- Chairman



NAI'IONAL TREASTiRY
1. Mr. Henry Rotich

2. Dr. Kamau 'Ihugge

3. Mr. Bemard Ndungu

4. Mr. J ulius Kilinda
5. Mr. (ieolliey Malonrbe

6. Mr. Geof fiev Mwitari

OFFICE OF THE CONTROLLER OF BUDGE,T

Cabinet Secretary. Treasury

Principal Secretary, Treasury

Accounlant Ceneral

Deputy Accountant Ceneral

Senior Assistant Accountant General

Chief Accountant/ Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

Controller of Budget

Deputy Controller of Budget

cFA (NC)

Manager

Manager

Deputy Auditor General

Manager. Audit
Manager, Audit
Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

\ll\ \o. 926/201 5: I'Rl,:l-ltl l\.\Rl l.-S
'l.he Chairman called the meeting to order at ten minutes past three o' clock in the aliemoon. A
prayer was said followed by introductions by all present.

MIN No.927l20l5z ('ONFIRMATI()N OF MINU'tES
'l'he agenda item was delerred to the next meeting. There uere thus no matters arising

MIN No.928/2015: EVIDENCE, ON TtlE LrSD.2 lllLLION 2011 SOVERE,IGN BONI)

Submission b) the (lontroller of Budgct

Mrs Agnes Odhiambo. lhe Controller oi lludget submitted as follows:

l. She appeared belore the Committee on the 22"d October 2015 and has re-appeared to

provide clarification on her evidence. She reiterated her submission and was not

recanting any lestimony. as had been reported in thc media.

2. The Controller of Budget received a request fiom Treasury on the payment ol the

Syndicated loan of Kes. 53.201 .344.900.00. She approved the rcquest alter perusal ol
loan documentation provided. awaiting availability of tunds for final approval of

1. Ms. Agnes Odhiambo

2. Mr. Stephen Masha

3. Mr. Patrick Kamore

4. Mr. Joseph Marigi
5. Mr. Waweru 'futi

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
1. Mr. Alex Nthiga Rugera -

2. Mr. D. M. Ndungu

3. Mr. Cl. M. Kinuthua

4. Mr. Raphael Ikame



payment. When the funds were available, the paymenl was done from an off-shore
account which she was not a signatory of. This approval of funds release was not
sought from her since she only controls the Consolidated Fund.

3. After payment, Treasury submitted vouchers fbr her reconciliation and she did so

only alier the Office of the Auditor General gave an unqualified opinion.
4. The balance ofthe Iunds after the loan retirement and bank charges was transferred to

the Consolidated Fund account to the tune ofKes. 196.916.669.3 16.00. She had been

approving the release for use of these f'unds on a need basis. together with other funds

from other sources. Total development exchequer issues to those ministries and

departments that received part of the Sovereign Bond was Kes. 204,104,1 18,010.00

for the financial year 2014115. She could however not separate Sovereign Bond funds

from those from other sources since releases are done at vote level and no1 for
specific programmes.

Submission by the Cabinet Secretary Treasury

Mr. Henry Rotich. the Cabinet Secretary Treasury submitted as flollows;

l. The country issued the Sovereign Bond in June, 2014 of USD 2 Billion. for purposes

ol general budget support including for funding infrastructure and for the repayment of
the Syndicated Loan amounting to US$ 600 million plus accrued interest of US$ 4.6
million. The interest rates were 5.9Yo for 5 years fbr USD 500 Million, and 6.9% tbr l0
years for USD I .5 Billion. Treasury subsequently retumed to the intemational market
and tapped an additional US$ 750 million at 5.3%.

2. The total USD 2.750 Billion was utilized as broken down belowl

Pa rticulars t st)
Translation
Ratc

Proceeds lrom Sovereign

Bond 2.000.000.000.00 ti7.00 r 74.000.000.000.00

*(947.127.031 87.00 (82.400.051 .61 )

Add Exchange gain on

translation | .239.412.781 .25

Less Bank charges and

Interest

I.Accounl
charges

Seltlenrenl
( 1s6.3e4.64) 88.00 (t3.762.728.32)

2,Inlerest Receipls 169.41 5.65 8n.00 14.908.577.20

Kshs

Less commissions

deducted at source



3.Federol
ll/irhheld

I lerest
(47.416.3tt) 8It.00 (4.17.+.401.4.i)

5.945.081.368.2 r

(22.386.652.89)

J. From the above" all proceeds liom the Sovereign Bond were accounted for and this

position was conflrmed by the Auditor General in his repo( tbr 2013/14

4. Section 50(7) (d) olthe Public Finance Management Act 2012 and Section 45(d) ofthe
Central Bank ofKenya Act allows Treasury to settle all loan proceeds conditionalities

at source and remit the net to the Consolidated I'und.

lt is with this legal fiamework in mind that the National Treasury proceeded to pay an

amount of Kshs.53.2 billion to settle the Syndicate Loan. One ol the pre-negotiate'd

expenses ofraising the Sovereign llond was fbr the settlement of the syndicated loan.

This was specifically provided in the Sovereign Bond prospectus.

5. National Treasury instructed the Central Bank of Kenya (CBK) as the fiscal agent of
the Govemment to pay an amount of US$600 million lbr the syndicate loan plus

accrued interest of LjS$ 4.6 million.

(s3.20)

196.92

Net Sovcreign Bond I 76,3 12,81 7,500.8tt

750.000.000.00 90.-s I 67.882.500.000.00

Proceeds from Tap

Sale:Face/Par Value

Proceeds t'rom Tap Sale

Premium 65.684.271 .00 90.51

Less commissions

deducted at source (247.33e.00) 90.51

Nct Tap sales 7-j,tt05,196,715.-i2

250,118,01.t,216.20Nct llond Procecds

Note: The value of Tap Sales was US $ :750,000,000.00(This is what G.O.K will repay)

but was sold at a premium to realize tlS S:815,684,271.00

Kshs.( Iln)
Total Proceeds Sovcreign and 1'ap Salcs: Net 250. l2
Less Syndicated Loan

Amounl l)isbursed to M I)A's

I

I

I

Add Exchange gain on 
I

translation I I ,.,rr.rrr.rrr.*o

I

I

l

I

I

T

I

I
I

I

I

I



6. This saved the Govemmenl Kshs.l.2 billion in terms of converting the US dollars to

Kenya Shillings and then back to US dollars. The contract documents required that

the Syndicated Loan be repaid within seven days of receipt ol'proceeds from the

Sovereign Bond.

7. The Controller of Budget had approved the initial payment when it was uncertain that

Kenya would be able to access the Intemational market to float the Sovereign Bond.

When it became clear that we would be able to access the intemational market. the

earlier plan to pay the Syndicated Loan from govemment resources was abandoned in
favour of using the Sovereign Bond Proceeds.

8. The National Treasury designated two signatories to the off-shore account with respect

to the Sovereign Bond Accounq Mr. Benard Ndungu and Mr. Julius Kilinda. the

Accountant General and Deputy Accountant General respectively.

9. There was a marked impact on specific macro-economic indicators following issuance

ofthe Sovereign Bond in 2014: domestic liquidity improved as Government reduced

its demand for resources f'rom the domestic debt market. Short term interest rates

declined and remained within a stable range in the period June 2014 to May 2015.

The 9l-day Treasury bill rate that largely reflects the Govemment's borrowing

declined from an average of 9.8 per cent in June 2014 to 8.3 per cent in June 2015.

There was a significant increase in the foreign exchange reserves ofthe Central Bank

of Kenya lrom US$ 6,498 million (4.3 months of import cover) to US$ 8.555 million
(5.7 months of import cover) in June 2014.

10. The Kenya Shilling exchange rate depreciated less than many other currencies. In the

period January 2014 to September 2015. by only 22.1 per cent compared with 36.9

per cent for Tanzania Shilling, 45.2 per cent for the Uganda Shilling, 29.8 per cent for
the South African Rand and 85.1 for the Turkish Lira.

I l. Inflation in the period June 2014 to date has remained low, stable and within target.

Overall month on month inflation declined from 8.36 per cent in August 2014 to 5.5

per cent in January 2015. Without the Sovereign Bond, macro-indicators would have

been much worse.

12. The necessity to open an olf-shore or in-shore or special deposit bank accounts is

dictated by the conditions precedent to access the funds based on specific credit

agreements and these accounts are specific to that credit agreement and the

development project being financed. In addition. it is also important to appreciate that

all funds held in off-shore or in-shore or special deposit accounts are channelled

through the National Exchequer Account. where authority to withdrawal funds is

sought and provided lor by the Controller of Budget before any funds are released to

MDA's for the project implementation.

13. The Auditor General and independent donor auditors audit both the off-shore. in-

shore and special bank accounts each year since they hold public resources.



14. The Govemment was represented in the Sovereign Bond transaction by Amold &
Porter. and Anjwarlla & Khana advocales.

15. The Covemment is not broke but they are simply matching revenue to expenditure.

The Committee gave the Cabinet Sccrctary 3 days to submit all loan documentation.

MIN No. 929 12015:- AD.lOt lRN M EN'l'

There being no other business. the sitting adjoumed at thirty minutes past seven o'clock in the
evening. Next sitting to be held on 3'd November. 201 5 at I 0.00 am

srGNul) DATE.... 2e.lI

Chairpe



MINT]TES OF THE TWO I{UNDRED AND FOTIRTY NINETH (2.I9TI') SITTIN(; OF
THE PT]BLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON TI.IESDAY. 3RD NOVEMBER.
20I5 AT IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9, MAIN PARLIAMENT BT]ILDING.

PRESENT
l. Flon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.

2. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.

3. Hon. Jude Njomo. M.P.

4. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

5. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.

6. Hon. Kanini Kega. M.P.

7. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

8. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

9. Hon. David Eseli. M.P.

10. FIon. Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

I l. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

12. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.

13. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

14. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

15. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Chairman

Vicc- (lhairman

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer

IN ATTENDAN('E:
NATIoNAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Victor Weke

3. Mr. Winnie Kulei

APOLOGIES
I . Hon. Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

2. Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.P.
3. Hon. Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
4. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

5. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.
6. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

7. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

8. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.
9. Hon. lVlanson Nyamweya, M.P.

10. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

I l. Hon. Johr Mbadi. M.P.

12. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.



4. Mr. Collins Mahanrba Audio recording Officer

()l.'t-I( [. ()r- 1'IIt,. ,\r. l)I't ()li. (;I.]\1..l{At.
1. Ms. Jane Kariuki
2. Mr. Peter Ndungu

3. Mr. Evans Ondari

4. Mr. Raphael lkame

Manager Audit
Senior Supervisor. Audit
Assistant Manager Audit
Parliamentary Liaison Otficer

MIN No. 930/2015: PRI|'l.l MINAI{l ES

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past ten in the morning and read

the prayer. lntroductions by all present followed.

MIN No. 9-il/2015: CONFIRMATION ol'MlNtrl't,ts

MIN No. 93212015: EVII)ENCE: MINISTR\'OF DEVOLITT'lON ANI) PLANNING

Eng, Peter Ongaga Mangiti. Principal Secretary. State Department of Planning. Ministry of
Devolution and Planning accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Nelson Githinji
( ii) Ms. Clare Liwali
(iii)Mr. Sammy Mbugua
(iv)Mr. Peter Mwita
(v) Mr. Julius Korir
(vi) Mr. Geollrey Chege

(vii) Mr. Patrick Njagi
(viii) Mr. Kobia Wakamau
(ix) Mr. Salim Ali Molla
(x) Mr. Peter Mokubo
(xi) Mr. Charles Mwirigi
(xii) Mr. Paul Wangai

Fund

(xiii) Mr. James Sagwe

Director General. NYS
- Deputy Director General. NYS
Principal Accounts Controller
Deputy Chief Finance Officer
Industrialization Secretary

Senior Accountant
SNCCC, Planning

- S/ASALs
SEC/SP

Principal Accounts Controller
Ag. CEO. Women's Enterprise Fund

Dep. Manager Finance & A/C, Women's Enterprise

CSCM()

NATIONAL TREASURY
Mr. Geollrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant/ Parliamentary [,iaison OfIcer

'[he agenda item was defened to the next meeting. There were thus no matlers arising.

'l'he Annronriation Accounts. Othcr I'ublic Accounts anrl thc Accounts of thc l.unds for thc
201-1/201{ }-inancial Year



(xiv) Mr. Alfred Diru
(xv) Ms. Clare Nyabere
(xvi) Mr. David Kiboi

PA to PS, Planning

Ag. Credit Manager. Women's Enterprise Fund

C.E

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 123 on Prior Year Matters
(ii) Paragraph 124 on Lack ofa Trial Balance

(iii) Paragraph 125 on Unsupported Comparative Figures for 201212013

(iv) Paragraph 126 on Unexplained Variances
(v) Paragraph 127 on Variances between Actual and Budget figures
(vi) Paragraph 128 on Unsupported Assets

PT]NDIN(; ISST]ES
(i) Paragraphs 124 on Lack of a Trial Balance and 125 on Unsupported

Comparative Figures for 201212013

The matter remained outstanding as the auditors confirmed the issue ran across

govemment. The Committee asked T reasury to resolve the IFMIS shortcoming

that limited Accounting Officers ability to have proper books ofaccounts.

Paragraph 127 on Variances between Actual and Budget figures
The matter remained unresolved until Treasury transfers the budget of these

expenditures to the rightful ministries
Paragraph 128 on Unsupported Assets

l'he matter remained unresolved as the Commiltee took issue with the availed asset

register containing non-asset items. The register also had items quoted at

seemingly exorbitant quotations purchased by the Ministry.

( ii)

(iii)

MIN No. 9-13/2015:- ADJOTTRNMENT

The meeting adjoumed at 12.00 pm until 3.00 pm in the aftemoon to allow the Accounting
Officer time to provide a proper asset register, even as the Committee examined the one before

them. The Accounting Officer was also inslructed to retum accompanied by the Principal
Secretary, State Department of Devolution.

l-ilATE i(.hai
SIGNED...
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Audio recording OlIccr



Appeared betbre the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 128 on LJnsupported Assets

PENDING ISSUES
(D Paragraph 128 on Unsupported Assets

The matter remained unresolved as the Committee did not accept the content and

fidelity of the figures quoted in the provided asset register. The Committee
directed the Accounting Officer to re-appear on Wednesday 4'h November, 2015 at

2.30 pm accompanied by the Principal Secretary, State Department of Planning.

The Cabinet Secretary would also be required to respond to matters directly
touching on her ofIce.

MIN No. 936/201 5:- ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjoumed at thirty minutes past six in the evening. Date of next sitting was set as 4th

November. 2 5 at 10.00 am.

st(;\EI). DATE... zolS
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NATIONAI, TREASURY
Mr. (icollrey Mwitari ('lr icl' Accountant

MIN No. 9-1,1/20I 5: PRELIMINA RIIi]S
The session Chairperson called the meeting to order at fifteen minutes past eleven in the

moming. A prayer was said followed by introductions by all present.

l\l I N No. 935/201 5: ('()NFl RMATI()N ()F M I N tlTES

MIN No. 9-16/2015: EvIDENCE tlY THE ('ABINET SE('RETARY, MINISTRY Ol'
lNI-ERIOR O:- PROCLtRIIMEN't ()l' AI{MS, OVllllHALrl. ()F POl.l( E ('HOPPIiRS

AND SMART NTIMI}ER PLATES.

Mr. Joseph Nkaissery. Cabinct Secretarl Ministry' of Intcrior accompanied by Messrs.:-

iii.
iv.

vi.

vii.
viii
ix.

Amb. (Dr.) Monica Juma -

Ms. Josepta Mukobe

Covt.
Mr. Saitoti Maika
Mr. Josphat ltuka
Mr. John Munywoki
Ms. Caroline Wachira

Mr. Paul Muthangya

Ms. Edith Fortunate

Ms. Judv Mwihaki

Senior Advisor to CS

Ag. Commissioner General Prisons

Senior Chief Finance Olficer
SAD/SCM. Interior
AS. Interior

Advisor to PS Interior
Legal Officer. Interior

Appeared befbre the committee and submitted as tbllows:

Ovcrhaul of Helicoptcrs

L That on the matter of overhaul ofthe Mil7 Helicopters, the tender was cancelled on 22nd

April. 2015 in daily newspapers pursuant to Public Procurement and Disposals Act 2005

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
1. Mr. Lamech Achika - Director of Audit
2. Mr. Joseph M. Karan ja- Senior Supervisor of Audit
3. Mr. Simon Clhibole - Manager Audit
4. Mr. Raphael Ikame - Parliamentary l-iaison Otficer

1'he agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

Principal Secretary. Interior
Principal Secretary. Co-ordination of Nat.



Section 36 (1,2,3 &5). This was necessitated by change in Government policy to online
tendering/ e-procurement, as well as the delay ofthe supplemenlary budget.

The ministry then used direct procurement due to the urgency that followed. The country

was attacked by terrorists on 2nd April,2015 in Garissa, as well as police operations in

Kapedo. Nadome and Mandera. driving the need for urgent police mobility and improved
capacity. This was in line with the general modernization programme of the security

apparatus which included vehicles, housing, equipment and the helicopters.

The Cabinet Secretary wrote to the embassies of United States of America, China and

Russia and copied Kenyan embassies in those countries. seeking information on

manufacturers of the MilT helicopters. There were no known local agents, and this
necessitated the direct contact with the embassies.

After quotations were received. the ministry settled on Russia. the manul'acturers of the

MilT helicopters. The company had supplied the same machines to Mozambique, DRC,
and Tanzania regionally. The Cabinet Secretary spoke to the company's president who

told him they only dealt in brand new manufacture. but gave him 3 names of licensed

companies in Belarus. Czech and Ukraine who did overhaul.

Lom praha of Czech was contracted, and they obtained a certiflcate from the

manufacturers in Russia. Their engineers came to Kenya and did the dismantling of two
choppers here (The CS endeavoured to produce the report). Afier delivery of the two.
the other one will go for the overhaul, ensuring overlap and availability of at least one

chopper at any given time. Overhaul oflhe two helicopters is in progress and are due for
delivery in early January. 2016. Air r.r'ing engineers in Kenya are capable ofassessing and

certifying soundness of the exercise. and will go on site lor pre-shipment inspection and

flight test.

The overhaul (P4) involves the engine, avionics and the frame. to almost new. This costs

Kes. 1.3 Billion for the three choppers with a 5 year life guarantee. There was minimal
payment during the last financial year due to cash flow problems at Treasury flhe PS

promised to provide the exact figure paid so far, as well as the company's guarantee
and overhaul certificate). A new MilT troop carrier helicopter costs USD. 2l Million.

Procurcmcnt of Firearms

7. On the allegation of procurement of 2nd hand arms. the Cabinet Secretary said that the

ministry does not deal in 2"d hand arms and the allegation is thus false. There are no
'friendly' firms at the ministry and the CS dismantled cartels shuttling between

Harambee House and Harambee House Annex when he took oflfice, including one

persistent one who he finally wamed against lobbying at the ministry.
8. The tender was awarded to a reputable and production of firearms is ongoing. A team is

being prepared to travel for pre-shipment inspection and two Members of the Committee
can accompany them.

4
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Procurement of Number Platcs

9. The process of procurement of smart number plates was conceived in 2007 through a

cabinet memo through the Vice-President and Minister for Home Affairs and the

Ministry ol Transport. The former was to procure smarl number plates while the latter
was mandated 1o produce smart driving licenses. The Ministry of Home Affairs wrote to
PPOA seeking to directly procure the number plates and this was declined. Kenya prisons

could not raise the Kes. 150 million required for this venture and the programme paused.

10. ln 2013. the State Department ol Coordination revived the project starting with a study
tour in September 2014 to a company in South Alrica called Uniplate. This company was

the only known manutbcturer of smart number plate blanks in Africa. The ministry leamt
about this company through the intemet and they initiated contact. They were invited by
the company and they went at the Ministry's cost. The trip was a fact finding mission and

the delegation comprised Mr. Josphat Ituka, a Mr. Langat and a Mr. Aluda. They
produced a report whose main discovery was that the equipment sought cost Kes. 15

million and not as earlier thought as expensive.

I l. With this inlormation gathered and specifications, the ministry advertised an intemational
tender no. KPS/T/8/201 3-2014 for supply. delivery. installation, commissioning and

training fbr 2 number plate embossing machines. radius cutting machine and a roller
machine. 8 firms participated and Tropical technologies won the tender at a cost of Kes.

15.295.500.

12. Tropical technologies supplied. installed and tested the machines but failed to train and

commission. This was because they wanted to directly procure equipment at a cost of
Kes. 760 million. This was declined leading to stalling of the contract in September,

2014.
13. The ministry engaged the company and they signed an addendum to the contract with

effect from 29th June 2015 to 29'h September 2015 lor training and commissioning
aspects.

14. The activity is yet to be completed and the ministry has not paid the contractor any

monies.

MIN No. 937/201 5:- ADJOI-IRNMENT
There being no other business. the sitting adjoumed at t\r'enty minutes past two in the aftemoon.
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4. Mr. Collins Mahamba

NATIONAL TREASI.IR}'
Mr. Geollrey Mwitari

Audio Rccorder

C'hicl' Accountanl

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GE,NERAL
1. Ms. Jane Kariuki
2. Mr. Peter Ndungu

3. Mr. Evans Ondari

4. Mr. Raphael lkame

Manager Audit
Senior Supervisor. Audit
Assistant Manager Audit
Parl iamentary [.iaison Olfi cer

MIN No. 938/2015: PRF.,LIMINARIES
The session Chairperson called the meeting to order at three o' clock in the aftemoon. A prayer

was said followed by introductions by all present.

The Committee clarifled that it had not olficially invited the Cabinet Secretary as the Standing
Orders required invites in writing with a 7- day notice. The Cabinet Secretary was at liberty to
take the 7 days. but elected to respond to specific matters canied by the media attributed to her
person.

MIN No.939/2015: CONFIRMATION OF MINIITES
The agenda item was def'erred to the next meeting.'fhere were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 9.10/2015: EVIDEN('E IIY THI.I CAI}INET SECRETARY. MINISTRY OT'

Ms. Anne Waiguru. Cabinet Secrelary Ministry of Devolulion and Planning accompanied by

Messrs.:-

(i) Eng. Peter Mangiti
( ii) Ms. Mwanamaka Mabruki
(iii)Mr. Nelson Githinji
(iv)Ms. Clare Liwali
(v) Mr. Sammy Mbugua
(vi)Mr. Peter Mwita
(vii) Mr. Julius Korir
(viii) Mr. Geollrey Chege

(ix)Mr. Patrick Njagi
(x) Mr. Kobia Wakamau
(xi)Mr. Salim Ali Molla

Principal Secretary. Planning

Principal Secretary. Devolution
Director General. NYS
Deputy Director General, NYS
Principal Accounts Controller
Deputy Chief Finance Officer
Industrial ization Secretary

Senior Accountant

S/NCCC. Planning

S/ ASALs
SECiSP

DEVoLT]-TIoN AND PI-ANNI N(;



(xii) Mr. Peter Mokubo
(xiii) Mr. Charles Mwirigi
(xiv) Mr. Paul Wangai

Fund

(xv) Mr. James Sagwe

(xvi) Mr. Alfred Diru
(xvii) Ms. Clare Nyabere
(xviii) Mr. David Kiboi

CSCMO
PA to PS, Planning

Ag. Credit Manager. Women's Enterprise Fund

C.E

Appeared before the committee and submitted as lbllows;

l. The Cabinet Secretary is not the Accounting Officer of the Ministry. She could thus not

respond to specific audil queries. Her role in the minislry included policy formulation.
direction and coordination. The Principal Secretaries were responsible for administration.
This was in line with Article 226 (2) of the Constitution and Section 68 (l&2) of the

Public Finance Management Act 2012.

2. On matters accounting, the Principal Secretary directly repo(s to the Cabinet Secretary

Treasury, and as such she had not even seen the ministry's response to the Committee.

Information she had gathered fiom the Principal Secretaries however was that the

response to lhe committee was inaccurate.

3. She is not involved in procurement and financial matters and cannot tell the prices of
goods and services procured by the ministry. When such matters came to her attention

she called for investigation with the relevant agencies as was the case with the NYS. This
enthusiasm may have been their undoing as failure to report may have saved the ministry
the scandals currently unearthed.

4. Her role in the Huduma Centres was largely policy, including the number of centres and

services to be provided therein. She is the face of the projects as she pushes the

government agenda. The details of procurement within these centres are administrative
and handled by the accounting officer.

5. Mr Dennis Mutuku. the Head ol Secretariat Huduma Kenya said that the initial standard

designs ol the centres were done by UNES as a blueprint. These were then replicated

according to space limitations. Depa(ment of public works supervised the first 4
constructions. with UNES supervising the next 10. The next round of 20 centres were

being implemented by the National Construction Authority. who confirmed that there

was a provision in their Act that allowed this.

6. Eng. Peter Mangiti requested two weeks lor the ministry to be allowed to produce an

accurate response.

Principal Accounts Controller
Ag. CEO, Women's Enterprise Fund

Dep. Manager Finance & A./C, Women's Enterprise



t

MIN No. 941/2015:- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business. the sitting adjoumed at twenly minutes past five in the aftemoon.
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\ll\ \o. 9{2/201 S: I'l{[.1.] \ll\.\ltlt.s
The Chairperson called thc nreeting to order at thirty minutes past two o' clock in the allernoon
A prayer was said followed by introductions b,v all present.

The Chairman infomred the meeting that the Principal Secretary Ministry of Environment and

Natural Resources had at the last minute sought a reschedule of his meeting with the Committee

on the 2013/14 Auditor General's report due to unavoidable circumstances. The Committee

resolved to accept his request and rescheduled his appearance to a later date to be communicated.

MIN No. 9{-ll201 5: CON t-l RMA'I'lON OF M I N LITES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No.944/2015: ANY OTHEll. BUSINESS

l'he Chairman intbrmed the Committee that he had received a letter from the Chief
Justice addressed to the Speaker and copied to the Committee. among other

recipients. He read out the letter whose import was to point out certain 'incorrect'

conclusions in the report.

'l'he Chairman lurther infonned the Committee that the report would most likely be

slotted in the week ordcr paper and there was the need lor the Committee to come up

with a common position in light of the letter liom the Chief Justice.

The Committee resolved to stand by its findings and recommendations since they

were guided by lacts presented at the timc of dratiing the report. Moreover. the

Committee notcd that the Chief Justice was lormally invited to appear belore the

Committee but sought to informally consult the Spcaker ol the National Assembly.

culminating in his failure to appear. 'fhe Committee could thus not be liable tbr his

failure to honour its invitation.

The Committee concluded that f'acts adduced after tabling would only be considered

as amendments to the report during debate in the floor ol lhe I-Iouse. or through the

courts. l'owards this end. the secretarial was tasked to establish whether the Judiciarv
had been tabling its report to the House as is required.

I. REPORT ON TIIE.ITIDICIARY ANI).IS(]



2, COMPT,AINTS BY THE C]ABINET SECRETARY JoST]PH NKAISSERY ON
LEAKED PROCEEDINGS

The Committee noted the Cabinet Secretary for Interior and Coordination of National

Govemment's address to the media complaining of leaked proceedings held in
camera. The meeting also noted that the CS had written to the Speaker on the same.

The Committee resolved that it was not responsible for this leakage since the subject

letler was partly read in public by the session Chairman before the CS requested for
camera proceedings. Furthermore. the Committee did not see any confidential matters

being disclosed even during the camera proceedings.

The Committee resolved that as much as it would protect confidential security

information brought before it. this should not be a pretext for cover up of
malfeasance.

MIN No. 9{5/2015:- AD.IOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjoumed at fifty minutes past four in the aftemoon.

Next sitting to be held on I Oth November, 201 5 at I 0.00 am

SIGNED... t)A't'E
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15. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

16. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

17. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

18. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

I 9. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

APOLO(;IES
l. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

2. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P
3. Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

4. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.
5. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

6. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

7. Hon. Jude Njomo. M.P.

8. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

L Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Victor Weke

3. Ms. Chelagat Tungo

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

MINTjTES OF THE TWO HT]h'DRE,D AND FIFTY FOT]RTH (25{I'I) SITTING ()F THE
PT]BLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTE,E HELD ON TUESDAY. IOI'' NOVEMBER.20IS AT
IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDIN(;.



4. Mr. Chelanga Maiyo
5. Mr. Rogers Kilungya

Research OfIcer
Audio Recorder

NATIONAL TREASTIRY
Mr. Geofficy Mwitari ('hielAccountant/ Parliamentarv I-iaison Officer

OT-FICE ()T' I'HT, ATII)ITOR (;ENERAI-
1. Mr. Boniface Mulli -

2. Mr. J.M. Njuru
3. Mr. Raphael lkame -

Ag. Director. Audit
Audit Manager

Parliamentarv [.iaison Of ficer

MIN No. 9'16/2015: PRELIMINARIES
I'he Vice- Chairman called the meeting to order at fifteen minutes past ten o' clock in the

nroming. A prayer was said followed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 917/2015: ('ONFIRNIATIOT- (X MI\LrIES
The agenda item was delened to the next meeting.'l'here werc thus no matters arising

The Aooroorialion .,lccourtls. Other Public Accounls and lhe Accounls of lhe I'-unds for the
20 I 3/20 I 4 l-inancial I'ear

Eng. John Mosonik. Principal

accompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Mr. Philip Wachira

1ii.1 Ms. Leah Kimemia
(iii)Mr. Benard A. Masiga-

(iv)Mr. G. A Kamasara

1v) Mr. John Owana

1vi)Mr. Kennedy (Jsoro -

lvii) Mr. J.M. Kiraita

t viii) Mr. J.K. M*angi
(ix)Mr. Moses Maina
(x) Eng. C. N. Makau
(xi)Eng. David A. Muchilwa-

Mr. James Bowe'n

(xii) Mr. Chanje Kera

txiii) Mr. Dan Manyasi

Secretary of Ministry of Transpo( and Infrastructure

Senior Deputy I;inance Oflicer
Principal Accountant

Senior Chief Finance Olficer
Senior Chief Finance Officer
Senior Finance Officer
Finance Officer
Deputy Accountant
Principal Accountanl

D.S.

Manager, KENI"IA

Ag. General Manager, KENHA
General Manager. Finance, KENHA
Finance Manager, KENHA
Ag. Finance Manager. KERRA

MIN No. 948/2015: EViDENCE: MINISTRY OF TRANSPORT AND
INFRASTRUCTURE



Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:-
(ii) Paragraph 232 on Accuracy ofFinancial Statements

(iii) Paragraph 233 on Unsupported Receipts and Payments

PENDTN(; tSSt jIiS

(i) Parasraphs 232 and 233 on Accuracy of Financial Statements. and Unsupoorted

Receipts and Payments resoectivelv

The Committee noted with concem that the responses given by the Accounting
Officer were not satisfactory, and did not respond to issues raised.

T'he Committee resolved to give the Accounting Officer one (l) week to prepare a

satisfactory response to all the audit queries.

MIN No. 9.19/2015:- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business. the sitting adjoumed at len minutes to one o'clock in the

aftemoon. Next sitting to be held on l2'h November,2015 at 10.00 am

SIGNED.. DATE... 2a1 I('hai



MINUTES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY F H t
N

PUBLIC ACCOI.]NTS CoMMITTEE (PAC) HELD ON MONDAY. I6 NOVEMI]T]R.
2

20I5 IN CoMMITTE,E RoOM 9, MAIN PARLIAMENT BT]ILDINC, AT.1.OO P.M.

PR ES }]\T'
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Joseph Manje. M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.
John Mbadi. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.
Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P

APOLOGIES
l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

2. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

3. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.
4. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

5. Hon. Andrew Mwadime. M.P

6. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.

7. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.

8. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

9. Hon. David Eseli. M.P.

10. Hon. Abdikadir Aden. M.P.
I I . Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.
12. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

13. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. M.P.
14. Hon. Joel Onyancha, M.P.
15. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

16. Hon. Kanini Kega. M.P.

17. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

Vice- Chairman

Chairman

Principal Clerk Assistant
Clerk Assistanl II
Clerk Assistant II
Audio Recorder

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Victor Weke
3. Ms. Chelagat Tungo
4. Mr. Colins Mahamba



OFFICE OF THE AI.IDITOR GENE,RAL
I . Mr. Benard Maina
2. Ms. Katherine Kaburu-
3. Mr. Raphael Ikame
4. Mr. Nuh Abass

ChielAccountant/ Parliamentary [.iaison Olficer
Senior Accountant

Auditor
Auditor
Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer
Auditor

MIN No. 950/2015: PRELIMINARIE,S
The Vice- Chairman called the meeting to order at three o' clock in the aftemoon. A prayer was

said followed by introductions by all present.

\llN No. 95l/2015: ( ()\I lRll.{I'l()\ ()l \ll\l 'l l.ls
'I'he agenda itcnr was dcl'crrcd to the ncxt mccting.'l hcrc werc thus no nrattcrs arising.

MIN No.95-1/2015: EVIDENCE: MINISTRY OF DEFEN('E

The Approprialion Acconrtls, Other Public .lccou,tls and the Accou,rts of the Funds for lhe
20 I 3/20 I 4 Financial l'eur

Mr. Kiritu M. Wamai, EBS. Ag Principal Secretary of Ministry of Defence accompanied by
Messrs.:-

(i) Lt. Gen. Kasaon

( ii) E.N. Murimi
(iii) C.K Muhia
(iv) Brg. R.G Kabage
(v) Brg. C.R. lmanene
(vi) Col. J.A. Ouda
(vii) G.F. Sakwa

Appeared belbre the committee and gave evidence on:-
i. Paragraph 144 on Mismanagement of Imprest at the Ministry ol' Delence

ii. Paragraph 145 on Unaccounted lbr Expenditure Relating to Intemational Studies

iii. Paragraph 145 a) on Unsupported Payment Imprest

iv. Paragraph 145 b) on Direct Expenditure

v. Paragraph 145 c) on Overpayment ofAllowances
vi. Paragraph 145 d) on Irregularities in Procurement of Library Books for Kenya

Navy T'raining School

vii. Paragraph 146 a) on Proposed Completion of Manied Officers Quarters Mqs at

9KR Eldoret: Award olContract and Contract Period

viii. Paragraph 146 b) on Payments

NATIONAL TREAST]RY
l. Mr. Geolfrey Mu'itari
2. Ms. Jane Njogu



tx.

x.

xi.
xii.

xiii.
xiv.

xv.
xvi.

xvii.
xviii.

Paragraph 146 c) on Audit Inspection

Paragraph la6 c) (i) on Open Storm Water drain
Paragraph 146 c) (ii) on Intemal Plumbing Works and intemal drainage

Paragraph 146 c) (iii) on Quality ofpaint
Paragraph 146 c) (iv) on Roofing and rain water disposal

Paragraph 147 a) on Proposed Mechanical Piping and Associated Civil Work for
Strategic Fuel Tanks; Background

Paragraph 147 b) on Award ofcontract
Paragraph 147 c) on Scope of Works

Paragraph 147 d) on Audit inspection

Paragraph 148 a) on Audit of Financial Statements; Inappropriate Presentation and

Disclosure ofthe Statement of Receipt and Payments

Paragraph 148 b) On Inaccuracy of statement of Assets

Paragraph 148 c) on Inaccuracy ofAccount Balance

Paragraph 148 d) on Other Receipts from UN and Deposits

Paragraph 148 e) on Understatement of Revenue

Paragraph 148 f) on Unsupported Clearances

xix.
xx.

xxi.
xxii.

xxlu.

P[.\t)tN(; tsstrt.]s
( ii) Parasranhs l,l5 c) on OverDavment of Allowances:

The Auditor informed the Committee that they had a problem with the systems pul
in place at the Ministry regarding issuing of imprest 10 one person in a team when
travelling instead of issuing to each individual to cater for themselves.
The Accounting Officer was requested to prepare tabulation and allocate figures
against expenditure indicating amounts paid to each individual officer.

(iii) Parasranh l{6 a. b and c on all issues queried
The Committee noted with concem thal the responses given by the Accounting
Officer were not satisfactory. and did not respond to issues raised.
The Committee resolved to make a site visit of the premises in order to ascertain
the conditions and state ofthe structures belore making a determination.

There being no
evening. Next si

other business. the sitting adjourned at twenty minutes past six o'clock in the
ing to be held on I 7th November, 20t 5 at l0 00 am

stCNEt).. t)ATE...
{

L
Cha

MIN No. 95.1/2015:- ADJOURNMENT

*t^





MINIITES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND FIFTY SIXTH (256III) SITTING OF THE

I'RI.]SI'NT
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I [. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

I 5. Hon.

16. Hon.

I 7. Hon.

I 8. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Julius Melly. M.P.

Kanini Kega. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.

David Eseli. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.
John Mbadi. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

Timothy Bosire, M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Chairman

Vice- Chairman

Principal Clerk Assistant

Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II

APOLo(;IES
I . Hon. Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

2. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

3. Hon. Jude N jomo. M.P.

4. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

5. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.

6. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

7. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

8. Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.P.

9. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

IN ATTENDAN(]8,:
NATIONAL ASSEMI}LY

I . Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Chelagat Tungo

3. Mr. Victor Weke

PT]BLIC ACCOTIN'I'S (]OMMITTEE HEI,I) ON THTlRSDAY. I9I'I NoVEMBER.20IS
AT IO.OO A.M, IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT I}I.I!LDING.



4. Mr. Rogers Kilungl a

NATIONAL TREASTlR}'
Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari Chief Accountant/ Parliamentarv Liaison Offi cer

MIN No. 955/2015: PRELIMINARIES
The Chairman called the meeting to order at ten minutes pasl ten o' clock in the moming. A
prayer was said lbllowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No.956/2015: ('ONFIRMATION OF MINtTTES
fhe agenda item was defened to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. 957/2015: EVlt)llNCE: NATIONAL IN'TELLICENCE SERVI('ll

The Annropriation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the
21ll3l20l 4 Financial Ycar

Maj. Gen. (Rtd) Philip Kameru. Director General. National Intelligence Service accompanied
by Messrs.:-

(i) Ms. Agnes Shikuku
( ii) Mr. Nyamasyo Ndola
( iii) Mr. Bemard Lutomia

Director. Administration
Head of Finance

Finance Officer

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 5 l9 on Outstanding lmprest
(ii) Paragraph 520 on Advance to Ministry of F'oreign Aft-airs

ALrtlio ltecordcr

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
1. Mr. Bemard Maina - Manager Audit. NIS
2. Mr. Elkana Otieno Obudho - Manager Audit. NIS
3. Mr. Isaac Ngayai - Manager Audit. Commission fbr Implementation of

Constitution
4. Mr. George Otieno Nashon - Manager Audit. Ministry ol Sports

5. Mr. Kennedy Ochieng Riba - Manager Audit. Ministry olSports
6. Mr. Raphael lkame - Parliamentary Liaison Officer



Mr. Joseph Nyonje Kosure. Chief Executive Officer. Commission for the Implementation of
the Constitution accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Fredrick Oromo
( ii) Mr. James Oundo

(iii)Ms. Christine Ojode
(iv) Ms. Margaret Akutekha
(v) Ms. Rose Mghoi Macharia

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 522 on Outstanding Imprests and Advances

(ii) Paragraph 523 on Advance to Fraudulent Procurement olGoods and Services

(iii) Paragraph 524 on Other Matter

Thc Annronriation Accounts. Other I'ublic Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the

201-1/201{ Financial Year

Amb. Richard Ekai, Principal Secretary, Ministry Of Sports, Culture and the Arts accompanied

by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. J.F.O. Longole
( ii) Mr. Gordon Oluoch
(iii)Mr. W.O. Omwange
(iv)Mr. P.J. Mugine
(vi) Mr. Kimathi Nkabu

(vii) Ms. Margaret Ngangu

Chief Finance Officer
Commissioner of Sports

Principal Accountant
- Accountant
Finance Olficer
Cosl Accountant

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 371 on Pending Bills
(ii) Paragraph 372 on Prior Year Adjustments

(iii) Paragraph 373 on Un-cleared Prior Year Balances

MIN No. 958/2015: EVIDENCE: COMMISSION FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF
THE CONSTTTUTION

The Aoorooriation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts ofthe Funds for the

2013i201,1 Financial Year

MIN No.959/2015: EVIDENCE: MINISTRY OF SPORTS. CtlLTtlRE ANI) THE ARTS

Head ol Procurement

Finance C)lficer

Accountant
Head. Intemal Audit
Director. Management Services



MIN No. 960/2015:- ADJOTIRNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjoumed at halfpast five o'clock in the evening. Next
sitting to be held on 23'd November. 2015 at 2.30 pm

SI(;NED t)A'I'u 4'4usCh n



MINITTES Ol'TI|L TWO lttrNI)ttED ANt) FIFTY SEVIINTH (257rrr) SITTING OF
IIB C' I,INTS COMMITTEE HELD oN TTIESDAY 2.lr'trNovEMBE
TI

PREST]\T
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll.Hon.
12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

cro ITTEE IIOoM 9 MAIN PARt,IA TB IN

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.
Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Joseph Manje. M.P.
Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.

David Eseli. M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.
Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

Kanini Kega. M.P.

Gonzi Rai- M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.
Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Jude Nlomo, M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.

Chairman
Vicc- ('hairman

APOL0(;IES
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMI}LY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron

3. Mr. Rodgers Kilunda

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

Mathias Robi. M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P
Jessica Mbalu. M.P.
Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.
Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Off'icer



NATIoNAL I'REASTIITY
Mr. Ceoffrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant

OFFI('E OF'TIIE ATII)ITOR (JI]NERAI,

1. Mr. Isaac Ngayai

2. Mr. Raphael Ikame

Manager Audit
Parl iamentary [-iaison Ol-l]cer

MIN No. 961/201 5: PRlil.lMlNAI{Itls
-l-he Chairperson called the mecting to order at thirty minutes past ten in the morning and a
prayer was said. Introductions b)' all present fbllowed.

MIN No. 962/2tll5: CONl-lRNlA'tlON OF' MlNl.lTEs
The agenda item was delerred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No.963/2015: EVIDENCFI: REGISTRAR OF POLITICAL PARTltl,S

'I'he ADDroDriation Accounts, ()thcr Puhlic Accounts and the Accounts of thc [-unds for the

201-1/201 -l Financial Ycar

Mrs. Lucy Ndungu, Registrar ol Political Parties accompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Joel N. Onchwati - Principal Finance Olficers
(ii)John Macharia - Chief Accountant

Appeared before the committee and gave evidencc on:

(iii) Paragraph 525 on Unqualitied Opinion: Other Matters
(iv) Paragraph 526 on Emphasis of Matter

The Auditor informed the commiltee that all mattcrs had been resolved.

MIN No. 96{/201 5:- AD.IOIIRNMENT
There being no other business to transacl. the sitting ended at twenty minutes past eleven o'clock
in the moming.

SIGNl]I) DATl]
Chairperson



PRF,SI.]NI'

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

I 0. Hon.

ll. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

I 5. Hon.

16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo. M.P.

Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.
David Eseli. M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P
Kanini Kega, M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.
Jude Njomo, M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

APOL(X;iltS
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

Kangogo Bowen. M.P.
Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Mathias Robi. M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae. M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

Joel Onyancha. M.P.

IN A-I"I'ENI)AN('I.]:
NATIONAI, ASSl]MI}LY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron

3. Mr. Rodgers Kilunda

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer

MINTITES OF THE TWO HI.INDRED AND FIFTY EIGHTH (258'II) SITTING OF THE
PI.]BL!C ACCOT]NTS COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY.2{III NOVEMI}IIR.2OI5 AT
IO.{5 A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BI,]ILDING.



NATIONAL TREASTIRY
Mr. GeolTrey Mwitari Chief Accountant

() I-FI ('E OT'THE ATII)IToR (;ENERAI,
1. Mr. Isaac Ngayai

2. Mr. Raphael lkame

Manager Audit
Parliamentary Liaison Olllcer

MIN No. 965/2015: PREl,IMINARIT]S
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at eleven o'clock in the morning and a prayer was

said. lntroductions by all present fbllowed.

MIN No. 966/20 l5: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
The agenda item was def'erred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

Mrs. Alice Ondieki, CEO/ Director Witness Protection Agency accompanied by Messrs.:-
i. Mr. John Mwangi - Finance Manager

ii. Mr. K. A. Tanui - Deputy Director
iii. Ms. Julie Wahonya - Senior Legal Officer
iv. Mr. John Nyanzwi - chief Legal Officer
v. Mr. Peter Mwangi - Deputy Director

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 527 on Witness Expenses

(ii) Paragraph 528 on olher Matter

'l'he Auditor inlbrmed the commitlee lhat all matters had been resolved.

There being other business to transact. the sitting ended at halfpast eleven in the moming

n

st(;\ l.
(h

DATE
t1 

-
'(.?.o{J

MIN No.967/2015: tIVIDENCE: WITNESS PROTECTION AGENCY

The Annronriation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and thc Accounts of the Funds for the
20131201 1 Financial Year

MIN No. 96tt/201 5:- AD.lOLlRNMENT



PRESENT
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicotas Cumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Julius Melty. M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.
Arthur Odera. M.P.

David Eseli, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.
Kanini Kega, M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

John Mbadi, M.P.

Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Mathias Robi, M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P
Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.
Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

APoLOGIES
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

IN ATTENI)ANCE:
NATIONAL ASS}IMBLY

L Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron

3. Mr. Rodgers Kilunda

Principal Clerk Assistant Il
Clerk Assistant II
Research Olficer

MINIJTES oF THT] TWO HT]NI)RED AND I.'IFTY NINETH (259III) SITTING OF THE,
PT]BLIC ACCOT]NTS CoMMITTEE HELD ON TI]ESDAY.2{TII NoVEMBER.20I5 AT
I2.OO P.M. IN COMMITTEE, ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BT]ILDING.



NATIONAI, TREASTIRY
Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari Chief Accountant

oFFI(]E OF THE AT]I)IToR GE,NEItAL
1. Mr. Isaac Ngayai

2. Mr. Raphael lkame

Manager Audit
Parliamentarv Liaison 0llicer

MIN No.969/2 015: I'RIlLlMlNARllls
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at ten minutes past noon and a prayer was said.

lntroductions by all present fbllowed.

M IN No.970/2015: C()NFIRMATION OF MINtiTES
The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. 97112015: EVIDENCE: KENYA NATIONAI. COMMISSION ON HITMAN

The Annronrialion Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the F unds for the

Mrs. Patricia Nyaundi. CEO Kenya National Commission of Human Right accompanied by:-
i. Ms. Doris Mundia - Finance Manager

Appeared befbre the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 529 on Over Expenditure
(ii) Paragraph 530 on Long Outstanding Bank reconciliation ltems
(iii) Paragraph 531 on Long Outstanding Imprest and Advance

PENDING ISSUES
(ii) l'aragranh 529 on Over ExDcnditurr

The Committee directed the Accounting Officer and Managing Director. Kenya Industrial
Estates to avail its credit policy.

The Commission overspend by 8.852.760.70 u,ithout seeking Authority from Treasury to
reallocate the funds lrom difl'erent budgeted items. l"he Accounting Officer admitted that she had

fhiled to adhere to the requirement hut have now complied by writing to treasury who has since

granted the permission to reallocate funds.

The Committee recommended that the issue be resolved and cleared with the auditor since it has

been overtaken by time

RIGHTS

2013/201 4 Financial Year



ii. ItarasraDh 531 on Lone Outstanding lmDrest and Advancc
Balances are reducing in regards to the former commissioner. As for the lormer Officer, the

balance has not been reducing but has since been sued by the Commission. Couldn't sue him

since it might be costly to proceed with the charges visa vis the amount being refunded. The

Commission has since written to the CRB and will also write to EACC. Also wrote to Treasury

to write oflthe debt but was declined.

MlN No. 972/21115:- AD.IOtTRNMENT
There being no other business lo transact. the sitting ended at ten minutes to one o'clock in the

aliemoon-

st(;NEl).. ,^,,..K1r1.%ts.....
('ha rs() n



PRESt.\'l'
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. Rop. M.P.
Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Kanini Kega, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

.loseph Man je, M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

APOLOGIES
l. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.
2. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

3. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P.

4. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.
5. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.

6. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

7. Hon. Joel Onyancha, M.P.
8. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

9. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.
10. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

I l. Hon. Jude N jomo. M.P.

I l. Hon. John Mbadi. M.P.

12. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

13. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.

14. Hon. Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
'15. Hon. Arthur Odera, M.P.

16. Hon. David Eseli. M.P.

IN ATTENI)ANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMI}LY

I . Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron
3. Mr. Collins Mahamba

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

MINI.ITES OF THE TWO HTINDRED AND SIXTY FIRST (2615I) SITTIN(; OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOTINTS COMMITTEE HELD ON MONDAY.30I'I NOVEMBER.20IS AT
2.30 P.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BT]ILDING.



NATI()NAI,'I'ITIiAS(' I{\'
Mr. Geoftiey Mwitari

()['F I( I1 ()l"'l'IIl'] ,\I I)l l ()R (;I'.\l.ll..\l.
1. Mr. l-eonard Cheruon

2. Mr. Jackson Musheba

Chief Accountant

Assistant Manager Audit
Manager Audit

MIN No. 97tll2lll5z CONFIRM ATION OF MINUTES' re agcnda itcnr rvits dcl'crrcd to tlrc ncxt meeting.'l'here were thus no nrattcrs ilrising.

M IN No. 979/2015: llVll)IiN('E: MINISTRY EAST AFRI(]AN AI-FA|Rs. (IOMMIIRCE

The Annronriation Accounts. ()ther Public Accounts and the Accounts of thc Funds for the

Dr. Ibrahim Mohamed. PS Ministrv
accompanied by Messrs:-

i. Mrs. Joyce Mutugi
ii. Mr. Stephen Kirui
iii. Mr. Ambrose Ogango

iv. Mr. Jared Nyaundi

ol East African Atlairs. Commerce and Tourism

Senior Assistant Accountant General

Director KIBT
Deputy Chief Finance Oflicer
chief Legal Officer

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 473 on lJnconfirmed Opening Balances

(ii) Paragraph 474 on lJnsupported other Expenses

(iii) Paragraph 475 on Undisclosed. bad and Doubtt'ul Debts

(iv) Paragraph 476 on Governance ofJoint Loans Eloard

(v) Paragraph 477 on Weak Internal Controls in Kisumu Region

Pl.tNt)tN(; tsstrt.ts
(i) Paraqranh 473 on Uncontirmed Openins Balances

l'he Committee requested the Accounting Officer to provide a breakdown on all
payments made and that the Auditor should verify and report back to Committee.

(ii) h .+7-l l1 lts rh rEx l'l

MIN No. 97712015: PRELIMINARIES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at quarter to three in the af'ternoon and a prayer was

said. lntroductions by all presenl lbllowed.

ANI) TOIIRISM

2013/201{ Financial l'ear



The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that the Ministry had formed a

task force to develop a new framework to handle the administration issues at the

County. The position so far indicates that the money was transferred though no

response has been received.

Account Officer to provide evidence indicating that authority is sought. Need to
send a team to the counties to verify and submit a report on disbursement ofFunds.

(iii) Parauraoh 475 on Llndisc losed , bad and Doubtful Debts

The Accounting Officer inlormed the Committee that they had a Joints Board in
place tasked to make the recoveries on loans and defaults. The committee

requested the accounting Officer to provide a breakdown ol the recoveries

indicating the amounts recovered so lar and what is pending. The Commiftee
recommended that the Auditor General in consultation with Treasury together with
Ministry take up the matter and give the committee a conclusive response.

(iv ) Parasraoh 476 on Governance ofJoint Loans Board

Called upon to confirm to the auditors whether the Board's officers are in office
and provide their mandates.

(v) Parasraoh 477 on Weak lntemal Controls in Kisumu Rcu rolr

Need to provide proper documentation to show that the money is well spent and

accounted for. Alt the funds collected must not be spent but banked and accounted

for appropriately.

MIN No. 9ll0/2015:- AD.IOURNMENT
There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at ten minutes to four o'clock in the

afiernoon.

st(;\ED..
Ch il rson 4,4^/r:DATE..



MINI-]TES OF THE TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY SECoND (262\I)) SITTIN(; OF THE
PI-IBLIC ACCOI-INTS COMMITTEE HELD ON MoNDAY.30III NOVEMBER.20I5 AT
{.()O P.M. IN COMMITTEE RoOM 9" MAIN PARLIAMENT BI]ILDING.

PRESENT
l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Cumbo. M.P.

2. Hon. Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

3. Hon. Abdikadir Aden" M.P.

4. Hon. Kanini Kega, M.P.

5. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

6. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

7. Hon. Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

8. Hon. Jessica Mbalu. M.P.
9. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.

10. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

APOLOGIES

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

T

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

IN ATTENDANC]E:
NA'TIoNAL ASSEMI}LY

Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

Ivlathias Robi. M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Jude Njomo. M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.
Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

J ulius Melly. M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.
Arthur Odera. M.P.
David Eseli- M.P.

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron
3. Mr. Collins Mahamba

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer



NATIONAL TRT]ASI.IRY
Mr. Geoflrey Mwitari Chie l'Accountant

ol'!'t( t.t o[ 't Ht,] ,\TIDITOR GT]NERAL
1. Mr. Romanus Ochieng

2. Mr. Boniface Ojiambo Ngira -

Senior Manager Audit
Assistant Manager

MIN No. 981/2015: PRULIMINARIES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at ten past four o'clock in the aftemoon and a prayer
was said. lntroductions by all present followed.

MIN No.98212015: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
The agenda item was delerred lo the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No.98-1/2015 : E!'l l)EN('E: MINIs'tR\' OF IlNER(;Y AND PETROLETTM

A riation Accounts Othcr Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for h

2013l2lll I Financial Year

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 396 on Supply. Installation. Testing and Commissioning of 5 No. '100M

Wind masts and Data loggers
(ii) Paragraph 402 on Advances
(iii) Paragraph 403 on Suspense Account
(iv) Paragraph 404 on Unsupported Balances

(v) Paragraph 405 on Summary of Statement ofProvisioning
(vi) Paragraph 406 on Non- Financial Assets

(vii) Paragraph 407 on Construction of Resource Centre at Mitunguu in South Imenti
District

(viii) Paragraph 408 on Unsupported Expenditure
(ix) Paragraph 409 on Cash and Cash Equivalent
(x) Paragraph 410 on Receipts

)

Eng. Joseph Njoroge Kibere. PS Ministry olEnergy and Petroleum accompanied by Messrs:-
i. Mrs Phoeb Ndonye - Principal Secretary Petroleum

ii. Mr. Patrick Paul Meyo - Deputy Director Supply Chain Management
iii. Mr. James Ngarai - Chief Accountant
iv. Eng. Isaac Kiva - Director of Renewable Energy

v. Mr. Ma(in M. Heya - Commissioner Petroleum

vi. Mr. Michael W. Mwangi - Director Ol Administration



Paragraph 4l I on Contribution Receipts

Paragraph 412 on Disparity with Special Account
Paragraph 413 on (i) Cash and Cash Equivalent and (ii) Loan from Extemal

Development Partners

PENI)IN(] ISSTIES

(i) Parasranh 406 on Non- Financial Assets

The Asset register be signed before submission to the committee as appendix

The Accounting Officer stated that with the advice of National treasure, they need

to revalue the vehicles since it had a negative value.

The Committee directed the Accounting Officer to move with speed in order to

ensure that the Lands have tittle deeds.

( ii) Paragrao h 407 on Construction ol Resource Centre at Mitunquu in South Imenti

District
The Auditor was tasked to keep in view the project and ensure that it was

completed and be in operation. The Committee requested the Auditor in charge to

ensure that they make a visit to ascertain progress and development

(iii) Paraqraph 408 on Unsupported Expenditure

The Committee tasked the Auditor to go through the documents and confirm,
indicate activities being paid for and submit a report of the same to the Committee.

(ir ) Paragraph 4l I on Contribution Receipts

The Auditor informed the Committee that he was not satisfied with response given

to no. (ii) of the audit query since it was still in process and thus requests the

Committee to determine a recommendation.

The Committee recommended that the funds allocation be separated. The

Accounting Officer should seek permission from National Treasury to open

another bank account so that they don't have to mix all funds in the Training Levy

Fund Account which they operate.

IvIlN No. 98{/201 5:- AD.IOtiRNN{llN't
There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at twenty minutes past six in the

evenlng

(xi)
(xii)
(xiii)

tSIGNED,,i.
Chai

DATE...
l((j.



PRI.]SEN'I'
l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.
2. Hon. Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

3. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.
4. Hon. Arthur Odera, M.P.

5. Hon. David Eseli. M.P.
6. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

7. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

8. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

9. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

10. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. M.P.
I l. Hon. John Mbadi. M.P.
12. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

APOLOGIES

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll.Hon.
12. Hon.

13. Hon.

t 4. Hon.

15. Hon.

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Mathias Robi. M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.
Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.
Silvance Onyango Osele. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.
Kanini Kega. M.P.

Charles Ceni Mong'are, M.P.
Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.
Joel Onyancha. M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron
3. Mr. Rodgers Kilungya

Principal Clerk Assistant ll
Clerk Assistant II
Hansard Recorder Offi cer

MINTITES OF THE TWO HT]NDRE,D AND SIXTY THIRD (263RI)) SITTING OF THE
PI.IBLIC ACCOI.]NTS COMMITTEE HEI,D ON TI.]ESDAY.2{III NOVEMBER.20IS AT
IO.OO A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BI.IILDIN(;.



NATIONAL TREASURY
Mr. (icoff rcy Mrvitari - Chiel' Accountant

OFFICE oF THE AUDITOR GENERAI,
1. Mr. B. Maina
2. Mr. K. Kaburu

MIN No. 985/2015: PRE,LlMlNAltltls
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at eleven o'clock in the moming and a prayer was

said. Introductions by all present followed.

MIN No. 986/2015: CONFlRlvlATI()N ()l' l\llNtrTt.S
'fhe agenda item was def-erred Io the nexl mecting. There were no matters arising.

MIN No. 9tl7l2ltl1: E,VlDENCI.l, i MlNts't'RY ()1- I}I]FENCE

The Annronriation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of thc l'untls for thc
201-1/201.1 Financial Year

Mr. Kiritu M. Wemai, EBS. Ag Principal Secretary of Ministry of Defence accompanied by
Messrs.:-

(i) Lt. Gen. Kasaon
( ii) E.N. Murimi
(iii) C.K Muhia
(iv)Brg. R.G Kabage

(v) Daniel Kihara
(vi)Col. J.A. Ouda
(xiv) Gregory Okal

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:-
(i) Paragraph 149 on Prior Year Matters
(ii) Paragraph 150 on Purchase of Seventy Five (75) APCs
(iii) Paragraph l5l on Purchase ofSeventy Six (76) APCs
(iv) Paragraph 152 on Statement ofAssets and Liabilities for Recurrent

[IlN No. 9tltl/20I5:- AI).rOt RN]lIiYI'
There being no other business to transacl, the sitting ended at half past eleven o'clock in the

moming.

st(;Nlil)
CHAIRPERSON

I)ATE



MINUTES OF THI] TWo HUNDRED AND SIXTY FOURTH (26.TI1I) SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC AC(]OTINTS COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY. ISI DECEMBER.2OI5 A 't'

I I..10 A.M. IN COMMITI'EE ROoM 9. ]VIAIN PARLIAMENT BTiILI)IN(;.

PRESENT
l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

2. Hon. Jackson K. Rop, M.P.
3. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.

4. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

5. Hon. David Eseti. M.P.

6. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

7. Hon. Gonzi Rai. M.P.

8. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.
9. Hon. Fathia Mahbub. M.P.
10. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. M.P.
I l. Hon. John Mbadi. M.P.

12. Hon. Stephen Manoti. M.P.

APOLoGIES
l. Hon. Kangogo Bowen. M.P.

2. Hon. Mathias Robi, M.P.

3. Hon. Julius Melly, M.P.

4. Hon. Andrew Mwadime, M.P.
5. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

6. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.
7. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P

8. Hon. .lessica Mbalu. M.P.
9. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.
10. Hon. Kanini Kega. M.P.

I | . Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are. M.P.
12. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi. M.P.

13. Hon. Joel Onyancha, M.P.
14. Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.

15. Hon. Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Tungo Aaron
3. Mr. Rodgers Kilunda

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer

Chairman
Vice- Chairman



NATIONAl, TREAST R}'
Mr. Geoffrev Mu'itari Chief Accountant

oFFICE OF T]IE ATII)I1'OR (;ENERAI,
1. Rowland Wanyama

2. Steven Ikeleng

3. Isaac Ngayai

4. lsaac Koech

5. Mr. Raphael [kame Parl iamentary Liaison Ofllcer

MIN No. 989/2015: PRELIMINARIES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at twenty minulcs twelve in the moming and a

prayer was said. lntroductions by all present followed.

MIN No.990/2015: CONFIRMATION OF MlNtrTEs
'[he agenda item was deftrred to the next mceling.'fhere werc thus no matters arising.

The Aonronriation Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts ofthe Funds for the

Ms. Ann Amadi, Chief Registrar Judiciary accompanied by:-
i. Ronald Wanyama

ii. Steven lkileng
ii i. Joseph Were

iv. Kennedy lkoki
v. David Rapando

vi. Nancy Kanyago

vii. J.F. Okello

Appeared before lhe committee and gave evidence on:

Judiciarv
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Paragraph 506 orr Contracl tbr Leasing of Office Equipment

Paragraph 507 on Measures taken to address Delayed Delivery olJustice
Paragraph 508 on [Jnsupported Payments

Paragraph 509 on Llnsupported Domestic Travel and Subsistence Expenditure

Paragraph 5 I 0 on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Paragraph 5l I on Pending Bills

MIN No. 991/2015: EVIDENCFI,: JtTDICIARY AND .IUDICIAL SERVI(IE
COMMISSION (JSC)

2013/201 4 Financial Year



(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

Paragraph 512 on Outstanding Imprests and Advances

Paragraph 513 on Deposits

Paragraph 514 on Unaccounted for Fees From Auctioneers Licensing Board

Paragraph 515 on Donor Funded Projectsl Reconcilled Dilference
Paragraph 516 on Overstatement ofNon- financial Assets

,ludicial Sen'icc (lommission

Paragraph 537 on lrregular Payment of Allowances
Paragraph 538 on Unaccounted for InTprest

(i)
(ii)

PENDIN(; ISST'ES
(i) Paragraph 507 on Measures laken to address Delaved Delivery ofJustice

a) Bomet; Matter is still pending. Issues have not been resolved.

b) Wanguru and Othaya Law Courts: Construction still on-going and incomplete

The Committee requested the accounting officer to provide a comprehensive report

on the law courts.

The works are not yet completed. It's recommended that either the contractor
refunds all payments made to them or delivers the items as per the contract with
immediate effect.

The Accounting Officer was requested to provide documentary evidence indicating
that the case has been referred to other entities like EACC for further follow up as

per her submissions and to provide bank guarantees as well. Issue remains

pending.

Auditors informed the Committee that they had done inspection and could
confirm that there's a lot of civil work going on and improvement could be

observed in construction works unlike in the previous years.

( ii) Paragraph -5 1 3 on Deposits

The Accounting officer informed the Committee that the matter was a fraud case

and that it was still pending in Milimani Courts. The Charge sheet was provided in
the submission Annexes. Waiting for courts determinalion in order to make a

recommendation

(iii) Paragraph 514 on Unaccounted lbr Fees From Auctioneers Licensing Board

The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that the amount in question.

Kshs.965.752 had since been reconciled and that reconciliation was now being

done on a monthly basis. The Officer who misappropriated the money was charged

and the case was with Kisii Law Court, criminal case no 34612006



MIN No. 9921201 5:- ADJOURNMENT
There being no other business to transact. the sitting ended at (en minutes past two in the
atiernoon.

SI(;NEI). I)ATE.4,o(o,s

l



}IINTITES OF'III[] 'I'WO tIT:NDREI) Ar.-D SIXTY SIX-ITI (266III) SITTING OF THE
PtrBt.tc AC('otrN'I's ('oMMITTEIt HEl.t) ON THITRSI)A\" l\r t)ECEMBER. 2015

A'I' I I..10 A.M. IN ('0MMI'I"I'EE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAI\IT'N'I' IIIIILDIN(;.

PRESENT
l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

I 3. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Cumbo, M.P.
Jackson K. Rop. M.P.

Andrew Mwadime. M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

David Eseli. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu. M.P.

Gonzi Rai. M.P.

Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

Fathia Mahbub. M.P.

Jessica Mbalu. M.P
Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P

APOLOGIES
I . Hon. Jude Njomo. M.P.

2. Hon. Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

3. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

4. Hon. Arthur Odera. M.P.

5. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.
6. Hon. Stephen Manoti, M.P.

7. Hon. Joel Onyancha. M.P.

8. Hon. Julius Melly. M.P.

9. Hon. Manson Nyamweya. M.P.

10. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

I l. Hon. Kanini Kega. M.P

12. Hon. John Mbadi. M.P.

13. Hon. Mathias Robi. M.P.

14. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P

IN ATTENDANCE:
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. Chelagat Tungo

3. Ms. Winnie Kulei

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant II
Research Officer

Chairman
Vice- (lhairman



NATIONAL TREASI.]RY
Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari ( hicl'Accountant

0FFIC't] OF THE AT'I)I'I'()R (;ENERAI-
1. Mr. Samuel Chegc

2. Mr. Leonard Opar

3. Mr. Sarnmy Githinji
4. Mr. Raphael lkanre Parliamcntary Liaison Offi cer

NllN No. 996/20I5: PRllLlMINARIES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at thirty minutes past ten in lhe moming and prayed.

Introductions by all present followed.

MIN No. 997/2lll5: ('()NI'IRMATION O]' MlNtr'l'l.ls
'l'hc agenda item was del'erred to the next mceling.'l'here were thus no malters arising.

M lN No. 998/20 I 5: tlvl I)tl,NCE: MI NISTRY ()I- Ul)UCATI()N

'I'he Ann ron riation Accounts Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for thc
201 -1/201 { Financial Ycar

Dr, Belio Kipsang, Principal Secretary Basic Education and Prof. Colleta Suda Principal

Secretary Higher Education accompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Dr. Dinah Mwinzi
(ii) Mr. Ezra Magati
(iii) Mr. Abdi Aden
(iv) Mr. John Tuwei
(v) Ms. Margaret Munye
(vi) Elymary.ta Khaoya
(vii) Zachary Ooko
(viii) Caliph Ombati
(ix) Orwa Ondego
(x) Robert Masese

(xi) H.S. Abdi
(xii) C.W. Kariuki
(xiii) Grace Muriuki

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:

(iii) Paragraph 159 on Inaccurate Financial Statements

(iv) Paragraph 160 on Cash and Cash Equivalents balance



(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

Paragraph

Paragraph

Paragraph

Paragraph

Paragraph

Paragraph

Paragraph

l6l on Under-Collection of Appropriations in Aid
162 on Unsupported Prior year adjustments.

163 on Unsuppo(ed Accounts Receivable and Payments

164 on Irregular Purchase of Airtime
165 on Nugatory Expenditure Bondo Technical Training Instilute

166 on Construction Work at Masai Technical Training lnstitute
[67 on Unsupported Expenditure - Scholarships

PENDIN(; ISST]ES
( iii) Paragraph I 6 I on Under-Collection of Appropriations in Aid

The Accounting Officer indicated that the expenditures were incuned by the

Ministry of Devolution and therefore. the Ministry will do the reconciliations of
the same. Issue remain pending.

(iv) Paragraph 162 on Unsupported Prior year adiuslments

The Accounting Officers was tasked to come with a breakdown.

The Committee informed the Accounting Officer that it was wrong to spend

money from a vote on items that had not been budgeted for without Treasury's

approval.

(v) Paragraph '163 on Unsupported Accounts Receivable and Paynrents

The balance has been reduced the balance from 309.086.605 to around 85

million
Had issued to the district an amount of 3 bitlion and they get retums from
Districts through treasury. By the time the financial year was closing. the
previous payment had not been accounted for and thus still remains pending.

The Committee directed the Accounting Officer to take charge, and take

necessary actions to ensure that the Officers who have not accounted for to do so

within l4 days. Need to report back to the Committee with the correct status.

(vi) Paraqraph 165 on Nu,ratory Expenditure Bondo Technical Training lnstitute
Penalties came about due to late payments hence attracting as per the Contract.

Documents to be provided to Auditors for verification and updated Status report

submitted to Committee
The Committee requested the Accounting Officer to provide contract agreements

between Contractor and Ministry for review by Committee.

lrii) Paracraph 166 on Construction Work at Masai 'fechnical Training lnstitute
Delay in completion of the works was occasioned by low budgetary provisions

and delayed exchequer releases for the year under review. The Ministry agreed



to make {urangements to ensure that the Project is completed before a new one is
started. The Contractor is on the grounds

The Accounting Officer to provide Certificate fiom the Ministry ol public works
to ascertain whether the payments were made with or without Certificate.
The Committee requested the Accounting Officer to provide status report of the

project so as to conflrm to what level the Projects have reached.

MIN No 999 /2015:- ADJOURNMENT
There being no other business to transact. the sitting ended at twenty minutes past one in the

altemoon.
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MIN No. 1000/2015: PRE,LINIINARIES
The sitting's proceedings commenced with a word ofprayer and therealier introductions.

The Chairman informed the Committee that the meeting was a continuation from a meeting that
was held on 26th October, 2015. That the Committee had progressed in their deliberation up to
Paragraph 95 though lhere were some outstanding issues on Paragraph 77 .78. 81 and 82 which
had to be reviewed first before proceeding to the next paragraphs.

MIN No. l00l/2015: CONFIRNIA'I'ION OF MlNLiTEs
The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 1002/2015: EVIDENCE: MINISTRY OF INTERIOR AND COORDINATION
OF NA'TIONAL (;()VERNM EN'I

riation Accounts Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for thcThe Annron
2013 lzl}l 4 Financial Year

Amb. Monica Juma. Principal Secretary. State depa(ment of Interior and Ms, Josepta

Mukobe, Principal Secretary, State Department of Coordination of National Govemment

accompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Mr. Hassan Mohammed - Chief Executive OfIcer (NCIC)
(ii) Mr. Paul Mutacha - Assistant Secretary

(iii)Mr. John Munywoki - Senior Chief finance Officer
(iv)Ms. Judy Mwihaki - Legal Officer
(v) Mr. Josphat ltuka - Assistant Commissioner General (KPS)
(vi)Mr. JM Wambugu - Finance Officer. NPS
(vii) Ms. Phylis Ouko - Senior Deputy Secretary

OFFICE OF THE AUDIToR GENERAL
l. Raphael lkame

2. Simon Chibole
3. Joseph K. Irungu

4. Bonface Ong'wen
5. Catherin M. Mburu -
6. Japheth Mangoka



(viii) Ms. Mercy Mwangi
(xv) Ms. Doris Kenyanya
(ix)Mr. Paul Muthanya

(x) Mr. Philip Gachuya
(xi)Mr. Charles Liyayi

Chief Accountant
Senior Assistant Internal Auditor
Assistant Secretary

Senior Assistant Accountant General

Principal Accountant

Appeared belore the committee and gave evidence on:

(i) Paragraph 77 on Purchase of Land and Houses for general Service Unit paid

through legal dues, arbitration and compensation.

(ii) Paragraph 78 on Examination of contractor Supply and delivery ofEntry and Exit

stamps.

(iii) Paragraph 8l on Mismanagement of cash bails at Kenya Police Service Stations in

Nairobi.
(iv) Paragraph 82 on Loss of Revenue lor Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund at various

districts"
(v) Paragraph 96 on Overpricing of Stores Resulting in Loss of Kshs. 62,51 2, 859.00

(vi) Paragraph 97 on Pending Bills at Covemment Prisons

(vii) Paragraph 98 on Unaccounted Expenditure at Moyale Main Prison

(viii) Paragraph 99 on Co

(ix) Paragraph 100 on lrregular Procurement ofGoods and Services at Various Prisons

(x) Paragraph l0l on Uncollected Revenue of Kshs. 2,701 ,440.00
(xi) Paragraph l02on Difference between the Ministry's Revenue Receipt Ledger and

Revenue Statement

(xii) Paragraph 103 on Excess Sunender ofRevenue
(xiii) Paragraph 104 on Inaccuracy olthe Ledger
(xiv) Paragraph 105 on Un- surrendered Revenue

(xv) Paragraph 106 on Loss of Revenue by Kenya Police County Commander. Nairobi
(xvi) Paragraph 107 on Outstanding lmprests
(xvii) Paragraph 108 on Suspense Account
(xviii) Paragraph 109 on Paymaster General Account
(xix) Paragraph I l0 on Debtors

(xx) Paragraph I l1 on Fixed Assets Register

(xxi) Paragraph I l2 on lllegal Encroachment

(xxii) Paragraph I l3 on Unaccounted for Revenue

(xxiii) Paragraph 114 on Sustainability ofthe Fund

(xxiv) Paragraph I l5 on Un-analysed Suspense Account
(xxv) Paragraph I l6 on Non- Recovery ofDebts
(xxvi) Paragraph I l7 on Non- Maintenance olFixed Asset Register

(xxvii) Paragraph I 'l 
8 on Cash Management of Prisons Industries Revolving

(xxviii)Paragraph I l9 on Non- disclosure of Receipts and Payment



(xxix) Paragraph 120 on lJnsupported Expenditure on Printing and Other Materials
(xxx) Paragraph l2l on Unsupported Payments
(xxxi) Paragraph 122 on Acquisition ofNon- financial Assets

PT]NI)IN(; ISSTIES

(i) Parasranh 77 on- artgranh 77 on Purchase of Land and Houses for senerall)

Service [.lnit id rh u II tl co nsatlon.

From the previous meeting, the Committee had requested the Accounting Officer
to present to the Committee a Parliamentary report that deliberated the matter.
showing the corresponded between Ministry of lnterior and Ministry of Lands.
'Ihe Accounting Olllcer submitted the documentations as requested together with
the opinion sought by the Ministry from the Attorney Ceneral in view of the court
ruling. on whether it was prudent for the Ministry in proceeding with l'urther
payments on the mattcr.
'fhe Accounting Ollicer providcd information on the process that led to the figure
ol Kshs. 2.4 billion. She reiterated thal the advice of the Attomey-General
concluded that the court judgment be enforced immediately lailure of which the

Government will lace an exposure of paying Kshs. 2.4 billion and intercst of l4
per cent. In addition. lhe Commitlee was informed that the payment begun in the

201312014 llnancial year and a total of Kshs. 1.2 billion had so fhr been paid. The

Ministry had written to the National Treasury requesting fbr allocation of funds

and this was provided for in the 2014/15 financial year. She also confirmed to the

Committee that the parcel of land was approximately 96 acres (38.85 hectares)

'Ihe Auditor informed the Committee lhat the concem raised by the Auditor
General weas why the Ministry did not submit the Govemment Evaluation report

as part of the evidence before the Courts. It was noted that thc Minislry had earlier
submitted liom Reports fiom Private Valucrs and had to therelbre request Ministry
of Lands to undertakc a valuation fbr the satisfaction ofthe Auditor General.

With the advisory from the Attorney General. the Committee resolved to have the

Accounting otllcer finalize on the payments and bring the matter to closure with
immediate el-fect.

Paragraph 78 on l:xarnination of contraclor Supplv and delivcry of Entry and Exit
stanrps

The Auditors conflrmed lo the C'ommitlL'e that the malter had bccn resolved

(ii)



( iii) Paragraph 81 on Mismanasement ofcash bails at Kenya Police Service Stations in
Nairobi
The Accounting Officer presented to the Committee a Gazzelte Notice which

established a Task Force on management of cash bail, a policy document

elaborating the matter and terms of reference drawn intemally by the Ministry for
the comprehensive audit.

The Meeting was informed that the Ministry had gone ahead to sample 5070 of
Police installations focusing on three regions. l2 counties and 48 divisions in order

to get clear picture of the magnitude of the problem and know what to require

within the Police Servicing.

The Committee requested the Accounting Officer to provide names and details of
Officers who were found in possession ofcounterfeil cash bail books. as queried in
Paragraph 205 in order to enable the Committee make a determination.

(iv) Paragraph 82 on Loss of Revenue for Alcoholic Drinks Control Fund at various

districts
The Committee was informed that the Ministry had requested for a Comprehensive

forensic audit to find out where the money in the account comes from since the

Ministry does not receive money for NACADA licenses. It was observed that

money was deposited into the account by anyone who needed a license and a slip
fbrwarded to the Ministry

(v) I) di Bills at Covernment Prison

The accounting officer informed the committee that the pending bills were far
much more than the 64 million that was being quoted. She affirmed to the

committee that the ministry had taken initiative to write to all stations to forward
all pending bills which were coming to around 1.5B. An amount of l.l9B was

verified by the auditors and the rest was rejected.

The Accounting Officer wrote to the National Treasury requesting for funds to

enable them clear the pending bills and they were given and the funds helped clear
part of the bills.

The Committee recommended that the accounting Officer liaise with the auditors

and provide a written report on the status ofthe pending bills.



(vi) Paragraph l0l on Uncollected Revenue of Kshs. 2.701 ,440.00
The Committee was informed that the Ministry was pursuing the Officer in
question so as to recover the balance of 917,940 lrom him. Money had been

collected by the officer but had nol been banked. She further informed the

Committee that some debts went back to the year 2007the but are linding means of
resolving the problems.

The Committee requested the Accounting Officer to ensure that the issue is
resolved as soon as possible and a status report be provided to the auditors for
verification.

(vii) Paragraph 106 on Loss olRevenue by Kenya Police Countv Conrmander, Nairobi
The Accounting Olficer infbrmed the Committee that the money was banked and

that they will provide the relevant statements for verification by auditors.

However. it was not clear whether Cashbooks were being maintained by Kenya

Police County Commanders. The Auditors were tasked to verify and report its
findings to the Committee.

(viii) Paraqraph I 07 on Outstanding lmprests

The Committee was informed that the issue was still pending but recoveries were

ongoing. The outstanding balance was currently at 5,399.457 shillings.

It was noted that the impresl in question was grants given by UNDP to be issued to

Cohesion Monitors official on the ground who respond to emergency cases on the

ground also known as Emergency response fund. Some of the funds had not been

properly accounted fbr.

In the cases where holders of imprest had passed on, the Accounting officer
pledged to write lo treasury requesting tbr write otfs olthe debts. Il was contlrmed
that an equivalent of 3 million ought to be written otf whereas 2.3m to be

recovered lrom various officers.

The Auditors were tasked to fbllow up on the recoveries status and give a
substantive report to the Committee.

(x) Paragraph 109 on Paymaster Gcneral Account

(ix) Paraqraph 108 on Outstandinq Imprests

The Auditors informed the Committee that the query remains pending while
awaiting completion of analysis of Cashbooks in the Ministry. After the analysis. a

repo( will be submitted to the Committee.



The query remains pending. The Accounting Officer to ensure that delivery of
documents and report for verification by auditors will be done with immediate

effect.

The Account does not have signatories from Treasury.

It was agreed that National Treasury writes to Central bank and assign signatories

to the accounts in order to enable transactions take place.

The Liaison Officer from National Treasury pledged to facilitate and report back to

the Committee.

(xii) Parasraph I I I on Fixed Assets Regisler

Paragraph remained pending because it was noted that the Ministry did not have a

fixed asset register. The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that it was

very important to have departments that handle finances to have registers put in
place

The Committee observed that there was laxity in maintaining asset register by
most ministries in violation of PFM Act 2012 and regulations 2015.

The Committee recommended that the Ministry c,ury out asset tagging,
verification and management of asset register with immediate effect.

(xiii) Parasraoh I l2 on Illegal Encroachment

The Accounting Officer indicated that it was members of staff who were tilling the

Prisons land and has since written to them to stop the encroachment. She issued a

circular and standing order. Now land being cultivated by prison and not prison

departments.

The Committee tasked the Accounting Officer to ensure that proper report on

status of the land be provided for verification.
The Auditors informed the Committee that there was an ongoing audit process to

ascertain the position and verify whether the land is being encroached.

On another note. the Accounting Officer inlormed the Committee that part of
prisons lands around the country had been grabbed. There's a report to that effect
and she will make arrangements to tale members through it when called upon to

do so.

Parasranh I lJ on Unaccounted l-or Rev(xiv)
Nol bccn resolved

cnue

(xi) Paragraoh I l0 on Debtors

The Committee was informed that out ol 53million in question, a recovery of 22

million shillings had been made and that the process of recovery was still ongoing.

Thus the query still remains pending as recoveries continue.



The Accounting Officer inlbrmed the committee that the money was revolved in
the lund to sustain it. The Accountant was tasked to reconcile with staff at the

Prison's Headquarters. I'he Auditors audited financial statements. The Money in
question was the surplus realized lrom sales in prison thus deposited in the

deposils accounts.

The Committee tasked the Auditor to lollow up and submit a reporl on the status.

(xv) Parasranh I l5 on Un- analvzed Suspense Accounl.
The Committee was informed that
reconciliation by auditors.

the issue will remain pending waiting

(xvi) Paraqraph I l6 on Non- Recoverv of'Debts
Retained until recoveries is complete. The Accounting Officer pledged to follow
up on recoveries ard to have it cleared by end of lhe month. She will provide a

status report on the same. The query remains pending till a report is provided and

verified by the Auditors.

( xvii) Paraeraph I l7 on Non Maintenance of l]ixed Asset Register

Same as paragraph I I l. on Assel register. The query remains pending till proper

asset register is put in place.

(xviii; Parasraoh ll8 on Cash Manasemenl of Prisons Industries Revolvinn Funds

The Accounting Officer inlormed the Committee that the Revolving lund Account
in question had been closed by treasury because there was no signatory to that
Account from the National Treasury. Four billion shillings had been swept from
the account and taken to Central bank after the closure ofthe account.

She has requested for a bank statement lrom treasury which will be provided to
Auditors for Verification.

(xix) Paragraph I l9 on Cash Management of Prisons Industries Revolvinq Fund

The amount was no1 disclosed as required by IPSAS (23) in the footnotes for the

Governnrent Press fund Account but will be disclosed in future.

Query will be retained and verifled in the next accounts if it will have been

disclosed in the footnotes.

. NO. l0 -tl201 5 AD.IOTIRNMEN-I'
'Ihe Vicc-Cha iourned the nreeting at halfpast one o'clock in the allernoon.
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MIN No. I 109/2016: PltllLINIINAlllES



The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes to eleven O'clock in the morning. A prayer was

said.

)llN \o. I I l0/2016: ('O\l'lll\1.\'l lO\ OIr \l l\t 'l hS

Minutes of the 258th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that day, after being
proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP.

Minutes of the 259th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 27oth sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP and seconded by Andrew Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 271't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP and seconded by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP.

Minutes of the 272nd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP.

Minutes of the 273d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Jude Njomo, MP and seconded by Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, MP.

Minutes of the 274th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Julius Melly, MP and seconded by Hon. Jude Njomo, MP.

Minutes of the 275rh sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Jude N.iomo, MP and seconded by Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, MP.

Minutes of the 275th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Kanini Kega, MP.

Minutes of the 277th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP and seconded by Hon. Kanini Kega, MP.

Minutes of the 278rh sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Julius Melly, MP.

Minutes of the 279th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, MP.

Minutes of the 280th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Jessica Mbalu, MP and seconded by Hon. Julius Melly, MP.

Minutes of the 2815t sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Jude Njomo, MP and seconded by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP.

Minutes of the 282"d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Charles Geni, MP and seconded by Hon. John Mbadi, MP.

Minutes of the 283d sittinB were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Kanini KeBa, MP and seconded by Hon. Katatha Maweu, MP.



Minutes of the 284th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP and seconded by Hon. Kanini Kega, MP.

Minutes of the 285th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Charles Geni, MP and seconded by Hon. Kyengo Maweu, MP.

Minutes of the 286th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
being proposed by Hon. Charles Geni, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP

Minutes of the 287th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedinBs of that
being proposed by Hon. Kyengo Maweu, MP and seconded by Hon. Timothy Bosire, MP.

Minutes of the 288th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
being proposed by Hon. Kanini Kega, MP and seconded by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP.

Minutes of the 289th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
being proposed by Hon. Kyengo Maweu, MP and seconded by Hon. Julius Melly, MP.

Minutes of the 290th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
being proposed by Hon. Arthur Odera, MP and seconded by Hon. John Mbadi, MP.

meeting,

meeting,

meeting,

meeting,

meeting,

after

afte r

afte r

after

after

Minutes of the 291"t sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that meeting, after
being proposed by Hon. Jessica Mbalu, MP and seconded by Hon. Arthur Odera, MP.

l\lIN No. I I t l/2{)16: MA-tTEltS AI{ISING

The Committee was informed that the next report writing retreat for Auditor General's report on books of
accounts will be held between Monday 4th and Friday 8th Aprit, 2016 in Mombasa. Members are expected to
travel on Sunday 3'd and return on Sarurday 9th April, 2016. Further logistical arrangements would be

communicated by the secretariat.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at thirty minutes past eleven O'clock in the

moming. Notices for the next Sitting would be circulated to Members.

Signed
(Chairperson)

t)

There were no matters arising.

NIIN No. t I l2l2()16: ANY OTIIEIt BUSINESS

The trip to China by some Members of the Committee was due to take place on l8'h to 23'd of April, 2016.

MIN No. 1l13/2016: ADJOURNMENT
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Accountant

Accountant

Accountant

Personal Assistant to PS

MIN No. I130/2016: PRELIMINARIES
The Chairman called the meeting to order at thirty minules pasl ten O'clock in the moming and

said a prayer.

I'he Chairman passed the Commitlee's condolences to the Principal Secretary Ministry oi Lands.

Ms. Mariamu El Maawy on her bereavement.

MIN No. I l-11/2016: CONFIRMATTON OI.' MINLj'tl.ls
Confirmation of minutes of the previous sitting was deferred to the next sitting. There were thus

no matters arising.

MIN No. 113212016: UVIDEN('U: MINISTRY Ol- LANI)S. HOtiSIN(; ANI) trRllAN
l)l.tvuLoPllE\T

The Appropriation Accounts, Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the

201312014 Financial Year

Ms. Mariamu El Maaw'y, thc Accounting Ollicer gave cvidcncc on

(i)
( ii)
( iii)
(iv)
(v)
(vi)

Paragraph 340 on Equity
Paragraph 348 on Unconlimred Balances

Paragraph 349 on L.lnsupported Balance

Paragraph 358 on Bank Balanccs

Paragraph 359 on 'l ermination of the Project Agreement

Paragraph 361 on Outstanding Imprests



l'cnding I ssucs

(i) Paragraph 340 on Equity
'fhe Committee tasked the Accounting Officer to produce a list of beneficiaries

and land details to the auditors for verification before 6'h May,2016.

( ii) Paragraph 348 on Unconfirmed Balances and Paragraph 349 on Unsupported
Balance
The Committee treated the matters as unresolved and gave the Accounting Officer
up 10 end of llnancial year to resolve balances. These would be confirmed by

auditors in the next financial year report.

(iiD Paragraph 358 on Bank Balances and Paragraph 359 on Termination of the
Project Agreement
The Committee tasked the auditors to examine the annexures now provided by the

Accounting Otllcer and report back by 6th May.20l6.

(iv) Paragraph 361 on Outstanding Imprests
The Committee instructed the Accounting Olficer to intensify recoveries that were

now outstanding at Kshs. 841.185.00 attributable to six individuals by end of
financial year.

MIN No. I1.1-1/2016: ANY OI'HER lltrslNEss
The Chairman tabled two letters addressed to the Committeei on procurement of medical

equipment fbr counties by the Ministry of Health and the other on the procurement of the

land currently occupied by the CSU in Ruaraka by the Ministry of Interior and

Coordination of National Government.

The Committee resolved that the former will be conclusively handled when the matter

appears in the 20l4ll5 Auditor Ceneral's report. while the latter had already been

dispensed with in the previous sitting.

2. Hon. A(hur Odera. MP requested for a report on all outstanding special audits. The

Chairman informed the meeting that the Auditor General would appear before the

Committee on 5'h May, 2016 to present a status report on IFMIS. NYS and the Sovereign

Bond.

3. The Committee was reminded of the report writing retreat due in Kisumu from sth -l4th

May.20l6.



4. The Chairman informed the meeting that there would be an AFROPAC Executive
Committee meeting in Khartoum, Sudan on 23'd and 24'h May, 2016. Members of the

delegation would be decided upon.

5. The Chairman reminded Members of the evening's dinner at his residence and welcomed

all to attend.

MIN No. lI3{/2016 : AI)JOLIRNMENT
There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at forty five minutes past twelve
O'clock in aftemoon. Next meeting would be held on Thursday 5th May 201 6 at 10.00 am.

Signed... .... Date....,.!=. \ %t(,( ha ()n
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MIN No. I 135/2016: PREI-IMINAIIIES

fhe Chairman called the meeting to order at eleven O'clock in the morning and said a prayer

He informed the Committee that the Auditor General rvas not able to appear before it as earlier scheduled as

he was outside the country. The meeting adopted the updated agenda as proposcd by Hon. Charles Ceni, MP
and seconded by Hon. Kyengo Maweu, MP.

NIIN No. tl36l20t6: (lONl'lltMA'tlON Ol- lll INIJTIIS

Minutes of the 295th sitting were confirmed as a true record of the proceedings of that day, after being
proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai. MP and seconded by l{on. Andrerv Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 296th sitting were confirmed as a true record of the proceedings of that day, after being
proposed by Hon. Alice Chae, MP and seconded by Hon. Kyengo Maweu, MP.

MIN No. 112812016
Members emphasized concern over the delay ofsubnrission ofthe Special Audit reports to
Parliament for their examination. The meeting resolved to write to the Auditor Ceneral to commit himself
in writing as to when he rvould complete all the reporls as rvell as the 20 l4i I 5 FY report.

MIN No. I t33/2016
The Chairman thanked all members and staffrvho managed to attend the dinner he hosted at his house.

MIN No. ll3ti/2016: CONSIDERATION OF'l'llE REPORI'OF TllE DE,I,E,GATION TO CIIINA'S
NA', ()NAt, t'ta()l,l.t,t's ('()N(;t iss

The Chairman commended the team that travelled to China for prompt preparation of their report. Members

resolved to read the report and debate it for adoption during the Kisumu report writing retreat. The report by

the delegation to United States' Congress would also be examined during the same retreat.

MIN No. I139/2016: C()NSIITE IIATION OI,' 'l'llE IION. SPEAKER'S (lOI\'l l\lUN l(lATlON ON

The Committee noted the Hon. Speaker's communication to the llouse made on Wednesday 4th May, 2016.
'fhe Chairman took the meeting through the communication. It was then resolved that the Comminee would

report to the House after recess that it was able and ready to examine these accounts, and would in fact do so

by end of June. 20 I 6.

Torvards this end, the Secretariat was tasked to establish the number ofall such repons before Parliament

MIN No. I l.10/2016: ANY OTtlEIt BUSINESS

Hon. Jackson Rop, MP inlbrmed the meeting that he would lead a delegation of the Committee to Rwanda

fbr an EAAPAC Executive Committee meeting and rvould thcrefore join the rest of the Committee in

Kisumu on Wednesday I ltr' May, 2016.

\llN No. I l-17/201(r: NL\'l'l lllis ,\lllSlN(;

.tIIE I|XANIINATION OIT ACCOUNTS ()F P0LITI('AL PAIT'[IES



N{IN No. I l{l/2016: AI).IOUI{NMIINT

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at forty five minutes past eleven O'clock in the

morning. Next meeting would be on 9s May,20l6 at 10.00 am in Kisumu.

Signed

(Chairperson)
Datc... . 'htu
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14. Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P.
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MINUTii,S C TIIE TWO I,IUNDREDTH AND SIX'I'Y EIGHTTI (268III) SITTING OF 'fIIIi
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON MONI)AY. 7I HDECEMBEIT. 20I5 AT 2.30 P.M. IN

COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

AI]SIIN'I' WITII APOI,OGY

IN ATTE,NDANCE



't'tuaAsultY
Geoffiey Mwitari

OFTICE

Parliamentary Liaison Offlccr

OF TI1E AUDITOR EN[,IIAL

L Francis Gichure
2. Calherine Mwash<t

Manager, Audit
Manager, Audit

MIN No. I004i2015: PITELI INA IIIES
'l-he Chairperson called the meeting to order at three o' clock in the afternoon. A prayer was saidfollowed by
inl.roductions by all present.

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

Tlte Chairman informed the mecting that Mr. CaroliOmondi who was scheduled to appear before the
Comtnittee had at the last minute sought a reschedule of his meeting with the Committee on the IEBC
Auditor Gencral's spccial Audit report due to unavoidable circumstances. The Cornmitlee resolved to accept
his request and reschedulcd his appearalrce to a later date to be comrnunicated.

MIN No. 1007/2015: ANY OTIIMT l]T]SINESS

I. SI'I'E VISIT
The Chairman inforrned the Cornmittec that there was nced to preparc a draft program indicating
areas to be visited by PAC Members to ascertain status of various projects as outlined in the
Auditor General's 201312014 report. A researcher attached to the committee was tasked to
identify the areas to be visited and come up with clear terms of reference which will guide
Members during the site visits.

2. ACCOUNTING OI?FICE,ITS APPIIARAN [, SHCU)ULII AND RIIPO 'T WIII'I'ING
'fhe cornmittee directed the clerks to finalise on accounting officer's appearance schedule lor
January 201(r and prepare Ietters of invite to bc issued to all accounting officers who'vc not
clearcd tlreir subr.r.rissions onlhe Auditor Ce neral's 2013/2014 report before the Committce.

It was agreed tlrat preparations towards repofi writing retreat be made early. A date for the repon
writing was scheduled for the first wcek of February 2016 after receipt of all pending
subrn issions fiom Accounting Officers.

It was also agreed that a letter be issued to the Cabinet Secretary, National 1'reasury requesting
hirn to re appear before the Committee so as to answer further questions an<l clarify on rnatters
pertaining the euro bond.

IvIIN No. 1005/2015: CONI,'II{MATION OF MINUllllS

MIN No. 1006/2015: SUBMISSION BY MR. CAIIOLI OMONDI ON IEBC,S SPECIAL AIJDIT
IIIiPORT BY THE AUDITOR GBNEIIAL



'I'he,Committee directed that the Auditor General provide a written submission on issues referrcd

to his office by the committee during inquiries ofthe 2013/2014 report books olaccounts. The

subrnission to be done before the committee embarks on report writing.

)l IN No. l(Xl8/2015:- AI).lOUI{NN'l l'lN'l'

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at tenminutes tofive in the afternoon. Next sitting to be

held on 8'h December,20l5 at 10.00 am

SI(;NI'I) D^r'r......-) 5 .2.,-\ b

(Chairpc

\



MINUTES OF THE TWO HUNDREDTH AND SIXTY N INETH (269TH} SITTING OF THE PUBLIC

ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE PAc) H ELD ON TUESDAY 8TH DECEMBER,2015 IN COMMITTEE

ROOM 9, MAI N PARLIAMENT BUILDING. AT 10.30 A.M

MEMBERS PRESENT

1. Hon.
2. Hon.

3. Hon.
4. Hon.
5. Hon.
6. Hon.

7. Hon.
8. Hon.
9. Hon.
10. Hon.
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Joseph Manje, M.P.
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.,unet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

David Eseli, M.P.

Chairman

Vice- chairman1. Hon. Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

2. Hon. Joel onyancha, M.P.

3. Hon. Mathias Robi, M.P.

4. Hon. John Mbadi, M.P.

5. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

6. Hon. Kanini Kega, M.P.

7. Hon. Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

8. Hon. Julius Melly, M.P.

9. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

10. Hon. Arthur Odera, M.P.

11. Hon. Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

12. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P.

13. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

14. Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

15. Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.

16. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

17. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

IN ATTENDANCE

1. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2, Ms. Chelagat Tungo

3. Mr. Chelanga Maiyo
4. Mr. Rodgers Kilunda

MlN. No. 1008/2015: PRELIMINARIES

1

ABSENT WITH APOLOGY

NATIONAL ASSEMBTY

Principal Clerk Assistant ll

Clerk Assistant ll

Research Assistant
Hansard Recorder

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 10.45 a.m. and a word of prayer was said.



MlN. No. 10 9/2015: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Minutes of the 229'h sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
day, after being proposed by Hon. Alice Chae, MP and seconded by Hon. Joseph Man1e, Mp.

Minutes of the 230th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, Mp and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 231st sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, Mp and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 232nd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 233d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, Mp and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 234th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon.
Stephen Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 235th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, Mp and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, Mp.

Minutes of the 235th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. David Eseli, Mp and seconded by Hon. Nicolas
Gumbo, MP.

Minutes of the 237th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Joseph Manje, Mp and seconded by Hon. Junet
Mohamed, MP.

Minutes of the 238th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 239th sittinB were confirmed as the true record of the proceedinBs of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 240th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, Mp and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Ra i, MP.

Minutes of the 241'r sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, Mp and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, Mp.
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Minutes of the 242"d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon.
Stephen Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 243'd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meetin8, after being proposed by Hon. David Eseli, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai, Mp.

Minutes of the 244th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 245th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Alice Chae, MP and seconded by Hon. Joseph Manje,
MP.

Minutes of the 246th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP

Minutes of the 247th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 248th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 249th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 25oth sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 252nd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, Mp.

Minutes of the 253d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 254th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai,

MP.
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Minutes of the 251't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.



Minutes of the 255th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Junet Mohamed, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 255th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, Mp and seconded by Hon..,unet
Mohamed, MP.

Minutes of the 257th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, Mp and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, Mp.

Minutes of the 258th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 259th sittlng were conflrmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 260th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, Mp and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 261'! sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, Mp and seconded by Hon. Nicolas
Gumbo, MP.

Minutes of the 252nd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, Mp and seconded by Hon. Manson
Nyamweya, MP.

Minutes of the 253'd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 264th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Joseph Manje, Mp and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai,
MP.

Minutes of the 265th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon, Andrew Mwadime, Mp and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 266th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meetjng, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, Mp and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, M P.
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Minutes of the 267th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that

meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Manson Nyamweya, MP and seconded by Hon.

David Eseli, MP.

Under Min. No. 853/2015 and Min. No.859/2015:
The Chairman requested the secretariat to include statements of daily office routine

for all witnesses as presented during the enquiries.

MrN- No. tottlz0ls: ANY OTHER BUSINESS

A draft program indicating areas to be visited by PAC Members to ascertain status of various

projects as outlined in the Auditor General's Report was presented to the Members by Mr.

chelanga Maiyo, Research officer. The committee agreed to approve the site visit program

in the next ln-House meeting.

Signed oate t7 I L212o75.

(Chairpe n)

1i

MIN. No. 1010/2015: MATTERS ARISING

Minutes of the 231't and 232nd sittinqs

MlN. No. 1012/2015: ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at half past noon.
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3. Hon.
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6. Hon.
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9. Hon.
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2. Mr. Victor Weke

Principal Clerk Assistant

- Clerk Assistant [l

I',\tU _l \l ,_N I Bt .t )l\(;s.

NA'I'IONAI- ASSI!NII}I,\'



3. Ms. Winnie Kulei
4. Mr. Chelang'a Maiyo
5. Mr. Rogcrs Kilungya

,I'I{}]ASUIIY

Geoflrey Mwitari

I . Mr. Richard Nyagwachi
2. Mr. John Wagura

3. Mr. Anthony Muriuki
4. Mr. Lawrence Oigara

Research Officer
Research Ol-ficcr
Audio Officer

Parlianrentary Liaison Offi cer

Senior Manager, Audil
Supervisor, Audit
Manager, Audit
Assistant Manager, Audit

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past ten o'clock in the morning
A prayer was said followed by introductions by all present.

lVllN No. l0 l 1 l 2(l l 5 : COh- F l llM A'l'l ON OF }IINUI'ES

MIN No. l0l5/2015: liVIDli,n*Cll,: l\'l INISTRY OF IIIiAL'III

Thc Annroprialion Accoun ts. Othe r l'u blic Acco un(s ;rnrl the Accounts of lho Iiur(ls lbr
t hc20l3/2() l4 Irinancial Year

Mrs Khadija Kassachoon, Principal Secretary, Ministry of Healthaccompanied by Messrs.:-
(i) Mr. Mark Rafimbi - IIRMA
(ii) Mr. David Njoroge - DHRM & D
(iii)Mr. Mutua Kilu - DCHAO
(iv)Mr. David Waititu - Project Manager RHp III
(v) Mr. Churchil Kuria - Senior Accountanl
(vi)Ms. Anne Gathoni - Senior Accountanl
(vii) Ms. Charity Muriuki - Chief Accountant
(viii) Mr. B. Khadiagala - Senior Chief Finance Oflicer
(ix) Dr. Peter Kimuu - Deputy Director, Medical Services
(x) Dr. Nduku Kilonzo - Director, NACC
(xi)CPA Ken Nyamolo - Head Financc, NACC

Appeared belore the comm ittcc and gave evidencc on
(i) Paragraph 195 on Exchcquer Releases

2

oFFI(]I' OI' I'IIIi ATII)I'I'OIi (;ItNI,IIAL

MIN No. l0l3/2015: I)lt ELI M INA lll ES

Thc agenda item was defered to the next sitting. There were thus no matters arising.



Further, the Auditors confirmed that the following paragraphs had been resolved;

(ii)
( iii)
(iv)
(v)

(i)

( ii)
(iiD

( iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

Paragraph 196 on Proceeds from Domestic And F'oreign Grants

Paragraph 197 on Transfer from Other Covernment Entities

Paragraph 198 on Unsupported Receipts

Paragraph 199 on Expenditure Without Parliamentary Approval

Paragraph 200(ii & iii) on Outstanding lmprest and Bank Reconciliation

respectively

Paragraph 203 on Authority to Incur Expenditure

Paragraph 212 (ii) on Stalled Project: Proposed upgrading of facilities at

Othaya level IV Hospital phase 2

Paragraph 213 on Construction of proposed central radioactive waste

processing facility at Ololua, Ngong

Paragraph 218 on Trade and other receivables

Paragraph 219 on Trade and other receivables

Paragraph 222 on Staternent of receiPts and payments

Paragraph 225 on Global Fund Malaria Round 4

Paragraph 228 on Cash and Cash equivalent

I'IiNI)IN(; ISSt]I!S
(i) Paracraoh 196 n Proceeds frorn Domestic And l"ore icn Grants

TheCorrmittee noted that the query touching on Moi Teaching and Ret'crral

Hospital and Nutrition Department had been resolved. The Accounting Olficer

was granted two days to resolve accounting issues on the GAVI HSM project.

( ii) Parasraoh I 97 on Transfcr from Other Government Entitie S

The Committee gave the accounting officer one week to adjust accounting

entries accordingly. Further, the rninistry would provide a status update of
funds outstanding fronr counties and treasury.

(iii) ParaqraDh 198 on Unsuppo Rccciots

The Accounting Officer was given one week to provide supporting docutncnts.

The auditors would further review the adjustments in the subsequent financial

year accounts.

( ir') Parasraoh 199 on Exoend iture ilhout Parliarncntarv Aooroval

The Accounting Officers' response was unsatisfactory. The Comnrittee gave

her two weeks to rnake amends.

The cornmiltea goye lhe Accounling OfJicer ln'o weeks t0 provide lo lhe Auditor Gattrtl
salisfactory responses lo oll oulstonding queries ond petttlitrg issues.

-)



]!IIN. N .r016/20t5 A t).t o U RNI\I r,tNl-

'lhere being no other busincss, the meeting adjourned at half past one o, clock in the
aftcrnoon. l)ate of next s ing was set as l0'r' December, 201 5 at 10.00 am

SIGNED.,.......
(Chai n)

-l



ABSE,NT WITH APOLOGY

I . Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

2. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.

3. Hon. Stephen Manoti, M.P.

4. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

5. Hon. Mathias Robi, M.P.

6. Hon. Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P
7. Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P

Chairman

Vice- Chairman

L Mr. Daniel Mutunga - Principal Clerk Assistant II
2. Ms. Chelagat Tungo Aaron - Clerk Assistant Il
3. Mr. Chelanga Maiyo - Research Officer
4. Mr. Rodgers Kilunja - Hansard Recorder

1. Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant

MINUTES OF THE TWO HUNDREDTH AND SEVENTY FIRST (271ST) SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY I5TII DECEMBER.20I5 AT IO.3O A.M.
AND 2.30 P.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

PREST]NT

l. Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

2. Hon. Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

3. Hon. Timothy Bosire, M.P.

4. Hon. Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

5. Hon. Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

6. Hon. John Mbadi, M.P.

7. Hon. Andrew Mwadime, M.P.

8. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

9. Hon. David Eseli, M.P.

10. Hon. Julius Melly, M.P.

I I . Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.

12. Hon. Arthur Odera, M.P.

13. Hon. Joel Onyancha, M.P.

14. Hon. Kanini Kega, M.P
15. Hon. Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

16. Hon. Gonzi Rai, M.P.

17. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

I 8. Hon. Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

19. Hon. Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

20. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P

IN ATTENDANCE
NATIONAL ASSEMBLY

NATIONAL TREASUITY



OFFICE, OF TIIE, A I.JDITOIt (;ENERAL

1. Mr. Richard Nyagrvachi
2. Mr. Rowland Kinyeki -

3. Mr. Stephen Taiku
4. Mr. Raphael Ikarne

Senior Manager Audit
Manager Audit
Assistant Manager Audit
Parl iamentary Liaison OIIIcer

NtlN No. l0l7l2015: I'REI,IN{ INAI{IES
The Chairperson called the meeting to order at ten minutes to eleven in the morning and prayed
Introductions by all present followed.

MIn- No. l0l8/2015: CONF IRMAl'ION OF MINTITES
The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were no matters arising

'f hc Annronriation Acco[nts, Othcr Public Accounts and the Accou ls of thc Funds for the
20 t 3/201.1 Financial Ycrrr

Mrs Mariamu El Maawy, Principal Secretary of Ministry of Lands and Housing and Urban Development
accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Patrick Bucha - SH
(ii) Samson Ongalo - Head Accounting
(iii) Ann B. Nyikuli - DA
(iv) Esther N. Ogega - DLAS
(v) Mabeya Mogaka - Ag. DA
(vi) Juliana Mutua - Ag. Depury Director
(vii) Stephen Waruinge - CA SFT
(viii) Eng. John Maina - SMD
(ix) Charles Wafula Sikuku - Ag. Director
(x) Joseph Zachary Abuta - Finance expert
(xi) Arch. S.K. Muli - Ag. CA
(xii) Eng. E.N. Waithaka - Ag. ELE

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 317 on Govemment Housing Projects at West Park
(ii) Paragraph 318 on Kibish Police Station and GSU Base Camp Project
(iii) Paragraph 319 on Kenya Narional Spatial Data Infrastructure Complex
(iv) Paragraph 320 on Construction ofVoi Pool Housing
(v) Paragraph 321 on Construction ofVoi Teachers Training College
(vi) Paragraph 322 on Rehabilitation Works on S elected roads in Gikomba
(vii) Paragraph 323 on Supply, Installation, Testing and Commissioning of an Intergrated Urban

Surveillance System tbr Nairobi Metropolitan Areas (CBD)
(viii) Paragraph 324 on Consultancy Services for Aerial Survey and Mapping of Nairobi

Metropolitan Region
(ix) Paragraph 325 on Consultancy Service for Preparation of Spatial Planning Concept for

Nairobi Metropolitan Region
(x) Paragraph 326 on Economic Stimulus Projecrs (ESP)

MIN No. l0l9/2015: EVIDENCFI,: MINISTI{Y OF LANDS



(xi) Paragraph 327 on Non- Compliance with Procurement Procedures

(xii) Paragraph 328 on Construction and maintenance work at Robert Ouko Estate

(xiii) Paragraph 329 on Revenue Paid to Exchequer
(xiv) Paragraph 330 on Revenue Collected by Kenya Revenue Authority
(xv) Paragraph 331 on Appointment ofreceiver ofRevenue
(xvi) Paragraph 332 on Understatement ofRevenue
(xvii) Paragraph 333 on Arrears ofrevenue
(xviii) Paragraph 334 on Revenue Collection
(xix) Paragraph 335 on Agricultural Settlement Fund Trustees; Financial Position

(xx) Paragraph 336 on Presentation ofthe Financial a Statements

(xxi) Paragraph 337 on Fixed Assets

(xxii) Paragraph 338 on Loans

(xxiii) Paragraph 339 on Unanalyzed Balances

(xxiv) Paragraph 340 on Equity
(xxv) Paragraph 341 on Cash and Bank Balance

(xxvi) Paragraph 342 on Investment Property

(xxvii) Paragraph 343 on Kenya Slum Upgrading, Low Cost Housing and Infrastructure Trust Fund

(KENSUF): Opening Balances

(xxviii)Paragraph 344 on Unsupponed Balances

(xxix) Paragraph 345 on Loss on Disposal ofObsolete items

(xxx) Paragraph 346 on Presentation of Financial Statements

(xxxi) Paragraph 347 on Unrecovered Debts

(xxxii) Paragraph 348 on Unconfirmed Balances

(xxxiii)Paragraph 349 on Unsupported Balance

(xxxiv) Paragraph 350 on Unreconciled Cash and Bank Balance

(xxxv) Paragraph 351 on Un reconciled Stores Deficiency Balance

i. Parasraoh 317 on Government Housins Proiects at West Park

The Accounting Officer informed the Commiftee that the huge variation was as a result of quantities

ofwork. The project had stalled for many years.

The Principal allocation of the project should have taken into consideration from inception to

completion. The Committee requested the Accounting Officer to provide a detail breakdown of
Kshs. 212,859, 659.78. The Accounting Officer should also explain the discrepancies and the l2o/o

variation on the contract sum which was in violation of laws. Provide quantified breakdown of the

variations.

Documents have been provided for verification by Auditors. The only pending issue is on interest

payments that have been incurred.

Parasraoh 3 l8 on Kibish Police Station and C SU Base Camo Proiect

The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that the main reason for the extension of the

contract period was delay in certified payments to the contractor

The Comminee requested the Accounting Officer to provide details of the contractors that were

engaged to carry out the work and give a delailed breakdown ofamounts payable to them.

Need to indicate when the contract should have ended.

t.

P[,NDIN(; ISSU ES

ll

Parasraph 321 on Construction ofVoi Teachers Trainine College



The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that the Ministry is still expecting completion of
delayed work which had been paid for payments. The Contractor has since resumed normal
construction progress after settlement of pending payment.

Auditor was concerned wilh the abandonment ofthe project and it was nol clear to them who was to
take liability.
The Project was 90%o complete as at July 2014 and now 9502. And that the Ministry has sufficient
funds allocated towards completion ofthe project.

iv. Parasranh 329 on Reven ue Paid to Exchequer
The Accounting Officer informed the meeting that they were still liaising with KRA on collection of
land rates since the figures are not tallying.
Need to confirm how much was collected by the ministry and how much was put into the exchequer
and show roof of the 896,473.470 collected by the Ministry and trail of remittance to KRA. No Clear
agreement with KRA on collection

v. Parasraoh 333 on Arrears of revenue

The Committee recommends that the Ministry work with the National Treasury to ensure the issues
are resolved. Need to provide statements of rent arrears.
Land rate areas as at 30'h June 2Ol4 5,096,755,710.43 as at 30th June 2015 7,1l4,3gg,l4Z.5O
Recommended to work with the credit reference bureau so as to ensure those who are in arrears
become an implication on one's credit worthiness.

vi. Paraeraoh 33 5 on Agricu ltural Settlement Fund Trustees: Fin ial Position
The Auditor General highlighted that there was a big loss which threatens existence of the funds.
Response given is satisfactory.

\II ara ll h J36 on Pre f the Financial Statemen
'fhe Auditor informed the Committee that financial Statement did not include the reporting
lramework used to prepare the financial statements, the accounting policies and principles applied, a

statement of cash flow, a statement ol changes in net assets and non- current assets movement
schedule which is contrary to the requirements of International Public Sector Accounting Standards.
lssue remains pending.

viii. Parapranh 337 on Fixed Assets

The Accounting officer was requested to come up with a policy proposing to hire consultants who
will prepare the asset register

l\l I N No. 020/2015:- AD.IO ME,NT

There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at twenty minutes past one in the afternoon

SI(;NIit) DATE..}.\

ix. Paragraph 347 on Unrecovered Debt
The Accounting Oflicer provided a detailed list ofthe debtors for verification by the auditors.

(Chairpcrson)f

\ ?A}



MINUI'ES O}.'THETWO HTJNDII.EDTH AND SEVINTY SECOND (272NI) SIT'I'ING OF TIII']
PI.;I}LIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE IIELD ON MONDAY I81'II .IAN'UARY,20I6 AT 2.30 P.M' IN
COI\IMITTEE ROOM 9, MAIN PARLIAMENT BTIILDIN(;.
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2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. I{op, M.P.
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Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

David Eseli, M.P.
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Kanini Kega, M,P
Manson Nyamweya, M.P.
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3. Hon.
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5. Hon.

6. Hon.
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9. Hon.
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Stephen Manoti. M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Ju lius Melly, M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki. M.P.

GonziRai, M.P.

Jessica Mbalu, M.P
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John Mbadi, M.P.

Mathias Robi, M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P
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l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Ms.Chelagat Tungo
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1. Mr. Ceotliey Mwitari - Chief Accountant

()lf t,'t( ti ()f'1'Ull Atrl)t't()tr (;t,]NIiI{AL

1. Mr. Samuel Chege

2. Mr. Leonard Opar
3, Mr. Sarnrny Githinj i

4. Ms.Evelyne Kauna
5. Mr. Raphacl Ikame Parliamentary Liaison Of'llccr

ll I N Nrr. l02l l20l6: PI{ I.]LI }I I NA It I I'S
'l'he Chairperson called the meeting to order at lorty five minutes past two o'clock in the alternoon and
prayed. Introductions by all present followed.

sc r I..N(l AND TECIINOt,()(;YI:

l lrc.\rrrrrrr riirt ion Accounls. other I)u blic Accoun ls and the Accounts of lhc Funds for thel)
20 | 3/201{ Fina ncia I Year

Dr' BelioKipsang,Principal SecretaryBasic Education and Prof. ColletaSuda Principal Secretary Higher
Education accompanied by Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Ezra Magati
( ii) Mr.Abdi Aden
( iii) Mr. John Tuwei
(iv) Ms. Judith Nyakawa
(v) Elymary,ta Khaoya
(vi) Zachary Ooko
(vii) Caliph Ornbati
(viii) James Kiburi
(ix) H.S. Abdi
(x) C.W. Kariuki
(xi) Grace Muriuki
(xii) Kilonzo Musiu
(xiii) Enoch Onditi

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph l68on Current Grants and Transfers to Government Agencies and other levels of

Government
(ii) Paragraph 169 on Outstanding Imprest
(iii) Paragraph 170 on Unrecovered Salary Advance
(iu) Paragraph l7l on Pending Bills
(v) Paragraph 172 on Audit ofSecondary school
(vi) Paragraph 173 on Donor Funded Projects
(vii) Paragraph 174 on Prior Year Unresolved Matters

MIN No. 102212016: CONFIITMATION OF M|NU'I'I.]S
1he agenda ilern was delbrred to the nexl meeting. Thcrc rvere thus no ntatters arising.

N'IlN No. 102-l/201(l: IivIl)llNCIi: l)lt. tltit-IO KIt's^N(;, t,s MINts't'Ry ot,' EI)trcAt loN



(i,iii) Phragraph

(ix) Paragraph

(x) Paragraph

(xi) Paragraph

(xii) Paragraph

(xiii) Paragraph

(xiv) Paragraph

(xv) Paragraph

(xvi) Paragraph

(xvii) Paragraph

(xviii) Paragraph

(xix) Paragraph

(xx) Paragraph

(xxi) Paragraph

(uii) Paragraph

(xxiii) Paragraph

(xxiv) Paragraph

(xxv) Paragraph

(xxvi) Paragraph

(xxvii) Paragraph

175 onDistrict Expend iture

176 on Presentation of Financial Statements

177 on Bank Balances

178 on Presentation olthe Financial Statements

179 on Cumulative to-date Surplus

180 on Cash and Cash Equivalents

l8l on Delay in Project ComPletion

I 82 on Non- Accounted for Assels

183 on Non- Submission ofthe Special Account Statement

184 on Prior Year's Unresolved Issues

185 on Cash at Bank

186 on Non- Financial Assets

187 on Unaccounted for Assets- Photocopy Machines

I 88 on Furniture, Books, Conputers and other Equipment

189 on Inaccuracy in Financial statements

190 on Prior Year Unresolved Matters

I 9l on Unaccounted for District and Headquarters Expenditure's

192 on Un- reconciled Food Records

193 on Inaccuracy ofthe Financial Statements

194 onGovernment Counterpart Funding Budget

PENDIN(; ISSUES
168 o nt Grants d Transfers vcrnlfle cncles Ir r level(i)

Covernm

The Committee directed the Auditor to look at the documentation and respond within one

week.

(ii) Parasraoh 169 on OuIstandins Imorest

The Accounting Officers informed the Committee thatrecoveries were on going and

communication to the concerned had been done.

The Committee requested the Accounting officer to subrnit a signcd status recovery report

within one week.

( iii) Paraera h l7l on Pendi no Bills

Thc Auditor general had requested for a list of expenditure of 308 due to a supplier in

respect of Provision of Microsoft Software Licenses and upgrades for the Ministry and

various schools.

The Accounting officer inforrned the Committee that the Ministry did not pay an excess ol'

138,000 shillings and will provide documentations on the same to thc Auditors fbr

verification

(iv) Parasranh 172 on Audit of Secondarv school

Some ofthe unresotved matters include issues on Rent Income Arrears, Institutional Creditors.

Misallocation charged Expenditure, and overpayment of construction work at Kamukunji

Secondary.

The Accounting officer informed the committee thal on various structural weaknesses

identified in the audit report, the Board of Management had adopted thc



Engincer'srecornmcndations lor the improvement of the structural design as supported by the
Board Minute 2/512015 attached in the annexes oftheir responses.
The Accounting Olficer was instructed to provide documents to the Auditors for veriiication
and to provide a list ofsign offs indicating the schools which received Computers
'fhe comrnittee also directed the Accounting officer to resolve the matters with the Auditor
General within 7 days. Audit query remains pending.

l)irra u r h 173 on Donor I:unrlcd l)roicct:l I)(v)

(xi)

Thc Committee directed the Auditor to look at the documentation and respond within one
u,cck

(v i) ParaIranh 174 on Pr tor Ycar Ljnresolved Matters
The Accounting officer infonned the meeting that on unsupported Expenditure on Sanitary
Towels. the Ministry entered into contract with three firms for the supply of the sanitary
towels to schools in seven provinces. II was however noted that documentations including
returns from the diff'erent Dllos and recipient schools confirming receipt of the sanitary
towels were not produced for Audit review and therefore propriety of the expcnditure could
nol be ascertained.

The Committee requcsted the Accounting officer to provide the documentary evidencc for
verification by the Auditors.

(vii) Parag raph 175 on I)istrict Exncnditure
on rcpair of Motor Vehicles, thc Accounting officer inlormed the committee that there was
an anomaly with thc way ofllcers handled the repair ofa vehicle and payment.
Thc Auditor undcrrook to l.erify the matter and report to the commitlee.

(viii) Paral IA h 177 on llank Balanccs
The Accounting officer inlormcd the committee that the issue had since been rectified in
revised financial statements for the year 2014120'15.The committec directed the Accounting
Olficer to review the matters with the Auditor.

( ix) Paragra h 188 on [iurnitu re. Ilooks. Como uters and other urpnrcnt
The Accounting officer informed the meeting rhat the information was available and would be
availcd to the Auditor for verification
The Accounting otl'icer undertook to provide necessary documentation which rvould be
verified by the Auditor.

(x) Parauranh 190 on Drror Year I Jnresolvcd mattcrs
Thc Accounting ollicer pointcd our rhat thc difference ofKshs. 135,135,740 is accumulativc
balances of prior years' rvhich will be adj usted in the financial year ending 30tl' Junc, 20 l 5
Thc Comrnittee directed the Auditor to look at the documcntation and rcspond within 7 days.

Para[raoh 192 on [Jn reconciled fcrod records
lt was noted that distribution times for thc food in rhc Ministry is diff'erent frorn the time ol'
receipt olthe same barch of food rhus making it difficult to tally and account lor appropriatcly.
The Comrnittee reconrrlended that the Accounting olficer put some levels of scrutiny on thc
issue ol food distribution so as to ensure that it was well distributed.



.l-he conrmittee directed the Auditors to reconcile with an eye on checking the lorensic

c()nrllollcl'lt

I. ial etll, iic

The Comnrittee directed the Auditor to look at the doculnentation and respond within one

u'eek

NfIN. No. l0 l) l6: I}

MIN No. 1025/20 I (r: - Al).lo N'l'

There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at tenminutes pastsix in the evening'

DATE )1. 3 '?-n t Q

(xii)

The chairman informed the meeting that the Former Prime Minister, Hon Railaodinga, had requested to be

grantedanopportunitytoappearbeforetheCommitteeinordertoshadesomelightontheEurobondSaga'
The committee resolved to accept his request and scheduled his appearance to Monday, 25'h at 10 00 arn'

The Secretariat was tasked to *rit" un invitation letter and identify a suitable venue for the Meeting

UII,NMIi

SIGNE,t)

(Chairpe
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6. Ms.ZainabWario

1. Mr. Geoflrey Mwitari
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1. Ms. Janc Chege
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('h ie l'Accountant

Manager Audit
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o

MIN No. 1026/2016: I'ltELI INAITII]S
The Chairperson called the mecting to ord€r at twenty minutes past three antl a prayer was said
Introductions by all present followed.

MIN No.102712016: CON I.lllxlAl'toN OIr INUl'I!S
The agenda item was delcrred to thc nexl. mecting. There were thus no matters arising

l\'l I N No. 1028/201(r: EVID ItN(lll: l'AItl,lAM IN'I'AItY STIIVICII ('ol\{I\IISStON

'l he .\ nn rrr ttriation Accoun ts. ()lhr:l I'u blic ,\ CCounls and thc Accounts of the Funds for lhe
20t3 /201-1 l,'ina ncia I Ycar

Mr. Jeremiah Nyegenye, Clerk Senate/ SecretaryParliamentary Service Commission accompanied by:-
i. Mr. Clement Nyandiere
ii. Mr. Anthony Njoroge
iii. Mr. Joshua Mose
iv. Mr. P.A. Meikoki
v, Mr. Paschal Munuve
vi. Mr.IrunguKigunju

Appcared bcfore the committee and gavc evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 535on Retentron Money not Refunded
(ii) Paragraph 536on Dclay in Projcct lmplementation and Cost Variance

P r..N t)t N(; tss lltis
P:ra or h 535 on Retention Monc not Relunded(i) iL l)

The Accounting officer infonned the commitree that the final certificate of project
cornplction of the project had not been receivcd from the contractor hence warranting rclease
of the 5% retained funds. The outstanding balance and retention money relate to the contract
lor relurbishment of thc National Assembly chamber which was entered in order to provide
lor an expandcd National Assernbly as established under the new constitution. lt rvas als6
noted that tlrere were outstanding balances due to thc contractors that could not be paid until
thc projecr Managcr vcrificd claims in respcct of equipnrent supplied as well as claims lor

NAt'toNAI_'t'ttEAStJRt'



fluctuations based on alleged price fluctuation of imported equipment arising from exchange

rate changes

The Committee directed thc Accounting Officer to follow up on the issuance of the

Cornpliance Certificates by the project Manager to the Contractor and also provide a

The Comrnittee recomrnended that thc issue be resolved and cleared with the auditor since it

has been overtaken by timc

(ii) art h 536 on Dela in I)rtr cct lnl le rlen o Vlli n

1'he delays were occasioned by an assurnption displaccd by 9 rnonths, dissolving ol'

Parliamentl tight tim€lines provided lor by the Constitution and the Chamber was in use

beyond Septernber 20 l2 rvhen the contract work was supposed to be on-going.

The Accounting Officer informed the Cornrnittee that the contract timc had been extended and

that the Cost variation was provided fior in the contract. The Contractors wcre not to blarne fbr

the delays, but the PSC because of the wrong projections.

Nl I N No. I ll2t) l2ll I 6:- AI)JOUIINM ItNl'
'l'hefe being no other business to transact, tlre sitting ended at fifieenrr:inutes pastlour o'clock in the

afternoon.
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MINTJTES OI; TIIE'tWO IIUNDREDTII ANI) SEVENTY F'OI,IIII'II (27.I.'.II) SITTING OI,''|III!
I'III}I,IC ACCOUN'I'S (]OMMI'I"TEE ITELD ON ]'UESI)AY, IgIII.IANIIAt{Y, 20I6 A'I'4.30 P.M. IN
C]OM}II1"I'I.],Ii IIOO]II 9, MAIN PAITI,IANIEN'I' I}UILI)ING.

PItI'SENI'

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Ilon.
6. Hon.
7. Hon.

8. Horr.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

ll. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Andrew Mwadirne, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P
Timothy Bosire. M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub, M.l'.

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Mathias Robi, M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P
Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.
Kanini Kega, M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.
Arthur Odera, M.P.
David Eseli, M.P.

John Mbadi. M.P.

GonziRai, M.P.

Chairman

Vice- Chairman

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. llon.
7. Hon.

8. Ilon.
9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.
12. I Ion.

I 3. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

I. Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Ms.Tungo Aaron
3. Mr. EugineLutesh i

4. Mr.Chelanga Maiyo

5. Ms.Winnie Kulei
6. Ms.Zainab Wario

- Principal Clerk Assistant II
- Clerk Assistant II
Audio Recording Officer
- Research Officer
- Research Officer
- Serjeant at Arms
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r.',\' ONA t,', ,t^S t J It\'

1. Mr. (ieoi'frey Mwitari

o r,'t,'t cI o t,"t'I Iti A I] l) l't'oR ( ; tiNEltAL

1. Ms. Jane Chege

2. Mr. Joseph Mwangi
3. Mr. llaphael lkanre

ChicIAccountant

Manager Audit
Auditor
Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

NIIN No. l03l)/2016: l' lt I]LIM I NAIII IiS
'lhe Chairperson called the mecting to order at fwenty minutes to five o'clock and a prayer was said
lntroductions by all present followed.

II IN No.l0-l l/201(r: Cl()N ITMATION oF MINT]'TES
'l'hc agenda itern was del-erred to the next ntccting. Thcre wcrc thus no tnatters arising.

MIN No. 103212016: IiVlDf,NCIi: NA'I'IONAL POLICE SI,RVIC|I COMMISSION

Mr. OjangoOmumu, CEO National Police Service Commission accorrpanied by:-
i. Mr. P.M Wamoto
ii. Mr. F.J. Mugambi
iii. Ms Esther Kitonyi
iv. Ms. Rachael Mbidyo
v. Ms. Pauline Ngari
vi- Mr.lrungu Kigunju

Appeared belbre the committee and gave cvidence on:
(i) Paragraph 54lon Missing Motor Vehicle Logbooks
(ii) Paragraph 542on Payrnent olOfflce Accommodation
(iii) Paragraph 543 on Incornplcte Partitioning and rel'urbishment ofOffice

I'I.]NI)IN(; ISST]ES
(i) Paraeraph 541 on Missing Motor Vehicle Loebooks

l'he Comrnittee recommended that Mr. Achoch, tbrmcr Officer lrom the National Police
Service Conrmission be sunrmoned to appear belore the Committee to give an explanation on

thc where bouts of the log books and explain why he never handed over to the succeeding

CEO. A date was to be given and sumnlon letter issued by end oflhe week.

I)arasraoh 542 on Pavmcn t ol' OI'fi cc Accommodation
'l'he Cornrnittee noted with concern that the Comrnission had acquired a lot of spacc rvhich
was not necessary and at the same timc, very expensive lo maintain irr terms ofrent being paid

ibr unoccupied offices.

( ii)

'l'hc Al)Dropriation Accounts, Other Pul)lic Accounls and the Acco[nts of lhc F'unds for the
2Ol3l?0l4 F-ina ncial Ycar



It was recommended that the Cornmission do away with some of the unnecessary space so as

to avoid wastage on taxpayers' money.

( iii) Paraqraoh 543 on Incomplete Parti tionine and rcfurbishtnent ol Olllce
The Accounting Officer inlormed the Committee that the incomplete partitioning and

refurbishment of offices was occasioned by inadequate provision of funds leading to delays in

payments of certificates which caused delays in completion of works during tlre anticipated

period

It was noted thal the refurbishrnent works are nearing cornpletion. The Committee

recommended the Accounting Officer to ensure the work is completed within the shortest time

possible and auditors to verify.

MIn*. No. t033/2016: ANY O'f lt I],IT I}I,ISINIISS
The Chairrnan infonned the Committee that a site visit was to be conducted so as to ascertain completion ot'

partitioning and refurbishment of the National Police Service Commission Offices-
'fhe Secretariat were tasked to makc arrangements for the site visit.

l\'l IN No. 1034/2016: - Ar).roUIi.NMEN't-
There being no other business to transact, the sitting ended at hallpastfive o'clock in the afternoon
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MINU'IIES OII TIIE TWO HUNDREDTII ANt) SF],VENTY FIF'I'H (2751II) SITTINC O!' TIII|
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMM ITTEF] HIlLD ON WEDNESDAY. 2OTII.I NIJARY. 201(r AI' 10.00

A.M. In- (IOMMITTEE R(X)M 9. MAIN PARI,IAMI,]NT IIUII,I)I N(;.

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

12. Hon.

I3. Hon.

14. Hon.

15. Hon.

16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Gurnbo, M.P.

Jackson K. l{op, M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Andrew Mwadirne, M.P.
SakwlBunyasi, M.P.

David Eseli, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

John Mbadi, M.P.

Tirnothy Bosire, M.P.

Alice Nyanchoka Chac, M.P.

l'athia Mahbub. M.P.

Arthur Odera, M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.l'

Chairman

Vice- Chairrnan

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. tlon.
7. Hon.

8. Hon.

9. tlon.
10. Hon.

I l. Hon.

Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Conzi Rai, M.P.

Kanini Kega, M.P.
Mathias Robi, M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh. M.P.

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Victor Weke

3. Ms. Chelagat Tungo

4. Mr. Chelanga Maiyo

5. Mr. Collins Mahamba

6. Ms.Zainab Wario

- Principal Clerk Assistant

- Clerk Assistant Il
- Clerk Assistant Il
- Research Officer
- Audio Recorder

- Serjeant at Arms
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NATI0NAI,'I'ITI,]ASt]ItY

L Mr. Gcollrey Mwitari

1. Mr. Boniface Mulli -
2. Mr. J.M. Njuru
3. Mr. Raphael Ikanre -

Chief Accountant/ Parliarnentary Liaison Oftlcer

Ag. Dircctor, Audit
Audit Managcr

Parliamentary Liaison Offi cer

'l'he Vicc- Chairman called thc rneeting to order at fifteen minutes past ten o' clock in the morning. A prayer
was saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. I036/201(r: C()N l.'l I{MA'TIoN OI.' MINUTIS

'l'he agenda item was deferred to thc next meeting. Therc were thus no matters arising

i\{lN No. 1037/2 0l6: I,IVIDENC Il: MINIS'tllY Ol' ]'RANSPORT ANI) INFIIASTR T,]CTTJIII],

l hc ,,lnnropritliort,,lctoun ,othcr Puhlic Accouttts otttl lha Accounts of lhc Funds for the
2l) I3/20l4 liinanc ial l'at r

Iing. John Mosonik. Principal Secretary of Ministry of'I'ransport and lnfrastructure accompanied by
Messrs.:-

(i) Mr. Pcter M. Kusimba - Director Administralion
(ii) Eng. Jacob Z. Ruwa - Executive Director, KRB
(iii) Mr.Philip Wachira - Senior Depury Finance Officer
(iv) Ms. Leah Kimemia - Principal Accountant
(v) Mr. Benard A. Masiga- Senior Chief Finance Officer
(vi) Mr. G. A Kamasara - Senior Chief Finance Officer
(vii) Eng. Denis Odek - x Ceneral Manager, KENHA
(viii) Mr. J. K. Tarus - Accountanl
(ix) Mr. Patrick Chowde- Ag. General Manager Finance
(x) Mr. J.K. Mwangi - Principal Accountant
(xi) ting. B. B. Beja- CE (M)
(xii) Eng. Peter M. Mundimia - DG, KENHA
(xiii) Eng. Amos O. Ombou- Ag. General Managcr, KURA
(xiv) Eng. John Ogango - Director General, KERRA
(xv) Mr. Wilson Chirchir - CM Finance, KURA
(xvi) Mr. F.O. Oyugi - HIA&RM, KpA

Appeared bcfore the committee and gave evidence on:-
(i) Paragraph 232 on Accuracy ofFinancial Statements
(ii) Paragraph 233 on Unsupported l{eceipts and payments

0IIFI(]Ii OI.' THti ATIDIT0II (;I]NERAI,

MIN No. I 035/201 6: I,IiELIMtNARIlrS



( iii)
( iv)
(v)

(v i)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)
(xii)

Paragraph 234 on Other Receipts

Paragraph 235 on Proceeds from Dornestic and Foreign Grants

Paragraph 236 on Grants to Semi- Autonomous Government Agencies

Paragraph 237 on Budget Realization

Paragraph 238 on Erroneous 20l2l13 Comparative Balances

Paragraph 239 on Bank Reconciliation Statements

Paragraph 240 on Undisclosed Deposits Bank Balance

Paragraph 241 on Travel and Subsistence Allowances

Paragraph 242 on Supply of Computers and Related Equipment

Paragraph 243 on Failure ofthe National Treasury to Submit Railway Levy Fund Account

(i) Parasraohs 240 on Undisc losed Denosit Eank Accounts

It was observed that the Amount in Account Nurnber 1000182188 held at Central Bank ot

Kshs. 557,852,929.25 was not disclosed as cash in hand in the linancial statenrents. 
-I'he

Auditor informed the Committee that the new template did not have a provision for deposit

balances. However, consultation with the National Treasury was on-going and a report would

be submitted to the Committee.

The Accounting Officer informed the Committee that money received from World Bank for

capacity building is under developtnent budget and hence put in the devcloprncnt as

exchequer. When expensing its moved to the deposit account so as to enable spcnding. T hus

the statement of assets and liabilities for deposits for the year ended 30/0612014 was prcpared

and separately submitted together with the other Statement for both recurrent and dcvclopment

for auditors verifi cation.

The Committee noted with concern lhat the accounts holding the retention money due to

contractors was over drawn. Thus Recommended that a special audit be carried out in all

Ministries to ascertain the status of retention account and report back Io the Committee within

two weeks

The Committee instructed the Accounting Officer to put systems in place.

( ii) Paraqranhs 241 on Travel nd Subsistence Allowance

The Accounting Officer informed the meeting that the Budget fbr the two Ministries had been

prepared separately prior to the merger. None of the two State Departments had enough

provision to finance the team building thus a decision was made to utilize a portion of the

Mechanical fund without approval from National Treasury.

The queries remain pending.

(The Committee to make a decision on whether to invoke article 226 (5) of the Constitution)

(iii) l'anzraohs 242 on Suoolv of Corrnuters and Rc lated Eouioment

The Accounting ofTicer informed the committee that the items rvere procured and supplied to

the Ministry. The items were stored in a rvarehouse awaiting inspection but belore it was

inspected, the warehouse was broken into and some goods stolen. Thc Ministry had to pay the

supplier full amount for the supply since the goods had bcen received. 'l'lle matter was

reported to the Industrial area Police station, C.l.D and has also written to the Solicitor'

PI,NDIN(; ISSUES



General requesting his office to institute legal proceedings against Secure Homes Ltd security
Ilrm to recover the value of the equipment stolen since their guards were clearly part of the
t heft.

l'he committee requested the accounting olficer to prove whether the Ministry had a signed
contract with the security firm.

(iv) [)arauran lis 243 on Failure o I'the National I' ury to Subnr it ailwav Levv [iLrn Account
Thc Accounting officer infbrrned the cornrnittee that during the ycar under review, the
Ministry received Kshs. 6,627 ,645 ,067 .00 from the National rreasury and the same was
released to the payees accordingly

'I'he Auditor informed the meering that it would be prudent for the Ministry to operate rhe
bank account as opposed to it being operated by the National Treasury.

The Comrnittee recomnrended that the Accounting officer follow up with National rreasury
and ensure that the account is operated by the Ministry.

l. 'l he Cornmittee was inforrned that queries on Paragraphs 244 to 267 were being addressed by plC
sitlce thcy fall under the various Parastatals in lhe Ministry. '[he queries were erroneously included in
the books of account

2. I'hc Chairrnan informed lhe meeting that a letter had been sent to the Former Prime Minister giving
hint a chance to appear belbrc the Committee as per his kind request. It was also noted that thc
Cotntnittee room t had limited space to hold a number of Members and other people who might be
intercsted in attending the rneeting and therefore the Chairman opred to have a mecting with thc
Speakcr and the clerk. National Assembly so as to request for a bigger venue for the meeting.

N,IIN N o. I ()J()/2(ll6:- ,\l),]oUITNMII,N'I'

'l'hcrc being no other business, the sitting adjourncd at twentyminutes pasltwo o'clock in the atlcrnoon. Next
s rtt rllg to be held on Thursday 2l'r January, 201 6 at 10.00 am

st(;NI.I) I)A-IE...... 7,^\b
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8. Hon.

9. Hon.

10. Hon.

I l. I'lon.

12. Hon.

13. Hon.

14. Hon.

I 5. Hon.

16. Hon.

(Eng.) Nicolas Cumbo, M.P.

Jackson K. Rop, M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Joseph Manje, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime, M.P.

Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.

Arthur Odera. M.P.

David Eseli, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden. M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P

Kanini Kega, M.P.

Gonzi Rai, M.P.
'I'imothy Bosire, M.P.

Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

Jude Njomo, M.P.

John Mbadi, M.P.

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

Mathias Robi, M.P.

S ilvance Onyango Osele, M.P

Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

Alice Nyanchok aChae, M.P.

Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

Stephen Manoti, M.P.

Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

Joel Onyancha, M.P.

Chairman

Vice- Chairrnan

l. Hon.

2. Hon.

3. Hon.

4. Hon.

5. Hon.

6. Hon.

7. Hon.

8. tlon.
9. llon.
10. llon.
ll. Hon.

IN .\1 't't,lN 
t ),\ NC I..

NA'I'I()NAI, ASSIiMIILY

l. Mr. Daniel Mutunga

2. Ms.Tungo Aaron

3. Mr. Rodgers Kilunja

Principal Clerk Assistant II
Clerk Assistant ll
Research Officer

MINU'TES OF THE TWO HUNDREDTH AND SEVENTY SIXTII (276TI') SIT'I'ING OI" 1'III'
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY.24I''NOVOMBEII,20I5 A'I- 10.45 A.M.

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDING.

l,lr t,.staNt'

AI}SIiNT WITII APOI,OGY

NATIONAI, TIIIiASI.JRY



1. Mr. Geolliey Mwitari - Ch ief' Accountant

or,'t,'t( I. otr t' li A tlt) Il ()R (;ttNI,){,\1.

L. Mr. lsaac Ngayai
2. Mr. l{aphael Ikarne

Managcr Audit
Parliamcntary Liaison Officer

I\{ 1N N o. 010/10l6: l'ltlrLl l \ .\ lU I.l s
The Chairpcrson called the meeting to order at eleven o'clock in the morning and a prayer was said
lntroductions by all present followed.

l\'l lN No. l04l /20 I (r: EVII)MCII: M TN IS', {Y ()r'rNr,' OITMATION COMMUNICA'I'I N ANI)
1'IiCI I Not,o(;\,

trrorrria lion Accou n ts. ()lhcr l' u l)lic Accounts and I he Accounls of thc Fu flds for thc
'l hc An
2lll3/201 4 Iiinancial Year

lVl rs. Alice Ontlicki.
\4 essrs r-

Mr. John Mwangi
Mr. K. A. Tanui
Ms. Julie Wahony.a

Mr. John Nyanzwi
Mr.l'etcr Mwangi

I

ii
iii
iv

I'SMinistry of Inlormation Comntunication and Technologyaccompanied by

Finance Manager

Deputy Director

Sen ior Legal Olficer
chief' Legal Ollicer
Deputy Director

Appeared before the committee and gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 365 on Double Payment for Goods and Services
(ii) Paragraph 366on Referred to Drawer Cheques
(iii) Paragraph 367 on Salary Advance
(iu) Paragraph 368 on hnprests
(v) Paragraph 369 on General Account ofVote - Long Outstanding Balance
(vi) Paragraph 370 on Exchequer Account

I'IiNI)IN(; ISSUES
(i) Parasraohs 36ll on ImDrcst

'lhe Accounting officcr inlbrrned the comrnittec thal the outstanding amount ol'Kshs.
208,250.00 was an imprest issued toorc of the Members of parliament who had accornpanicd
thc Ministerial delegation to attend an International ]'elecomrnun icationUn ion (lrU)
Conlerence in Bangkok, Thailand lrom lgth - 23'd November, 2013. The imprest had howevcr
not been surrendered to date. The committee was informed that the Ministry had written to
the clerk of the National Assembly to help recover rhe amount to enable the Ministry
reconcilc its books.

l he Auditor inlorrned the comnrittee that all tnatters had bcen resolved
NI I N. No. lll42 l2lll(r: ANY O-l'llEIt llt st N tiss



The Chairrnan inforrned the meeting that the Former Prime Minister. Hon. RailaOdinga had writtcn a letter

ro tlte committee informing Members that he was not going to be available for the meeting schedulcd fbr

Monday. 25rl' January, 2016

ln his Letter, he indicated that he was not aware that the Comminee had requested for a special audit on the

Eurobond saga and therefore would like to re-appear during the investigations of the special audit rcport

once tabled.

The Committee accepted his request and scheduled to invite the former Prime Minister to appear before tlre

Committee and give his submission once the audit report is tabled in Parliament.

'fhere being no otlrcr busine transact. the sitting ended at half pastelevcn in thc nlorning

S IGN T]I) D 
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ABSENT WITH APOLOGY

Jude N jomo, M.P.
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4. Hon.

5. Hon.

5. Hon.
7. Hon.
8. Hon.

9. Hon.
10, Hon.
1.1. Hon.
12. Hon.
l.3. Hon.
14. Hon.

1.5. Hon,

IN ATTENDANCE

NATIONAT ASSEMBLY

L. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Mr. Victor Weke
3. Ms. Winnie Kulei
4. Mr. Chela nga Maiyo
5. Mr. Rogers Kilu nja
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Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant/ Parliamentary Liaison Officer

MINU'TES OT'I'IItr,'two I{TJNDIII]D'I'TI AND SE,VENTY StrVENTII (277''') SI]--I'IN(; OI. TIIIi
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COMMIT'I'EE ROOM 9. MAIN PARLIAMENT I}UILI)ING.
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

1. Mr. R. N. Bichanga
2. Mr. J, K. Nkubitu
3. Mr. lsaac Ngayai
4. Mr. Ra phael lkame

Senior Manager, Audit
Manager, Audit
Senior Manager, Audit
Parliamenta ry Lia ison Officer

CEO/ Commission Secretary
Director, Fina nce
Director, Accounting
ADD
ADD
SDD, Legal

Director, Public Prosecutions
Senior Assista nt DPP

Chief Fina nce Officer
Sen ior Assistant Director, Administration
Assista nt Director, HRM
PrincipalAccountant

1. Ms
2. Mr
3. MS

4. Mr
5. Mr
6. Mr

Nancy Macharia
C. Ayabei
Grace Ngure
Joseph Mwangi
George Odawo
Allan Sitima

1. Mr. KeriakoTobiko
2. Mr. Paul Ndemo
3. Mr. Walter Oselu
4. Mr. Jacob Narengo
5. Ms. Monica Mburugu
6. Ms. Rose Ba raza

MIN No. LO44/2OL6: PRELIMtNAR| ES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past twoo'clock in the afternoon. A prayer
was saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

M lN No. 1045/2015: CONFIRMATION OF INUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN N . 1046/2016: EV ID ENCE: MS NANCY MACHARIA. CEO TEACHERS SERVICE C M M tSStONo

Thc Aoorooria ion Accounts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the
20t3/20L4 tinancial Yea r

PEN DING ISSU E5

(i) Paragraph540 on Stores and Cash Losses.

The committee instructed the Accounting officer to pursue the cases to completion. she was
further urged to seek audience with the commissioner General KRA and resolve the issue of
PAYE refunds.

TEACHERS SERVICE COMMISSION

DIRECTORATE OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS

Ms. Nancy Macharia, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 539 on Property, Plant and Equipment.
(ii) Paragraph 540 on Stores and Cash Losses.



MIN No. 1047/2016:- EVI DENCE MR KERIAKO TOBIKO DIRECTORATE OF PUBLIC PROSECUTIONS

Mr. KeriakoTobiko, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 521 on Accident to vehicle GK A 426N.

MIN No. 1048/2015: - ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at six o'clock in the evening. Next sitting to be held on

26th January, 2016 at 1O.OO am.

z I . ?. ?...- \L
Signcd................
(Chairperson)

l)alc

The Appropriation Accounts, other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Fu nds for the
2013/2014 Financial Year
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5. Hon.

6. Hon.
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Kangogo Bowen, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

John Mbadi, M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

Timothy Bosire, M.P.

Chairman
Vice- Chairman

1. Hon. Jude Njomo, M.P.

2. Hon. Kanini Kega, M.P.

3. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.

4. Hon. Stephen Manoti, M.P.

5. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

6. Hon. Charles Geni Mong'are, M.P.

7. Hon. Arthur Odera, M.P.

8. Hon. David Eseli, M.P.

9. Hon. Kareke Mbiuki, M.P.

10. Hon. Jessica Mbalu, M.P.

11. Hon. GonziRai, M.P.

12. Hon. Manson Nyamweya, M.P.

13. Hon. Joel Onyancha, M.P.

14. Hon. Mathias Robi, M.P.

IN ATTENOANCE
NATIONAL ASSEM BLY

- Principal Clerk Assista nt
- Clerk Assistant ll
- Clerk Assistant ll
- Resea rcher
- Audio Recorder

NATIONAL TREASURY

Mr. Geoffrey Mwitari - Chief Accountant/ Parliamentary Liaison officer

ABSENT WITH APOLOGY

1. Mr. Daniel Mutunga
2. Ms. ChelagatTungo
3. Mr. Victor Weke
4. Ms. Winnie Kulei

5. Mr. RoBers Kilungya



MINIST

OFF ICE OF TH E AUDITOR GENERAT

1. Mr. Fred Abugah
2. Mr. Moffat Gori
3. Mr. lsaac Ngayai
4. Mr. Ra phael lkame

RY OF AGRICULTU R E. TIVESTOCK & FISH ERIES

1. Dr. Richard Lesiyampe
2. Dr. Andrew Tuimur
3. Prof.Michen iNtiba
4. Dr. Kisa J. Ngeiywa
5. Mr. J u lius Kiptarus
6. Mr. Peter Odundo
7, Mr. Samuel Ku ng'u
8. Ms. F lorence Keitany
9. Mr. Benson Mwangi
10. Ms. Evelyn Ong'ondi
11. Mr. Joshua Musau
12. Dr. Harrison C. Karisa
13. Mr. Newton Terer
14. Mr. Cornel Ngelechey
15. Mr. Ernest Ogwora
16, Dr.RenisonRuwa -

17. Mr. Abraham Kagwima

Manager, Audit
Assista nt Manager, Audit
Senior Manager, Audit
Pa rliamenta ry Lia ison Officer

- PS, Agriculture
- PS, Livestock
- PS, Fisheries
- Director, Veterinary Services
- Director, Livestock Production
- Chief Fina nce Officer
- Chief Accountant
- Senior Accounta nt
- Principal Accountant
- Senior Finance Officer
- Assistant Director, Supplies
- Ag. Director, Fisheries Resources Devt. & Marketing
. MD, NCPB
- Ag. GM Finance, NCPB

- Manager Services Marketing, NCPB

Director, Kenya Marine & Fisheries Research lnstitute
- Deputy Director, Fina nce

The Chairman called the meeting to order at ten minutes past teno' clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 1050/2016: CONFTRMAT ION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

The Aooro p riation Acco unts , Other Public Accounts and theAccounts of the Fun or the

Dr. Richard Lesiyampe, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 414 on Construction of Biosafety Laboratory at Kabete, Nairobi
(ii) Paragraph 415 on Unreconciled Strategic stocks and commodities balances
(iii) Paragraph 416 on Undelivered goods
(iv) Paragraph 417 on Non-submission of financial statements and failure to account for funds by

Agriculture Sector Coordination Unit (ASCU)
(v) Paragraph 418 on Deposits
(vi) Paragraph 419 on lrregular Allocation of land
(vii) Paragraph 420 on Payables (Pending Bills)

MIN No. 1049/2016: PRELIMtNARtES

MIN No. 1051/2016: EVIDENCE: MINISTRY OF AGRTCULTURE, LTVESTOCK & FtSHERtES

2013/2014 Financial Year



(v;ii) Paragraph 421 on Outstanding lmprest
(ix) Paragraph 422 on Accuracy of the Financial Statements
(x) Paragraph 423 on Unsupported Balances
(xi) Paragraph 424 on Cash and cash equivalents
(xii) Paragraph 425 on Unvouched expenditure
(xiii) Paragraph 425 on Unsupported transfers to other government entities and other grants and

payments
(xiv) Paragraph 427 on Unsupported foreign travel and subsitence and other transportation costs

(xv) Paragraph 428 on Property, plant and equipment
(xvi) Paragraph 429 on Receivables

{xvii) Paragraph 430 on Unsatisfactory financial performance
(xviii) Paragraph 43L on lnaccuracy and wrong presentation of financial statements
(xix) Paragraph 432 on Unsupported expenditure on acquisition of assets

(xx) Paragraph 433 on Un-reconciled cash and cash equivalents balance

(xxi) Paragraph 434 on Unsupported balance
(xxii) Paragraph 435 on Statement of revenue- Fishing rights

(xxiii) Paragraph 435 on Unsatisfactory financial performance
(xxiv) Paragraph 437 on Unreconciled sales revenue

{xxv) Paragraph 438 on Expenditure
(xxvi) Paragraph 439 on Unsupported transport cost
(xxvii) Paragraph 440 on Unanalysed expenditure- storage and fumi8ation

{xxviii) Paragraph 441. on Cash and cash equivalents
(xxix) ParaBraph 442 on Unreconciled inventories
(xxx) Paragraph 443 on Unsupported receivables
(xxxi) Paragraph 444 on Trade and other payables

(xxxii) Paragraph 445 on Government grants and reserves

(xxxiii) Paragraph 446 on Accuracy of financial statements
(xxxiv) Paragraph 447 on Agency agreements
(xxxv) Paragraph 448 on Special Accounts Balances

(xxxvi) Paragraph 449 on Accuracy of the financial statements- Credit No. Q8400
(xxxvii) Paragraph 450 on Accuracy of the financial statements- Loan No. 2100150028345

(xxxviii) Paragraph 451 on Accuracy of the financial statements- Loan No. 21.0015001493

(xxxix) Paragraph 452 on Failure to disclose pending bills
(xl) Paragraph 453 on Signing of loan agreement
(xli) Paragraph 454 on Receipts
(xlii) Paragraph 455 on Payments
(xliii) Paragraph 456 on Purchase of goods and services

(xliv) Paragraph 457 on lrregular/ ineligible expenditure
(xlv) Paragraph 458 on lrregular re-allocation
(xlvi) Paragraph 459 on Cash purchases

(xlvii) Paragraph 460 on Accuracy of financial statements
(xlviii) Paragraph 461 on Unsupported expenditure
(xlix) Paragraph 462 on lmplementation of civil work
(l) Paragraph 463 on Cash and cash equivalent balances

(li) Paragraph 464 on Acquisition of non-financial assets

(lii) Paragraph 465 on Purchase of goods and services

(liii) Paragraph 466 on Cash and cash equivalents

(liv) Paragraph 467 on Accuracy and completeness of financial statements

PENDING ISSUES

(i) paragraphs4lT and 463 on accounts of Agriculture Sector Coordination Unit (ASCU).



The Committee resolved to summon the Director, ASCU to an inter-party meeting with the
PS Agriculture and PS lndustrialization to resolve the issue of audit of the unit's books.

MIN No. 1052/2016:- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting ad.journed at twenty minutes past two o'clock in the afternoon
Next sltting to be held on 27th lanuary, 2016 at j.0.00 am.

Signed

Date (,t.n 22t,9
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OFFICE

1. Mr, Meshac kOnya ngo
2. Mr. John Wagura
3. Mr. Anthony Muriuki
4. Mr. Lawrence Oigara
5. Mr. Raphael lkame

1. Dr. N icholas Muraguri
2. Mr. B. Khad iagala

3. Mr. F. K. Musyimi
4. Dr.Nduku Kilo nzo

5. Mr. E.A. Thiga h

6. Mr. David Waititu
7. Ms. Anne Gathoni

8. CPA Ken Nyamolo

9. Mr. Christopher Malala

10. Dr. P. Onya ncha

11. Ms. Joyce Mutugi
12. Mr. Mutua Kilu

13. Mr. David Njoroge

14. Mr. Peter Messa h

15. Ms. Cha rity Murauki

OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Director, Audit
Senior Manager, Audit
Manager, Audit
Ass ista n tMa nager, Audit
Parlia mentary Liaison Officer

PrincipalSecretary

Senior Chief F ina nce Officer
Se nior Accounta nt

0irector, NACC

ADSCMS

Project Manager RHP lll
Senior Accounta nt

Head Fina nce, NACC

Senior Accountant

Head, Sta ndards and Quality
Se nior Assistant Accountant General

DCHAO

DHRM & D

Finance Off icer

Chief Accountant

M lN No. 105 3/201 6: PREUMINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 1054/2016: CONFI RMATION OT MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 1055/2016: EVIDEN CE: MINISTRY OF HEATTH

The ADDro priation Acco un ts, Other Pu blic Acco unts and the A unts of the Fun for the
207312014 F ina nci I Year

Dr. Nicholas Muraguri, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 195 on Exchequer releases
(ii) Paragraph 196 on Proceeds from domestic and foreign grants
(iii) Paragraph 197 onTransfer from other government entities
(iv) Paragraph 198 onUnsupported receipts
(v) Paragraph 199 onExpenditure without parliamentary approval
lvi) Paragraph 200 on Cash and cash equivalent
{vii) Paragraph 201 oncompensation of employees

MINISTRY OF HEALTH



Paragraph 199 on Expenditure without parliamentary approval & Paragraph 201 on

Compensation of employees.
The Committee directed the accounting officer to provide a summary of supporting
documents from Treasury, the breakdown of votes cut to meet the expenditure and a list of
counties with outsta nd ing refunds.
Paragraph 205 on Misallocation of expenditure.
The Committee directed the accounting officer to provide a breakdown of expenditure of the

Kes.51.2,336,201.00.
Paragraph 212 on Stalled projects
The Committee directed the accounting officer to provide documents showing the current
status of Othaya hospita l.

Paragraph 221 onGlobal fund project KEN-708-G09-H NACC- Trade and other payables

The Committee directed the accounting officer to provide evidence of refund of Kes.

7 ,243,353 to NACC

PEN DING ISSU E5

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Viii) laragraph 202 on lrregular transfer of funds
(ix) Paragraph 203 on Authority to incur expenditure
(x) Paragraph 204 on Unsupported expenditure
(xi) Paragraph 205 on Misallocation of expenditure
(xii) Paragraph 206 on Failure to provide footnotes for materialvariances
(xiii) Paragraph 207 on Pending bills
(xiv) Paragraph 208 on Expenditure on non-existent consultancy services- Reinforcement of 15

health facilities in Northern Kenya- Grant ORIO 10/KE/01
(xv) Paragraph 209 on Supply and fitting of ward partitioning curtains at Othaya district hospital
(xvi) Paragraph 210 on Rehabilitation works at Ahero sub-district hospital- Nyanza province
(xvii) Paragraph 211 on Grants to Kenyatta National Hospital, Kenya Medical Supplies Authority

and Kenya Medical Training College
(xviii) Paragraph 212 on Stalled projects
(xix) Paragraph 213 on Construction of proposed central radioactive waste processing facility at

Ololua, Ngong
(xx) Paragraph 214 on lnter-vote transfers
(xxi) Paragraph 215 on Failure to submit fund accounts
(xxii) Paragraph 215 on Gavi health systems strengthening project- Deficit brought forward
(xxiii) Paragraph 217 oncavi health systems strengthening project- Bank balances
(xxiv) Paragraph 218 onlRAPP- Trade and other receivables
(xxv) Paragraph 219 onUNDP Project No. KEN/99/001/A/01/99 NACC- Trade and other receivables

(xxvi) Paragraph 220 on Global fund project KEN-708-G09-H NACC- Trade and other receivables
(xxvii) Paragraph 221on Global fund project KEN-708-G09-H NACC- Trade and other payables

(xxviii) Paragraph 222 on Global fund- KEN-H-MOF - Statement of receipts and payments

(xxix) Paragraph 223 on Health sector support project IDA Credit No. 477L-KE - Unsupported cash

bala nces
(xxx) Para8raph 224 on Health sector support project IDA Credit No. 4771-KE - Statements on

receipts and payments
(xxxi) Paragraph 225 on Global fund malaria- KEN-405-G05-M- Basis of unqualified opinion
(xxxii) Paragraph 226 on Rural health project lll- Undelivered pro.lect goods

(xxxiii) Paragraph 227 on Rural health project lll- Abandoned civilworks
(xxxiv) Paragraph 228 onRural health project lll- Cash and cash equivalent
(xxxv) Paragraph 229 onTOWA Project- Results of the audit of the financial statements
(xxxvi) Paragraph 230 on Results of the audit of funds distributed to SPls by appointed auditors
(xxxvii) Paragraph 231 on lneligible expenditure



MIN No. 1056/2015:- ADiOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at five o'clock in the afternoon
on 28rh January, 2016 at 10.00 am.

Next sitting to be held

Signcrl. .. ... . . .

((ihairpcrso

)-A )
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ACCOT]NTS COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY.28III .IANT]ARY.20I6 AT IO.OO A.M. IN
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

1. Mr. Henry Nyandwa ki

2. Ms. An ne Mwaura
3. Mr. Ra phael lkame

Manager, Audit
Manager, Audit
Parliamentary Lia ison Officer

ENVIRO NMENT. WATER AND NATURAL RESOURCES

1. Mr. Cha rles Sunkuli

2. Prof. Fred Segor

3. Mr. David M. Jakaiti

4. Mr. Calvin Shava nga

5. Mr. Patrick Kinya

6. Mr. Peter Kabebe

7. Mr. J oh nson Niuguna

8. Mr. lsaac Kangila

9. Mr. M.S G itari
10. Mr. Daniel Mwangi
11. Mr. Lawrence Simitu

12. Mr. Elias Murigi
13. Mr. Pet€r Messa h

14. Mr. Wambaya Kituyi

15. Mr. lsaac Mutungi
16. Mr. James Kongoti

17. Mr. Emilio Mugo
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Principal Secretary, Environment
Principal Secretary, Water
SDA

Chief Fina nce Officer
Chief Finance officer
Principal Accountant

Principal Acco unta nt

Finance Officer
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Chief Accou ntant

DW5

DHRM & D

Senior Accounta nt

CSCMO
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Director, Kenya Meteorological Department
Director, Kenya Forest Service

Prorect Manager, KFS

Programme Accounta nt, KFS

MIN No. 1057/2016: PRELIMINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at ten minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 1058/2016: CoNFIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. 1059/2015: EVIDENCE : MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT , WATER A NATURAL R cEs

The ADD rop riation Accoun s, Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Fund s for the
20t3120L4 F inancialYear

Mr. Charles Sunkuli, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 268 on Pending Bills
(ii) Paragraph 269 on Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Paragraph 270 onApproved supplementary estimates



'(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)
(viii)
(ix)

(x)

(x i)

(xii)
(x iii)

'Paragraph 2TL onGrants to government agencies
Paragraph 272 onO utsta nding imprests
Paragraph 273 on Unaccounted for AlEs
Paragra ph 274 onDistrict suspense
Paragraph 275 on Compensation of employees
Paragraph 282 on GOK counter funding- KNlp project Grant No. TF01.1534
Paragraph 297 on Motor-cycles without ownership documents
Paragraph 298 on Cash and cash equivalents
Paragraph 299 on Undisclosed payments
Paragraph 300 on Unsupported expenditure

Zl'V'2-u16

The Auditor Genera I informed the committee that pa ragra phs 216 to 2Bt, zB3, 2go to 296 a nd 301 to
304 were queries relatin8 to State Corporations and were inadvertently included in his report. The
matters would be handled by the Public lnvestments Committee.

The Auditor General informed the Committee that Paragraphs 284 to 289 were queries relating to
devolved functions and were inadvertently included in his report. The matters would be handled by the
respective county assemblies and the Senate

MIN No. 1050/2016:- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at thirty minutes past one o'clock in the afternoon
Next sitting to be held on 29th January, 2016 at 10.00 am.

Signcd................. l)alc
(Chairpcrson)

PENDING ISSUES

(i) Paragraph 259 on Cash and cash equivalents.
The Committee directed the accounting officer to liaise with the auditors and reconcile the
figures within one week.

(ii) Paragraph 297 on Motor-cycles without ownership documents.
The Committee directed the accounting officer to provide procurement documents and
logbooks to the auditors within one week.
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1. Mr. lsaac Ngayai
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Parliamenta ry Lia ison Officer
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MIN No. 1061/20L6: PR EL IMINARIES

The Vice- Chairman calted the meeting to order at fifteen minutes past teno' clock in the morning. A prayer
was saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN N o . t062l2OL6t CONFIRMA TION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 1063/2016: EVIDE NCE: OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERALAND THE DEPARTMENT OT JUSTICE

Mr. NjeeMuturi, the Accounting Officer gave evidence on:
(i) Paragraph 478 on Accuracy and completeness of the financial statements
(ii) Paragraph 479 on Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Paragraph 480 onBank reconciliation statements
(iv) Paragraph 481 onUnvouched and unsupported expenditure
(v) Paragraph 482 onUnsupported expenditure- proceeds from domestic and foreign grants
(vi) Paragraph 483 on Unaccounted for transfers to other government units
(vii) Paragraph 484 onPending accounts payable
(viii) Paragraph 485 on Domestic currency and domestic deposits- deposits held in trust
(ix) Paragraph 486 on Other matter
(x) Paragraph 487 on Unremitted revenue
(xi) Paragraph 488 on Unexplained over and under collection of revenue
(xii) Paragraph 489 on Presentation of financial statements
(xiii) Paragraph 490 on Fallure to keep proper books and records
(xiv) Paragraph 49L on Continental Credit Finance Limited
(xv) Paragraph 492 on Unsupported balances on insolvent financial institutions
(xvi) Paragraph 493 on Unsupported fixed deposit and bank balances from out-stations

O FFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL AND THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

The Aopropriation Accounts, other Public Accounts and tie Accounts of the Funds for the
2013/2014 Financial Year



(xvii)

(xviii)
(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)
(xxiii)

(xxiv)
(xxv)

(xxvi)
(xxvii)
(xxviii)

Paragraph 494 on Variations in balances between the financialstatements and supporting

sched ules/ records
Paragraph 495 on Unsupported Trial balance differences
Paragraph 496 on Un-explained change in fund balances

Paragraph 497 on Bankruptcy investment income account
Paragraph 498 on Payments not supported by ETR invoices
Paragraph 499 on lrregular sale of properties under receivership
Paragraph 500 on Emphasis on matter
Paragraph 501 on Unaccounted for property and other assets held in trust
Paragraph 502 on Provision for interest due to beneficiaries
Paragraph 503 on Other matters
Paragraph 504 on Presentation of the financial statements- TJRC

Paragraph 505 on Unsupported financial statements- TIRC

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned atfifteen minutes past twelve o'clock in the
afternoon. Next sitting to be held on 1't February, 2016 at 2.30 pm.

Signcd... .......... I)a lc Z ?---o 19
(Chairperson)

MIN No. 1064/2015:- ADJOURNMENT



]!IINUTES OF' TIIE TWO TIUNDREDTH ANI) EIGHTY SECOND (282ND) SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY, lITII FEBRUARY, 20I6 AT IO.OO

A.M. IN COMMITTEE ROOM 9 MAIN PARLIAMENT BUILDIN(;.
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MIN No. 1055/2015: PRELIMINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past ten o'clock in the morning and said a

prayer.

ABSENT WITH APOLOGY



MIN No. 1 /2015: CONFIRMATIoN OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. 105 /2016: REVIEW OF SITE V ISIT REPORTS

The Committee resolved that the respective leaders of delegation first review the report before
consideration by the Committee.

lN No. 1 6 2 ER BUSINE
1. The Committee noted that the Ministry of Devolution was yet to submit its responses to the Auditor

General after the lapse of the two weeks they were given. The Committee resolved to carry the audit
queries as they are.

2. The Committee resolved to meet the former national coordinator of the Agricultural Sector
Coordination Unit (ASCU), Dr. Mussolini Kithome on 18th February, 2016 to respond to audit query no.
417 .

3. The Committee also resolved to reschedule the meeting with the 'Big 9'to 4th March, 2O1G at County
Hall Mini-chamber.

4. The Chairman reminded members that the debate on the committee's report on the lsc was slotted for
debate that afternoon. Members would thus attend House debate and support.

5. The Committee resolved to retreat on 25th - 29th February, 2016 to finalize its report on the lEBc
procurement of electronic devices for the 2013 General Election. The venue would be communicated.

MIN No. 069/2016:- ADJO RNM ENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at fifteen minutes past twelve o'clock in the
afternoon. Next sitting to be held on 15th February,2016 at 2.30 pm.

3t. e L-o / L2
S ign cd l)
(Chairperso
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I\IIN No. l(17012016: I'l{li,LIl\,I lNAltIES
'l'he Chairperson called the meeting to order at thirty five minutes past ten o' clock in the morning. A prayer
was saidfollowed by introductions by all prcscnt.

'l he Chairrnan informed the meeting that thc fbrmer Prirne Minister, Hon. RailaAmoloOdinga had presented
a rvritten submission detailing the Eurobond saga for Members to go through. The Committee resolvecl to
crlnsider the report oncc the special audit report is presented by the Auditor General and tabled on the floor
ofthe House

MIN No. l07l /2016: C()NI,' IITMATION ()I.- ]\I I N I I'I'I.]S

I'he agcnda itenr was dcferrcd to the next meeting. Therc were thus no matters arising

Thc Chairman took the Cornrnittee through team I fleld visit reports. It was observed that the site visits rvent
as planned and all areas identified were visited. A number of issues werc pointed out and the team's
sccretariat was askcd to Inake the necessary corrcction and changes to be reviewed in the next meeting.

'fcatn 3's report was prcsenled to lhe Committee by Hon. Abdikadir Aden, MP. The Committee tvas
infbrrred that lhe team nranaged to visit the sitcs given apart from the Military Barracks in Eldoret. The
Principal Secretary, Ministry of Defence had written to the Clerk, National Assembly informing hirn rhar
they were not able to host the team in the barracks. That was because thc soldiers involved in thc reccnt
attacks were from 9KI{ [ildoret and that they were currently involved in a dclicate process ofcoLrnscling as
rvcll as conducting DNA idcntification procedure with the affected family.
Other than a few errors noted which needed correction and amendments, the Committee observed that rnost
inlbrrnation had been captured in the report.

]II\ No. 1073/2016:201(r AFlt()PAC CONHiIIT],NCE AND ANNUAI, GI'NERAL ['l't N(;

'I'he meeting was informed that:-

(t) The National Assembly of Kenya was the host of the AFI{OPAC secrerariar which was
cunently being scrviced by the Asscmbly staff. The Organization however had future plans
of recruiLing its own salaried staff and paying rent for its oflices;

( ii) The Executive Committee of AFROPAC at its sitting of 28,h April, 2014 in Kharroum,
Sudan mandated the Public Accounts committee of the National Assembly of Kenya to
host the organization's first Annual Conference and General Meeting in September, 2014
which never materialized due to unavoidable circumstances.

( iii) Further to that, the AFROPAC ExccLrtivc Committee in its sittings in Seychelles at the sidclincs
of the SADCOPAC meeting on 9'h Scprernbcr, 2015 and sidcliies of the EAAI,AC ACM and
confcrence in Kharlourn, Sudan on 27'h october.20l5 rcqucsted pAC, National Assenrblv
Kenya to prcpare and host the Organization's Annual Confcrence and AGM in April 20 16.

(rv) The Chairman inlbrmed the Committee that hc was going to hold consultative mcctings with thc
Hon. Spcaker and clerk of thc National Assernbly and advice the committee accordingly on wa1,
lonvard during the next Conlrnittce lncctings. Meanwhile, thc Sccretariat was tasketi to pr.6cccd I
rvith nraking ncccssary arrangerncnts to facilitate the hosting of AFIIopAC contlrcncc. I

NtlN No. 1072/2016: ltliVlllW OF"I'EAM I ANI)'ttiAM 3 FIEI,D VTSIT I{EI,ORTS



N{IN No. I 074/201 6:- AI).IOUI{NMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at halfpast noon. Next sitting to be held on Tuesdal'

23'd February,20l6 at 10.00 am

DAl'E
I2 )-^ \ bSIG NEI)

(Chn irpcrsrr
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MIN No. 1075/2016: PRELr MINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty five minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer
was saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

M lN No. 1075/2016: CONFIRMAT ION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

MIN No. 1077l20 16: EVIDENCE: ASCU - AUDIT OUERY NO. 417

The Ao roo riation Acco unts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the

Prof. MicheniNtiba, representing the Accounting Officerstated the following;

l Agricultural Sector Coordination unit (ASCU) had not submitted Financial Statements to the
Auditor-General for audit since inception in 2005 as required by Section 7 of the public Audit Act,
2003 despite the fact that the Unit receives funding from Government and other Development
Pa rtners.

2. ln an effort to address the above issues, the Ministry requested the lnternal Audit Department of
the National Treasury to carry out a Systems Audit. The Management of ASCU were reluctant and
opposed the Ministry's directive since they felt that the Unit was an lnter-Ministerial Unit
composed of various Stakeholders and other Ministries. They also Insisted that they were audited
privately but did not produce approval of the Auditor-General to source for private auditors.

3 Following the refusal by ASCU Management to allow a systems audit to be undertaken, the Minjstry
referred the matter to the NationalTreasury through for advice. The National Treasury, through the
lnternal Aud ito r-Ge nera l, a uthorized the audit to commence.

4 on or around 27th March,2014 security officers attached to Kiiimo House alerted the Mlnistry,s
administration that Asctl was relocating important accountable documents and computers from
Kilimo House offices to NSSF Building whose purpose appeared to defeat the audit exercise which

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

FORMER AGRICULTURAL SECTOR COORDINATION UNIT (ASCU}

2013/2014 Financial Year



was going on. This matter was reported to Capitol Hill Police Station and the Unit Coordinator was

advised to step aside for lack of cooperation with the auditors.

S. The audit exercise was finally concluded on 23'd April, 2014 and the Audit Report issued which

revealed several irregularities on the utilization of funds.

6. Since the National Coordinator of the Unit was not satisfied with the action taken for him to step

aside, he filed a case against the Ministry at the High Court Vide High Court of Kenya Misc. Judicial

Review Application No. 144 of 2014.

7. Thereafter, the Coordinator and his staff vacated the Kilimo House Offices without clearance from

the Ministry to NSSF Building.

8. The Principal secretary, state Department of Agriculture wrote to the Auditor General vide letter

Ref No MOATF/CS/ADM/60(47) dated 23'd June 2014 requesting for a forensic audit of ASCU. The

Auditor General wrote to the Project Coordinator ASCU vide letter Ref No C.868K (11) dated 11lh

September 2014 to avail the relevant documents for audit.

9. The principal Secretary, Ministry of lndustrialization and Enterprises Development, in letter Ref No

MCDMIZ/64 Vol 1 dated 2nd December 2014, informed the Auditor General that as the matter was

in court they could not proceed with the audit.

10. The judgment in the JR Misc Application was delivered on 26th March, 2015 and gave orders to bar

the Cabinet Secretary from unilaterally interfering with the work and operations of the ASCU or

taking any disciplinary actions against Dr. Mussolini Kithome, the National Project Coordinator or

any officers of the Unit.
11. Since the Ministry was not satisfied with the decision made by the court, they instructed the

Attorney Generat on 6th May,2015 to appeal against the judgment, and are awaiting further

communication from the Attorney General's office.

12. Further, records avallable also reflect that ASCU has failed to account for the funds disbursed to

them including Donor Funds which our development partners are seeking for their accountability.

13. ASCU had failed to account for over Kes. 1OO million from donors. Examples are Kes. 6.7 million of

the Small Holder Horticultural Programme (SHOMAP) and Kes. 54 million Kenya Agricultural
productivity & Agri-business project. This meant the expenditures were ineligible, forcing the

government to refund the money to donors. Kes. 74 million from SIDA was still outstanding and

would most probably be rendered ineligible when the expiry of the Agricultural Sector

Development Support Programme comes.

Dr. Mussolini Kithome, the then NationalCoordinator stated as follows;

1. He sought to clarify that he was not the current coordinator as had been implied, and had in factleft

all records in the offices when they were'bundled out'after instructions by the then Permanent

Secretary Nancy Kamau vide a letter dated 27th March 2016. He joined ASCU as the Sth coordinator

on 1't August 2008.
2. The unit was not under a specific ministry but reported to the chairperson of the inter-ministe ria I

coordinating committee. This committee comprised L0 ministries and the chair was rotational

every two years.

3. ASCU did not receive funding from ministries, but the various ministries chipped in on certain

activities. He said that the Kes. 515 million received by the unit was an aggregate of funds from

various sources for 2 financialyears.
4. ASCU was created as the driver of the Economic Recovery Strategy of the NARC administration. The

secretariat managed to harmonize about 100 laws into 3 instruments; the Kenya Agriculture and

Livestock Research organization, the crop Regulations and the Agriculture, Fisheries and Food

Authority Act. The ASCU secretariat was to run the latter of the three but the then cabinet

Secretary, Mr. Felix Koskei refused.

S. The ASCU was established with specific Terms of Reference and programme regulations. These

included donor requirements that audit was to be done by the'big 4' i.e. PwC, Deloitte & Touch6,

Ernst & Young and KPMG.'



6. The secretariat received direction from the inter-ministerialcoordinating committee.
7. ASCU at no time refused audit and the matter should be addressed in the police report. The private

auditors audited the books of account as per the TOR. The auditor generalaudited funds specifically
from ministries.

8. He went to court after the police investigations because he felt his rights were infringed upon. He
insisted the offices were still at Kilimo House by the time he was ,bundled out,.

The committee noted that Dr. Kithome denied going to court to block audit despite a letter by his
lawyers indicating the same.

He was instructed to re-appear before the committee on Tuesday 1't March, 2016 with any documents
he may have. The committee also resolved to invite the Principal Secretaries Agriculture and
lndustrialization to the meeting, to provide all records of ASCU.

MIN No. 078/2016:- ADIO URNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned atfifteen minutes past two o'clock in the
afternoon.Next sitting to be held on 25thFebruary, 2016 at 10.00 am.

b
Signed...........,....
(Chairpcrson)
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL
1. Mr. Raphael lkame Parliamentary Lia ison Officer

NATIONAL P OLICE SERVICE COMMISSION

1. Mr.OjangoOmumu Ch ief Executive Officer

MIN No. 1 079 2016: PRELIMINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty half past teno' clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 1080/2016: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

lN No. 1081 VIDENCE: AUDIT UERY ACCOUNTED M E LOG BO

The Aonroori ation Accounts. Other Public A ounts and the Accounts of t Funds for the

The Chairman informed the meeting that Dr. Elijah Achoch, former CEO National police Service
Commission who was set to appear before the Committee couldn't make it to attend the meeting. He had
written a letter to the Clerk NationalAssembly, giving explanations as to why he was not able to appear
before the committee. He however requested for a reschedule of the meeting to another date and the
Committee accepted to setdate for his submission.

Mr. OjangoOmumu, the current National Police Service Commission was in the meeting and was requested
to give his submissions.

He informed the Committee that following the meeting that was held on 19th January,2015 he had

brought additional documentations to support his submissions. The documents were tabled before the
Committee. The CEO was instructed to re-appear before the Committee together with Mr. Elijah Achoch
on Tuesday 1'tMarch,2016 at 10.OOam soas to give information on Paragraph 541 on Missing Motor
Veh icle Logbooks

MIN No. 1082/2016 : REVIEW OF TEAM 2 FIELD VIS EPORTS

Thc Chairnran took the Cornmittee through tearn 2 field visit report. It was observed that the site visirs wcnr
as planned and all areas identificd were visited by the team Members. A number of issues were pointcd out
and the teanr's secretariat was asked to make the necessary correction and changes.

In its recotntnendation, the Cornrnittee requested tlrc secretariat to schedule a nreeting lor the PS Ministry
ol'l-ransport and Infrastructure to appear before PAC togcther with the CEO KeNl-lA and Consulting
Engineers tvho were in chargc ol'cngineering works in Busia, Isebania, Malaba and -faveta/ Lungalunga.

2013/2014 Financial Year



The CEO Kenya should explain why rhere was a big problem with roads especially Kakamega- Webuve

Road, Kisumu-Kakamega road, Kitale-Webuye road and Marsabit-Turbi road. The works donc were

reported to be substandard and the costs incurrcdon the projects were too high.

It was also observed that one stop border post was constructed on Kenyan side boarder whereas there was l]o

post and road on the Ugandan side. This was an indication of lack of user coordination'

Other than a few errors noted which needed correction and amendments, the Conlmittee observed that most

inforrration had been captured in the report.

MIN No. 1058/2016i ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The Committee had earlier resolved to retreat on 25th - 29th February,2016 to finalize its report on the

IEBC procurement of electronic devices for the 2013 General Election but due to lack of sufficient funds,

the retreat was pushed forth to the 1't week of March. The dates were set for Thursday 3'd to Tuesday Sth

March, 2016. lt was resolved that Members travel on Sunday 6th March so that they don't lose out on their

mileage and return on Tuesday 8tn, March,2016.

MIN No. 1083/201 :- ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned atfifteen minutes past one o'clock in the

afternoon.Next sitting to be held on 1't March, 2016 at 10.00 am.
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OFF ICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

1. Mr. Ra phael lkame

1. Mr.OjangoOmumu
2. Dr. E lija h Achoch

Parliamentary Lia ison Off icer

Chief Executive Off ice r
Former Secretary/ CEO National Police Service Commission.

MIN No. 1.084/2016: PRELIMINARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN No. 1085/2016: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising

The Aoo ro riation Acco unts. Other Public Accounts and the Accounts of the Fu nds for the
20t31 2014 Fina ncia I Yca r

Dr. Elijah Achoch informed the Committee that;
i, The logbooks were in safe custody under lock and key in the safe located in the CEO'S office.
ii, When he was appointed as the CEO, the then Secretary to the outgoing CEO, Ms. Joyce Wambogo

had the custody of the logbooks. He appointed an officer in charge of transport, Ms. Stella Oimbo
and the logbooks were handed over to her by MsWambogo since it was her duty to take care of all
documents relating to transport.

iii. The original copies of the logbooks were then kept in the safe located in the CEO's office and
memos dated 23'd June, 2013 Ref. NpSC/t/3/tt/ Vol(1G9) and 24th June, 2013 Ref.
NPSC/3/77 /Vol1,/175 were in place confirming the handing over process.

iv. He was dismissed from his post as the National Police Service Commission CEO unceremoniously
and was denied access to his office. He was then moved to an office located at Bruce House in town
as the CID carried out investigations.

v. His documents and personal belongings were sent to his house where he received and verified all
items in the presence of Ms Stella oimbo, officer from the Commission and confirmed that no
logbooks were among the documents he had received.

vi. He strongly believed that the NPSC had institutions and trained officers who could investigate the
missing logbooks easily and come up with conclusive results within the shortest time possible.

vii. Everything regarding his handing over was well documented and the report submitted to the
Committee by the current CEO in office.

The Committee instructed the current CEO to bring the matter to the attention of KRA officials in charge
and seek direction on way forward from the NationalTreasury. They will then receive authority to cancel
the old logbooks and apply for new ones since the vehicles were in safe custody of the Commission.

t

The query however remained pending

NATIONAL POLICE SERVICE COMMISSION

MIN NO. 1085/2016: EVIDENCE: AUDIT QUERY NO.541ON UNACCOUNTED MOTOR VEHICLE LOG BOOKS



There being no other business, the sitting ad.journed atten minutes totwelve o'clock. Next sitting to be held
on 3'dMarch, 2016 at 10.00 am

Signed....
(Chairperson)

MIN No. 1087/2015:- ADJOURNMENT
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Sen ior Assistant Accountant Genera I

The Hon.Speaker called the meeting to order at thirty minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer

was said by Hon. Chrisa nthusWa ma lwa, MP followed by introductions by all present'

MIN No. tO891201.6:,'BlG 9' ROU ND TABLE ON MATTERS OT PUBLI C POLICY ANO THE AUDIT CYCL E

The Hon. Speaker gave a background to the importance of convening the meeting, the 1't of its kind in the

11th parliament. He noted the importance of all government agencies working in synchrony towards public

accountability, as demanded by the various laws including the constitution, the standing orders of

Parliament and the various financial laws and regulations. He then called upon the chairpersons of the

oversight committees to make their presentation;

Hon. (Eng.) Nicolas Gumbo, MP- Chairman, Public Accounts Committee

He stated that the primary mandate of PAC as derived from Standing Order 205 (2) is to oversight the

expenditure of public funds by Ministries/Departments, to ensure value for money and adherence to

government financial regulations and procedures. The Committee executes its mandate on the basis of

annual and special audit reports prepared by the Office of the Auditor General'

He added that pAC is guided by core constitutional and statutory principles on public finance management,

as well as established customs, traditions, practices and usages, including but not limited to;

. Constitutional Principles on Public Finance- Article 201of the Constitution

. Direct Personal Liability as per Article 226(5) of the Constitution

. Obligations of Accounting Officers as in Section 68 (1) and section 74 (2) of the Public Finance

Management Act, 2012

He added that the committee faced the followinS emerging issues in the course of its work;

1. Poor performance by some Accounting Officers

2. Unwarranted attack on the Office of the Auditor General

3. Mounting Pending Bills always attributable to late exchequer releases by Treasury. This ended up

with hefty interest charges on delayed payments

4. Under-Collection of Appropriations-tn-Aid
5. poor accounting standards across ministries, with some admitting a lack of capacity

6. Challenges with the lntegrated Financial Management lnformation system (lFMls)

7. Poor implementation of Government projects

8. lnternal audits function of ministries and agencies that are not playingtheir role. This contravenes

section 73 0f the PFM Act.

9. Lack of implementation by implementing Agencies like the DPP. He also added that cases

represented by officers of the DPP are often lost.

10. A lack of a proper framework governing agencies that cross-cut across various ministries

He concluded that strict compliance with Article 229 of the constitution will lead to a synergy between

parliament, office of the Auditor General and Accounting officers. The audit process should not be

considered adversarial, except by those who participate in pilferage.

Hon. Ada nKeynanWehliye, MP- Chairman, Public lnvestments Committee

The Public lnvestment Committee (PlC) is established by the House pursuant to standing order No 206 and

is mandated to, amongst others;
. Examine the reports and accounts of the public investments;

2. Ms.'l"4argaret Kariuki

MIN No. 1088/2016: PREIIMINARIES



. Examine the reports, if any, of the Auditor General on the public investments;

' Examine, in the context of the autonomy and efficiency of the public investments, whether the
affairs of the public investments, are being managed in accordance with sound financial or
business principles and prudent commercial practices.

The committee is seized of its role and has performed consistently to deliver on their
performing its role of examining public investments; the committee faced numerous challenge
reduced if not eliminated by this round table team.

ma ndate, in
s that can be

Lack adequate documentation from the accounting officers to support budgetary commitments coupled
with other cha llenges including:-

l Poor performance of accounting officers- their unpreparedness when called upon to appear before
the committee, failure to submit copies of responses to the office of the Auditor ceneral in
advance to faciljtate prior scrutiny and concurrence

2. lnconsistency in reporting of unresolved issues year- in. this matter puts the integrity of the
Auditor General in disrepute; example is the NSSF issues of the prior years including court cases.3. Poor responses to audit queries by some accounting officers- lack of elaborate responses
compromise the determination of by the committee relating to the audit query

4. Prolonged court cases involving former accounting officers and other employees on issues related
to corruption. ln the event of such situations the committee is bared from dealing and dispensing
the matter due to the sub prejudice law.

5. Poor implementation of budgetary allocations and in some cases complete disregard to the project
documents and objectives

6, lnsufficient support and partnerships with the office of the inspector general of state corporations,
auditor general and national treasury when dealing with matters of corruption and misuse of
pu blic resources

7. lnadequate capacity of public officers dealing with public finances as provided for in the pFM Act,
2012. These officers should be capacity build on specific areas and functionalities of the tFMtS and
also the IPSAS standards improve financial reporting

Noting that the parastatal reforms initiated by the president through a task force are complete and due for
implementation in concurrence with the 'Mwongozo' policy document, the government should
mainstream the recommendations and facilitate the merger of some state corporations to enhance
efficiency and red uce duplication.

The Auditor General, Controller of Budget and Accounting Officers

a) The Auditor Generalsaid that the law should be amended to give him more time to complete audits
due to the expanded mandate of his office covering counties, MDAs and the Courts. The sax month
period provided for in the Constitution under Article 229, is short hence shortcomings in the
reporting framework.

The Auditor General further informed the Committee that there was need to make the Accountang
officers own the audit process and their participation is paramount to eliminating inconsistencies in
documentation and reporting by the pFM officers.

He reiterated that the audit reports prepared by his office are public documents and pursuant to
the provisions of the Constitution he is obliged to publish and publicized such reports for the public
consumption and other stakeholders.

b) The Controller of Budget is of the view that the COB (Amendment) Bill, 2015 before parliament be
fast tracked accordingly to safeguard the independence of the office.

T



'She proposed regular meetings with the Budget & Appropriations Committee, Finance Committee

and the Departmental committees to deliberate on budget issues affecting budget implementation

and fast tracking recommendations of the COB and various Committees.

c) The Principal Secretary, National Treasurysaid that the strict timelines in the budget cycle as

important in the reali?ation of optimal service delivery. The PFM Act, 2012 sets the procedure for

the submission of the Budget Policy Statement, Division of Revenue Bill and the debt management

Strategy to Parliament. ln this regard therefore, there is need to facilitate the process seamlessly to

BUard against service disruption due to non-adherence of the timelines. The approval process of the

budget should be transparent and the Houses of Parliament to pronounce themselves in the BPS.

He added that Section 30, of the Public Audit Act, 2015 provides for the process of implementing

committee recommendations and the timelines to report back on the status of implementatlon by

the MDAs. The law provides for three months (3) for the institutions concerned to dispense on the

recommendations and report back appropriately to Parliament, Auditor General, and the National

Treasury for subsequent year planning.

He noted that the Accounting officers should not commit government to signing contractual

agreements without attendant resources to finance projects, as this will shield Government from

litigations arising from breach of contracts entered without ring fenced resources to honor

payment of works delivered.

He further stated that there is a task force under the national Treasury whose mandate is to review

and report on the previous and current government accumulated pending bills. This will provide the

mechanism to logically clearance earmark resources for their clearance in the subsequent financial

year.

d) The Director of Public Prosecutions and the Registrar of the Judiciary reiterated the coordination

amongst the key stakeholders in prosecuting corruption cases should be emphasized and adequate

funding be directed to the fight against corruption.

ln ensuring that the recommendations of the oversight committees of National Assembly (PAC&

ptC) the Director of Public Prosecution stated that he forwards the necessary documentation for

the relevant criminal investigative agencies to investigate and revert back the findings for review

and action by the DPP.

e) The Solicitor General stated that as regards to procurement and tender/contract management the

office of the Attorney General should be involved in the signing of specific contracts that may

subiect the country to contingent liabilities arising from cancelation and/ or revision of contract

documents.

The meeting resolved the following;
1. All agencies implementing resolutions of Parliament including the Director of Public Prosecutaons,

EACC and the Attorney General's office will report to Parliament every six months on status of

implementation.
2. There will be regular meetings between the Controller of Budget and departmental committees of

the NationalAssembly on the Controller of Budget reports.

3. Treasury will give annual memoranda on implementation of recommendations of PAC and PlC.

WAY FORWARD



4. Accounting Officers to strictly adhere to audit timelines as per the Constitution. This will be done by
among others timely and full response to management letters of the Auditor General.

5. Treasury to enforce the External Resources Policy to curb under-collection of Appropriations in Aid.
6' Engagements between all agencies and Parliament will be cordial and mutually respectful. All the

agencies will in turn work in synergy and appreciate each other's work.
7. The'Big 9' round table meeting to be held annually.
8. The Presidency and Treasury to enforce the parastatal reform policy- Mwongozo; by immediately

hastening the Bill that seekJ to harmonize all relevant laws.

MIN No . 1.090/2016:ADIO URNMENT

There being no other business, the meetingadjourned atten minutes totwo o'clock in the afternoon.

o^,".3...1..:.. 2..:..b I LSigncd..........
(Oha irpcrso
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The Chairpersorr infornred the Cornmittee that the CDF report had not been included in the Main Auditor
Ceneral's report of the financial year 2013/2O14 since each of the 290 constituencies was audited
independently and repofts tabled in Parlianlent separately. [t was also noted that each ftrnd manager had
been audited independently as an accounting officer for their respective constituencies.

The Principal Secretary informed the Committee that;

a. The Public finance Management (PFM) Act required accounting officers to prepare and
subntit financial slatements of the entity to the Auditor General within 90 days frorn the
end of each financial year. Futlher, the National Government Constituencies Developmeni
Fund (NG-CDI) Act, 2015 required the CDf tsoard to submit separate statenrents for the
secretariat and constituencies to the Auditor General. Consequently, each of the 290
constituencies prepared their own financial statements for financial year (FY) 2073/2014
and subrnitted by the Board to the Auditor Gefleral as required.

b. Further, the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB) specified the accounting
fi'arrrework to be used by various public sector entities in preparation of financial
statenlents. The CDF Board secretariat was required to use International Public Sector
AccountinS Standards (tPSAS) accrual whereas the constiluencies used IPSAS cash
accounting framework.

The officers responsible for preparation of financial statenrents in the constituellcies
therefore had a daunting task of not only preparing financial statetnents for the first tillle
but also first tit1le adoption of the IPSAS cash accounting framework and within very short
timelines.

d. The CDF Boald together with the PSASB therefore undertook a crash prograrrr in July &
August 2O74 to train all District Accountants, Fund Account Managers and Chairpersons of
Constituencies Development [und Committees (CDFC) on preparation of financial
statelllents using the IPSAS cash accounting fiznrework. Albeit the challenges irr training
this colnposite group of officers within the limited time, they were nonetheless able to
prepare and subnrit the financial stater.uent for eacli of the 290 constituencies within the
short period renraining to thc dead line of 30 'septentber 2014.

The Ag. CDF Board CEO gave a summary of audit opinion as followsl

That the CDF Board lrad so far received Auditor General Annual Repofts for Fy ,ZO1S/2014

for 247 Constitucncies whose opinions are as suururar.ized in the table below:
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b. That as evidenced in the table, nlajority of the constituencies had qualitled (128

constituencies), adverse (35 constituencies) or disclaimer of (69 constituencies) opirlions
with a few (15 Constituencies) getting unqualified (clean) opinion. The state of affairs
could be attributed to a number of factors) among theltl:
i. First tinle preparation of financial statenlents (IPSAS cash fizmework)
ii. Poor record keeping and maintenance of books of accounts

iii. Weaknesses in internal controls and compliance of various laws and regulatiolrs

iv. Capacity challenges in preparation of financial statements

v. Challenges in project implenrentation

vi. The board has no direct reporting responsibilily on the officers in the district treasury
who have the requisite accounting training required in preparation of financial
staternents

vii. Lack of proper appreciation by auditors of CDF operations

The factors listed above were derived from the analysis of the various issues raised by the Auditor General
as the basis of the opinions

WAYIORWARD

l'he meeting resolved the following;
l. That the Auditor General carry out a review of responses provided by Constituencies with either

advcrse or disclaimer of opinion and give a repod to PAC within one week on the adequacy of the

responses.
2. Tire Committee to suntmon the accounting officers who will be accolnpanied by fund managers

from the listed constituencies whose issues will still be outstanding after the review in (l) above.
3. The Auditor General to provide a cor.nprehensive list of the 69 Constitrtencies listed as disclainter

and the 35 Constituencies tisted as adverse opinions to the Conrmittee. 'fhis will enable tlrc
secr€tariat schedule for nleetings by giving priority to the above constituencies.

It was unanilnously agreed that all accounts of every constitucncy be looked at as per the General
Auditors report and that none be isolated.

MIN No. 1093/ 2076:AD IOI'RNMENT

There being no other business, the nteetingadjourned attwenty minutes tonoon.The next Irteeting will be

held on Tuesday, 15th March, 2016 at 1O.00 a.nr.

Signcd I).t t e
9r

(Chairperson
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MIN No. 1094/ 2016: PRELIMI R IES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at thirty minutes past teno'clock in the morning. A prayer was
saidfollowed by introductions by all present.

MIN N o. 1095/2016: co FIRMATION OF MINUTES

The agenda item was deferred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. 1095/201 6: ASCU - AUDIT OUE RY NO. 417

The Aoorooriation Accounts. Other Pub c Accounts and the Accounts of the Funds for the

Dr. Richard Lesiyampe, the Accounting Officerre ite rated the ministry's response as given before the
Committee on two occasions before as below

l Agricultural Sector Coordjnation Unit (ASCU) was an inter-ministerial agency comprising 10
ministries: Agriculture, Livestock Development, cooperative Development, Fisheries, water, Lands
and Settlement, Regional Development, Environment, Forestry & Wildlife and the Ministry of State
for Development of Northern Kenya. The development partners included FAo, usAlD, GlZ, world
Bank, African Development Bank, Danida, tFAD, StDA, EU, JtCA and DFID.

2. ASCU had not submitted Financial Statements to the Auditor-General for audit since inception in
2005 as required by Section 7 of the Public Audit Act, 2oo3 despite the fact that the Unit receives
funding from Government and other Development partners.

3. ln an effort to address the above issues, the Ministry requested the lnternal Audit Department of
the National Treasury to carry out a Systems Audit. The Management of ASCU were reluctant and
opposed the Ministry's directive since they felt that the Unit was an Inter-M inisteria I Unit
composed of various Stakeholders and other Ministries. They also insisted that they were audited
privately but did not produce approval of the Auditor-General to source for private auditors,

MrNrsTRy oF AGRTCULTURE. LTVESTOCK & FtSHElltES

2013/2014 Financial Year



4. Following the refusal by ASCU Management to allow a systems audit to be undertaken, the Ministry
referred the matter to the NationalTreasury through for advice. The National Treasury, through the
lnternal Aud itor-Gene ral, authorized the a udit to commence.

5. On or around 27th March,2014 security officers attached to Kilimo House alerted the Ministry's
administration that ASCU was relocating important accountable documents and computers from
Kilimo House offices to NSSF Building whose purpose appeared to defeat the audit exercise which
was going on. This matter was reported to Capitol Hill Police Station and the Unit Coordinator was
advised to step aside for lack of cooperation with the auditors.

5. The audit exercise was finally concluded on 23'd April, 2014 and the audit report issued which
revealed several irregularities on the utilization of funds, including outstanding imprests of Kshs.

16M and several cases of direct procurement of private hotels.
7. The Principal Secretary, State Department of Agriculture wrote to the Auditor General vide letter

Ref No MOALF/CS/ADM/6Ol47l dated 23'd June 2014 requesting for a forensic audit of ASCU. The
Auditor ceneral wrote to the Project Coordinator ASCU vide letter Ref No c.868K (11) dated 11rh

September 2014 to availthe relevant documents for audit.
8. Since the National Coordinator of the Unit was not satisfied with the action taken for him to step

aside, he filed a case against the Ministry at the Hi8h Court Vide High Court of Kenya Misc. Judicial
Review Application No. 144 of 2014.

9. The Principal Secretary, Ministry of lndustrialization and Enterprises Development, in letter Ref No

MCOM/Z/64 Vol 1 dated 2nd Oecember 2014, informed the Auditor General that as the matter was
in court they could not proceed with the audit.

10. Thereafter, the Coordinator and his staff vacated the Kilimo House Offices without clearance from
the Ministry to NSSF Building.

11. The judgment in the JR Misc Application was delivered on 26th March, 2015 and gave orders to bar
the Cabinet Secretary from unilaterally interfering with the work and operations of the ASCU or
taking any disciplinary actions against Dr. Mussolini Kithome, the National Pro.iect Coordinator or
any officers of the Unit.

12. Since the Ministry was not satisfied with the decision made by the court, they instructed the
Attorney General on 5th May, 2015 to appeal against the judgment, and are awaiting further
communication from the Attorney General's office.

13. Since the former staff were dismissed, audit has not been possible since auditable documents were
password protected. The offices were still locked, with assets that were left by the former staff still
intact.

14. ln a meeting of the inter-ministerialcoordinating committee, it was resolved that ASCU be renamed
to a non-biased name. This led to it being named Green Growth lnitiative. To further its neutrality,
it was recommended that it be moved from Kilimo House to neutral place.

Dr, Mussolini Kithome, the then National Coordinator stated as follows;

1. The report as presented by the PrincipalSecretary contained several factual inaccuracies.
2. ln 2005, the Government of Kenya and Development partners came together to work as a team in a

strateBy to revitalize agriculture. This joint effort needed a secretariat to run day to day operational
activities, and ASCU was formed. A memorandum of understanding on its operations was signed
between the government and the development partners.

3. ASCU worked under an inter-ministerial coordination committee of 10 ministries who elected a

rotational chair on a two year term. This chairperson was the direct supervisor of the secretariat.
4. ASCU ensured operational procedures were in place for the implementers to then incur

expenditure on projects. The funds did not come to ASCU as a whole but were disbursed to these
implementers.

5. Each program opened a separate fund account as per donor cond itiona lities, and these were closed
at the end of the programs. The accounts had names of ASCU and the specific programs; for
example, a clZ funded program would be named'ASCU- clZ'.
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6. These bank accounts were opened under the auspices of the Ministry of Agriculture since ASCU was
not a legal entity by itself. The signatories to the bank accounts included the ASCU National
Coordinator and the ministry's principal accountants. All debits to the accounts were signed off by
both.

7. That the motor vehicles used by the unit were donor acquired but were registered under the
government, rather than wait for pro.jects to end before handing them over to government.

8. They did not run away from Kilimo house as alleged, and the police report would vindicate them if
produced.

9. The secretariat never resisted audit and he suspects the letters tabled before the committee are
backdated to give this impression.

10. The Green Growth lnitiative that succeeded ASCU is a noble venture that he believes in and he is a
member in his individual capacity, and consults when his services are sought.

The Committee resolved the following;
1. That in its report on the FY 2013/14 books, the matter of obstructing audit be referred to the

Director of Public Prosecution for investigation.
2. That the former staff of ASCU be compelled to assist auditors access files for audit, as per Article

125 of the Constitution.
3. That a forensic audit be recommended on the books of the unit since inception, in the Committee's

report on the FY 2013/14 books.
4. That Attorney General to explain why he had taken more than one year to appeal the judgement of

the court-
5. The Treasury liaison officer to check if Treasury allowed the opening of the several bank accounts

operated by ASCU.

L. The Chairman informed the meeting that he would attend the Executive Committee meeting of
AFROPAC on 17th March 2016, and as such will miss the next Committee sitting on the same day
which will be hosting the Principal Secretary lnfrastructure and Kenha.

2. The Committee resolved to meet on Tuesday 22nd March 2016 to adopt the report on IEBC for
subsequent ta bling same day.

3. The Committee noted that its receipt of evidence from Accounting Officers on the 2013/14 Auditor
General's report was complete and would thus retreat to write its report in Malindi, from the 29th
March- 3'd April, 2016

MIN No. 1.098/2016:ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the sitting adjourned at twenty minutes past one o'clock in the afternoon
Next sitting to be held on 17th March, 2016 at 10.00 am.

Sign ed. . . . .. . .. ... ... &t
(Chairperson)

. Dlte .
Lnt

MIN No. 1097/2016:ANY OTHER BUSTNESS
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The Chairman called the meeting to ordcr at ten minutes past eleven O'clock in the morning. A prayer was
sa id

\IIN No . I l(ll12016: AI)OPTION OF 'I'IIE ITI,PoR'I' O[ 'tIIE PI]BI-IC ACC OUNTS COi\INIII"tIi[,
()N TIItr SPECI AI- ATII)IT REI'OIII' OT .IUNE 2014; OV[,R THE PRO UITDMENI' ()F
IiI,EC'I-RoNIC VO'TING DLV|Ctis t,'ot{ THE 2013 GE,NIiRAL ELECTION BY .tII 

I.,

INI)I,,I'I.-NI)I., NI' I.],LEC'TOITAL AND BouNt)AIII I',S COM]\,IISSION (II!IIC}

The Cornmittee read through lhe observations. culpability and recommendations chapters of the report and
madc rr inor amendments.

'I'hercaflter the rcport was unanirrrously adopted by all Members present

L Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MI), urged that the Committee henceforth expedite all inquiries belore it,
prcfcrab ly within sixry days.

2. Thc Chairrnan notcd that the financial crunch facing Parliament greatly hampered its core mandate ol
oversight. fle cited the newly introduced tinancial regulations requiring that a request for funds lor
Committee opcrations be donc in 2l days was not only curtailing the work of the Commitee but also
crippling the constitutional timelines within which lhe Comrnittee should complete its work. The
Metnbers resolved that the matter be raised with the Speaker of the National Assembly, and the same
sentimcnts be raised on the floor of the I'louse.

\ll\ \ o. I 1 03/20 I (r: AD.IOUIiNM!]N"I'

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at thirty minutes past twelvs O'clock in the
afternoon. Notices for the next Sifting would be circulated to Members.

Signcd Daie..,,....,..,.,.........
(Chairperson)

n\.4\

MIN No. 1099/2(ll6: l'l{lil.l NI INAIIIIS

N{ lN No. I l (}0/20 1 (,: C()Nl,'IllMA'l'l ON OI,' M INtI'I'ltS

The agenda item was defcrred to the next meeting. There were thus no matters arising.

N{lN No. I I0212016: ANY ()]'HER BUSINI,ISS

>.v
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\ll\ \o. I lll{/201(r: I'}ltlll.ll\ll\ ,\ IU t,:S

Thc Chainnan called the meeting to order at twenty minutes to elcven O'clock in the morning. A prayer was
sai(l

'l he agenda itern was deferred to the next meeting. Thcre were thus no matters arising.

'fhe Cotntnittee noted with concern tlrat its report had leaked out to the media a day before tabling in the
house. lhe report was adopted by Members on Tuesday the 24th of March and published in the standard
newspapcr on Wednesday 25tl' March just before its tabling.

Metnbers requested the Chairrnan Io discuss with thc l1on. Speaker of the National Assernbly on rvay
florward regarding summoning the Officers frorn the Standard group who published the arlicle in the
Newspaper, before the Committee lo explain themselves and name whoever issued thern with the report for
pub Iish ing.

The Cotlmiftee funher indicarcd that it will put a request through to the Hon. Speaker to bar the Standard
Group Media from Parliament for one month for breaching the Standing Orders. This was becausc they went
ahead to damage the rcputation ofthe Committee yet they were fully aware ofthe rules ofengagement.

Members thought it necessary to have the report debated in the house soonest possible. The Chairman was
rcqucsted to last track lhe process.

l'he Cornmittee was infbrmed that the next repon writing retreat for Auditor Ceneral's report on books of
accounts will be held betwecn Monday 4'h and Friday 8'h April,20l6 in Mombasa. Members are expccted to
travel on Sunday 3'd and return on Saturday 9'h April, 2016. Further logistical arrangemenrs would be
comrnunicaled by the secretariat.

'l'hc trip to China by some Mcmbcrs of the Committee was due to take place on l8'l'to 23'd of April, 2016

'I'here being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at thirty minutes past eleven O'clock in thc
rnorning. Notices for the next Sitting would be circulated to Members.

N'llN No. I105/2016: CONFIRMATIOh* OF MINU'I'liS

MIN No. ! l0(r/2016: LEAKA(iE OF 1'llE ltEl,ORT OF THIi I,UBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMI'I-'I.tr.t|,
()N .I'III.] SPECIAL AUDIT OF TIIE PROCUIiEMI,NT OF IILECTRONIC VOTING DI1VICES
I.'OI{ TI{E 20I3 GENEITAI, EI,ECTION BY ]'HE INDI,PENDENT BLFJ,CTOIIAI, ANt)
I'OUNDAII.IES COMMISSION (IEI}C) TO TI-IE MEDIA

i\{IN No. I107/2016: ANY OTIililt IttJSINIISS

IIIN No. I l0tli20l6: Al)JOt.lltNMEN'l'
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MlN. No. 1008/2015: PRELIMINARIES

The Chairperson called the meeting to order at 10.45 a.m. and a word of prayer was said.

1

MINUTES OF THE TWO HUNDREDTH AND SIXTY NINETH (269TH} SITTING OF THE PUBLIC
ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE (PAC) HELD ON TUESDAY 8IH DECEMBER.2015 IN COMMITTEE
ROOM 9, MAIN PARTIAMENT BUILDING, AT 10.30 A.M,

MEMBERS PRESENT

1. Hon. Eng. Nicolas Gumbo, M.P.
2. Hon. Joseph Manje, M.P.
3. Hon. Manson Nyamweya, M.P.
4. Hon. Gonzi Rai, M.P.
5. Hon. Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.
6. Hon. Junet Sheikh Nuh, M.P.
7. Hon. Andrew Mwadime, M.P.
8. Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, M.P.

9. Hon. Stephen Manoti, M.P.
10. Hon. David Eseli, M.P.



MlN. No. LOO9|ZOLS: CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Minutes of the 229th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
day, after being proposed by Hon. Alice Chae, MP and seconded by Hon. Joseph Manje, MP.

Minutes of the 230th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, MP and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 231't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 232^d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 233'd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 234th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon.
Stephen Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 235th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 236th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. David Eseli, MP and seconded by Hon. Nicolas
Gumbo, MP.

Minutes of the 237th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. loseph Manje, MP and seconded by Hon. Junet
Mohamed, MP.

Minutes of the 238th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 239th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 240th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 241't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, MP.
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Minutes of the 242"d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meetinB, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon.
Stephen Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 243'd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. David Eseli, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 244th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 245th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after beinB proposed by Hon. Alice Chae, MP and seconded by Hon. Joseph Manje,
MP.

Minutes of the 245th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP

Minutes of the 247th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 248th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, MP and seconded by Hon. David

Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 249th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.

Minutes of the 251't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 252"d sittinB were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 253'd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedinBs of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. David

Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 254th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai,

MP.
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Minutes of the 25oth sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP.



Minutes of the 255th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Junet Mohamed, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 256th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Junet
Mohamed, MP.

Minutes of the 257th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meetin8, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. David Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 258th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 259th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi
Rai, MP.

Minutes of the 260th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Gonzi Rai, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.

Minutes of the 261't sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Nicolas
Gumbo, MP.

Minutes of the 252nd sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Nicolas Gumbo, MP and seconded by Hon. Manson
Nyamweya, MP.

Minutes of the 263d sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after belng proposed by Hon. Stephen Manoti, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 264th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Joseph Manje, MP and seconded by Hon. Gonzi Rai,
MP.

Minutes of the 255th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after bein8 proposed by Hon. Andrew Mwadime, MP and seconded by Hon. David
Eseli, MP.

Minutes of the 265th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Sakwa Bunyasi, MP and seconded by Hon. Andrew
Mwadime, MP.
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Minutes of the 267th sitting were confirmed as the true record of the proceedings of that
meeting, after being proposed by Hon. Manson Nyamweya, MP and seconded by Hon.
David Eseli, MP.

MlN. No. 1011/2015: ANY OTHER BUSINESS

A draft program indicating areas to be visited by PAC Members to ascertain status of various
projects as outlined in the Auditor General's Report was presented to the Members by Mr.
Chelanga Maiyo, Research Officer. The Committee agreed to approve the site visit program
in the next ln-House meeting.

MlN. No. 1012/2015: ADJOURNMENT

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at half past noon.

SIGNED

Hon. Eng. Nicolas RConsEng, FIEK MAAK(A), Mp

DATE LTlLzl2OLs
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MlN. No. 1010/2015: MATTERS ARISING

Minutes of the 231't and 232nd sittings

Under Min. No. 853/2015 and Min. No.859/2015:
The Chairman requested the secretariat to include statements of daily office routine
for all witnesses as presented during the enquiries.



MINUTES OF THE THREE HUNDRED AND FIRST (3OIST) SITTING OF THE
PUBLIC ACCOUNTS COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY, 2ND JUNE, 2016, IN
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Alice Nyanchoka Chae, M.P.

Andrew Mwadime, M.P.

Abdikadir Aden, M.P.

Kyengo Katatha Maweu, M.P.

Timothy Bosire, M.P.

Silvance Onyango Osele, M.P.

Julius Melly, M.P.

Fathia Mahbub, M.P.

Kangogo Bowen, M.P.
Mathias Robi, M.P.

Clerk Assistant II
Legal Counsel

Fiscal Analyst
Audio Recorder

I

2

3

4

5

ABSENT
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MIN No. I l47t20 l6: l'RELll\{INARIES

The Chairman called the meeting to order at twenty minutes after ten o'clock in the morning. A
prayer was said.

The Chairman thanked the Members for finding time to attend the meeting. He pointed out that
the sole purpose for the Sitting was to adopt the Committee Report on the Auditor General's
2013-2014 Covemment of Kenya Audited Accounts.

The Committee Report on the Auditor General's 2013-2014 Govemment of Kenya Audited
Accounts was unanimously adopted. Adoption ofthe Report was proposed by the Hon. Stephen
Manoti, MP, and seconded by the Hon. Abdikadir Aden, Mp. It was resolved that the committee
Secretariat embark on improving the quality of the Report, both in format and grammar, before
tabling. The committee resolved to have the Report tabled on Tuesday, l4'h June. 2016.

There was no business under this agenda item.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjoumed at fifty minutes after eleven o'clock
in the moming. The date for the next meeting would be circulated to Members of the Committee
through notice.

Signed.. .... Date..
(Chai s

')

MIN No. I148/2016: CONFIRMATTON OF MINUTES

The agenda itcm was deferred to the next meeting. Thcre were thus no matters arising.

MIN No. I149i2016: ADOPTION OF THE PAC'S REp@
20t3t2014

l\'lIN No. I150/2016: ANY OTHER BUSINESS

MIN No. l15l/2016: ADJOURNMENT/DATE OF THE, NEXT StTTtNG


